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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MERE
Year Year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE H=E
—B-hE T N\F
+=A=+—-H8B +=—A=+—H
IHFE EFE
Financial Performance (HK$'000) MERE(FERT)
Revenue WA 459,109 743,414
Gross (loss)/profit £ (&), Fl (52,556) 11,782
Gross (loss)/profit margin E (&), F % (11.4%) 1.6%
Loss attributable to owners [SWNCIEZ PPN )
of the parent B8 (905,423) (703,767)
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-)N\F
+=A=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
Financial Position (HK$'000) MR (FBT)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRESEED 64,777 26,971
Goodwill (Note 1) & (P FE1) 16,557 297,552
Intangible assets (Note 1) mREE (M) — 88,618
Total assets BEE 439,095 1,307,390
Liability component of AIMRERZ
convertible bonds (Note 1) aEy (MaED 386,333 352,411
Promissory notes (Note 1) A EE (KRR 553,985 512,387
Total liabilities wafE 1,413,850 1,400,349
Net liabilities BEFE (974,755) (92,959)
Current ratio (Note 2) mENEL R (M 5E2) 0.3 1.3
Gearing ratio (Note 3) &R L % (M 7E3) N/A 7F3E A N/A 71 i@ F
Return on equity (Note 4) AR AN [ 3 X (H 524) N/A T i&E A N/A 1~ 38
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Notes:

Goodwill and intangible assets were derived from the automotive
engines business while the liability portion of convertible bonds and
promissory notes were issued in prior years.

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total of interest-bearing
borrowings, liability component of convertible bonds and promissory
notes less cash and cash equivalent by the total equity as at the
end of the reporting period and multiplied by 100%. The gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2019 is not available because the Group
reported a negative equity attributable to owners of the parent as
at 31 December 2019.

The calculation of return on equity is based on the profit attributable
to owners of the parent during the period divided by the ending
equity attributable to owners of the parent as at the end of the
reporting period and multiplied by 100%. The return on equity for
the year ended 31 December is not available because the Group
reported a negative equity attributable to owners of the parent as
at 31 December 2019.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Bisu Technology Group International Limited (the “Company”),
| present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has engaged
in two business segments, which are (i) development, production
and sale of automotive engines (the “Automotive Engines
Business”); and (i) civil engineering works and building construction
and maintenance works (the “Civil Engineering and Construction
Business”). In April 2019, the Group planned to tap into the
industrial hemp planting business in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") via an acquisition from its controlling shareholder, but
such plan did not succeed.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue amounted to approximately HK$459.1 million
as compared to that of 2018 of approximately HK$743.4 million,
representing approximately HK$284.3 million or 38.2% decrease.
The loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 attributable to
owners amounted to approximately HK$905.4 million whereas the
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 attributable to owners
amounted to approximately HK$703.8 million. The loss was mainly
attributable to the following factors:

(i) The gross loss of approximately HK$52.6 million was recorded
for the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to the
gross profit of approximately HK$11.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, which was due to:

(@) a decline of approximately 38.2% in revenue. This is
primarily resulted from the decrease in the sales of
automotive engines by the Group to the automotive
engines business customers of the Group due to the
further delay in their full resumption of production as
they have shortage in supply due to their suppliers’
concern on their payment ability.
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(ii)

(iii)

(b) a provision of impairment loss of approximately HK$33.1
million for the Group's inventory of the Automotive
Engines Business. Such impairment loss is primarily
attributable to the increased uncertainty on the
realizability of the inventory due to the further delay
in the full resumption of production of the automobile
engines business customers.

The impairment loss in the fair value of the intangible
assets and goodwill of approximately HK$88.0 million and
HK$275.8 million respectively (2018: approximately HK$430.9
million and HK$174.9 million respectively) in relation to
the acquisition of the Automotive Engines Business. Such
impairment loss is primarily attributable to the increased
uncertainty on the future cashflow from the business segment
as a result of the further delay in the full resumption of
production of the automotive engines business customers as
abovementioned.

Additional expected credit loss of approximately HK$349.4
million (2018: approximately HK$125.3 million) was made to
the accounts and bills receivables due from the automotive
engines business customers for the year ended 31 December
2019, which is attributable to the increased uncertainty on
the repayment of the accounts and bills receivables due to
the further delay in the full resumption of production of the
automobile engines business customers as abovementioned.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited tb i Fl & £ B B R A R A A

(ii)

(iii)

(b) AEBAEBRHHREBNFE
B B &5 18 & s #933,100,00078
T ABEREBEIZERRA
BERPREXBEPBELER R
HIRELE  BERTERT
ENTRERZEN -

WA BB ESERANEREE
KB RAAREBENREEBED AL
88,000,000/ T ) 275,800,000/ JT
(ZZ—/)\F : 5 5l & #430,900,000
7 7T 174,900,000 7T) ° % BUE
BHEZEHREM A BRI
REFEELRE2EMELEE B
ZEBBPARKASCRENTHET
M o

HE-_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLHF
[ - §85MNE B B & 18 49349,400,000
L (ZF — )\ : 49125,300,000/%
TEAABRREBEFPE XN
FEWESR R EWRERE AR E
MABEEPREFREFLPBELES
T k18 A B - B PR UMBR R K B IR
EEEFNTEERZREM -



AUTOMOTIVE ENGINES BUSINESS
The Group recorded a deteriorating performance of the Automotive
Engines Business for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As the final products of the Automotive Engines Business are
specifically designed for only a few customers (the “Automotive
Engines Business Customers”) in the PRC, operation status
of such Automotive Engines Business Customers will have a
crucial impact on the performance of the Automotive Engines
Business. The management of the Group had noticed that the
key Automotive Engines Business Customers were experiencing
unsatisfactory performance and financial difficulties, which were
caused by the reduction of excessive production capacity policy
and the de-leveraging policy in the PRC in 2018. Then in 2019,
the negotiations of the resumption arrangement between the
Automobile Engines Business Customers and all of their own
suppliers along the supply chain were still ongoing as some
suppliers had concerns over the payment ability of the Automotive
Engines Business Customers. Thus, the plan for full resumption
of production of the Automotive Engines Business Customers had
been handicapped due to shortage in the supply of automotive
parts. The Automotive Engines Business Customers needed to
undergo further financial and operational restructuring to address
the suppliers’ concern but such restructuring was still in progress.
The delay in the full resumption of production of the Automotive
Engines Business Customers caused the revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 decreased significantly.

On 10 September 2019, the management of the Group found,
from public information channel, that a winding-up petition (the
"Winding-up Petition”) has been filed against one Automotive
Engines Business Customer, namely Baic Yinxiang Automobile Co.,
Ltd.* (dt/RR /R E AR F], “Baic Yinxiang”). The Winding-up
Petition was accepted and publicised by a court on 10 September
2019. Upon noticing the Winding-up Petition, the management of
the Group has (i) conducted site visits to the Automotive Engines
Business and Baic Yinxiang; and (ii) engaged a qualified PRC lawyer
to monitor progress of the Winding-up Petition. As informed by
Baic Yinxiang, it was in the progress of negotiating with local
government for financial and operational restructuring, but success
of such negotiation was not guaranteed.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of the
Automotive Engines Business was approximately HK$81.3 million
(2018: approximately HK$276.5 million), represented approximately
17.7% of the total revenue of the Group. Average monthly
production sharply decreased approximately 83.7% from 1,108
units per month for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 181
units per month for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Excluding the provision for impairment loss for inventory amounting
to approximately HK$33.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: approximately HK$4.0 million) and the amortisation
of intangible assets amounting to approximately HK$1.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: approximately
HK$26.4 million), the gross profit margin of the Automotive Engines
Business decreased from approximately 10.9% for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately 2.5% for the year ended 31
December 2019. The decline in gross profit margin was a result of
the significant drop of sales volume in automotive engines.

Due to the unsatisfactory performance and negative prospects
of the Automotive Engines Business, the Group recorded (i)
an impairment loss in the fair value of the intangible assets of
approximately HK$88.0 million (2018: approximately HK$430.9
million) in relation to its acquisition of the Automotive Engines
Business; (ii) an impairment loss in the fair value of the goodwill
of approximately HK$275.8 million (2018: approximately HK$174.9
million) in relation to its acquisition of Automotive Engines Business;
and (iii) an expected credit loss of approximately HK$349.4
million (2018: approximately HK$125.3 million) to the accounts
and bills receivables due from the Automotive Engines Business
Customers for the year ended 31 December 2019. This leaded
to a further deterioration of the financial performance of the
Automotive Engines Business. Nonetheless, the Company would
like to emphasise that the impairment loss and the expected credit
loss are non-cash items and have no effect on the Group’s daily
operations and cash flow.
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CIVIL ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION

BUSINESS

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 12 significant projects in
progress. Four of them were building construction and maintenance
projects while the remaining were civil engineering construction
projects. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue
of Group's civil engineering works and building construction
and maintenance works were approximately HK$377.8 million,
representing a decrease of 19.1% as compared to the year ended
31 December 2018. The overall gross loss margin of this segment
was 5.3% for the year ended 31 December 2019, as compared to
the gross profit margin of 2.6% for the year ended 31 December
2018.

WITHDRAWAL FROM ENTERING INTO THE

INDUSTRIAL HEMP PLANTING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has been
actively looking for opportunities which can provide sound
diversification prospects. With an optimistic view for the prospect
of the industrial hemp sector, the Company has decided to invest
in the industrial hemp planting and processing business through a
series of acquisitions in mid-2019.

However, due to the reduced optimism for the outlook of the
global economic and business environment, the Group would
require more time to obtain sufficient financing to support the
Group’s development plan in respect of the industrial hemp
business. The Group has subsequently disposed of all of its interests
in the industrial hemp business. The Group had no intension to
re-initiate entering into the industrial hemp planting business.

OUTLOOK

The Group expects the delay in the restructuring and resumption
of production of the Automotive Engines Business Customers will
continue to adversely affect the Automotive Engines Business
in 2020, and the COVID-19 outbreak will further delay the
restructuring negotiation and progress. There will be a dimmer
hope that the Automotive Engines Business Customers can resume
their full production in 2020 despite a strong support from the
local government to the industry. The Group will continue to closely
monitor the progress of their restructuring and consider necessary
action or measure to protect the interest of our shareholders.
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On the other hand and for the construction business, although the
operating environment in Hong Kong is expected to remain tough
in the coming years such as continuously rising wages and cost of
construction materials and shortage of skilled labour, the Board is
confident that the Group would be capable of securing promising
business opportunities given its vast experience in handling a wide
variety of construction works. The Group will continue to adopt a
prudent approach when submitting new tenders.

Looking ahead, the Directors are cautious about the prospect of
the Group’s operation and business in 2020 and will continue to
pursue costs control initiatives in its business segments. Meanwhile,
the Group shall also look for opportunities which can reinforce
the current business segments in the Group or provide sound
diversification prospects, with an aim to improve our performance
and maximize the interest of our shareholders.

In February 2020, the Group intended to perform a strategic
portfolio review of its business after the continuous deterioration
in performance of the Automotive Engines Business. Management
of the Group will assess strategic options in Hong Kong and
internationally, focusing on new business opportunities involving
construction and the potential diversification of the business. The
Company will make further announcement(s) in relation to the
above matters as and when appropriate.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to
our management team and staff for their dedication commitment,
as well as all of our customers, suppliers, shareholders, business
partners and associates for their support and encouragement to
the Group.

Liu Wengang
Executive director
Hong Kong, 8 May 2020
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Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand
EXRFHEEABE

The following table summarises our significant contracts on TERBIEEFAR - Z—HLF+_A=+—
hand for the civil engineering and construction business as at 31 HEBIAIBREREEEXKNEKRFH

December 2019: a5

Particulars of the contract Contract sum

EHNFEE EHNEHE

HK$ million
BEBT

Roads and drainage works BER 31%5%1{%

Provision of external cable construction works 2t FHNEEER L ERNMLEBRE —
and outside telecommunications plant (Note 1)
maintenance services (B 5E1)

Provision of Barrier-free Access Facilities for  AEREEVIRHEEGRBERE — 203
Highway Structures — Phase 3 Contract 8 FE=ZHEN\HEH

Provision of Barrier-free Access Facilities for RERBEVRHEERRBBERE — 173
Highway Structures — Phase 3 Contract 9 FEZHENNEL (Note 2)

(M 7E2)

Utilities civil engineering works PAREEIARIRE

Term contract for provision of civil engineering 12 £ & 51 48 %&*H g —
works for the telecommunication networks TARIBEHELD (Note 1)
and associated facilities (B 5E1)

Provision of integrated field works for field IRENTCIR B4R & B 48 B RS —
services in NTC region (Note 1)

(B 5ET)

Provision of Integrated Field Works for Field — FAKLA&KLBI[&E 12 47 & 48 48 B IR 7% —

Services in KLA & KLB regions (Note 1)
(M 7E1)

Construction and Maintenance of Trenching/ & - BR ffl M - ﬁ\f%&ﬁt_ A BE S Y —
Cable Laying and Contractual Works in the  #R#31,  ESEHENEZERRER (Note 1)
Areas of Hong Kong, Ap Lei Chau, Lamma BHIIE (M%)

Island and any Outlying Island
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Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand
EXRFHEEABE

Particulars of the contract

Contract sum

BRFEE EHNEE
HK$ million
BEAET
Utilities Civil Engineering Works "\Fﬁ%ﬁfiﬁiﬂilfi
Provision of Works for Integrated Blockwiring A4 A EFHiGEH L MmIRE TRE —
Infrastructure (Note 1)
(B &)
Building construction and maintenance BEFREENREIR
works
New Entrances and Associated Modification — Z Ut R FTEAO TR 80
Works in Tsuen Wan West
District Term Contract for Maintenance, AR dt@ - PHERAFSRERE - XE —
Improvement and Vacant Flat Refurbishment for M ZEEBEBM B TIEM S @ THEL) (Note 1)
Tai Po, North, Shatin and Sai Kung Region (4) —Z —,{:/_E—jl¢r; (B sE1)
2017/2019
Advance Civil Engineering Works for Public —NEFEE_Z-NFEIMREFER 18
Housing Development Projects Batch 9 )?%IEE Hil ,Hﬂ:l:ﬂ?I&
(2018-2019)
Construction of superstructure works at BMERBRIMEIRE FERETIRERT 92

sections 4 of Tseung Kwan O Depot Phase |l

Note 1: No contract sum provided in the contracts due to the nature of Hi&E1: ZERHEBEOM
the relevant contracts. HESH

B AENAEHLE

Note 2: Project with a contract sum of HK$340 million being undertaken — FM5¥2 : & #J% %8 /%340,000,000% 7T 2 THE B

by EXCEL-LANON Joint Venture, an unincorporated company in WIEEBHRAFIEE — 2 HEED
which 51% interest is attributable to the Group. FEA - E51%ﬁﬁﬁnﬂﬂzﬁé‘%l%ﬁ

14 Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has engaged
in two business segments, which are (i) development, production
and sale of automotive engines (the "Automotive Engines
Business”); and (i) civil engineering works and building construction
and maintenance works (the “Civil Engineering and Construction
Business”). In April 2019, the Group planned to tap into the
industrial hemp planting business in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") via an acquisition from its controlling shareholder, but
such plan did not succeed.

REVENUE AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue amounted to approximately HK$459.1 million
as compared to that of 2018 of approximately HK$743.4 million,
representing approximately HK$284.3 million or 38.2% decrease.
The loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 attributable to
owners amounted to approximately HK$905.4 million whereas the
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 attributable to owners
amounted to approximately HK$703.8 million. The loss was mainly
attributable to the following factors:

(i) The gross loss of approximately HK$52.6 million was recorded
for the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to the
gross profit of approximately HK$11.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, which was due to:

(@) a decline of approximately 38.2% in revenue. This is
primarily resulted from the decrease in the sales of
automotive engines by the Group to the automotive
engines business customers of the Group due to the
further delay in their full resumption of production as
they have shortage in supply due to their suppliers’
concern on their payment ability.

(b) a provision of impairment loss of approximately HK$33.1
million for the Group's inventory of the Automotive
Engines Business. Such impairment loss is primarily
attributable to the increased uncertainty on the
realisability of the inventory due to the further delay
in the full resumption of production of the automobile
engines business customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNWE DN

REVENUE AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

(i)  The impairment loss in the fair value of the intangible assets
and goodwill of approximately HK$88.0 million and HK$275.8
million respectively (2018: approximately HK$430.9 million and
HK$174.9 million respectively) in relation to the acquisition
of the Automotive Engines Business. Such impairment loss is
primarily attributable to the increased uncertainty on the future
cashflow from the business segment as a result of the further
delay in the full resumption of production of the automotive
engines business customers as abovementioned.

(i)  Additional expected credit loss of approximately HK$349.4
million (2018: approximately HK$125.3 million) was made to
the accounts and bills receivables due from the automotive
engines business customers for the year ended 31 December
2019, which is attributable to the increased uncertainty on
the repayment of the accounts and bills receivables due to
the further delay in the full resumption of production of the
automobile engines business customers as abovementioned.

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 were approximately HK$452.7 cents (2018: basic and diluted
loss per share of approximately HK$351.9 cents).

IMPAIRMENT

As a result of the deteriorating performance of the Group's
Automotive Engines Business, the Group recorded (i) an impairment
loss in the fair value of the intangible assets of approximately
HK$88.0 million (2018: approximately HK$430.9 million); (i) an
impairment loss in the fair value of goodwill of approximately
HK275.8 million (2018: approximately HK$174.9 million); and
(iii) an expected credit loss of approximately HK$349.4 million
(2018: approximately HK$125.3 million) to the accounts and bills
receivables for the Automotive Engines Business.

The above impairment and loss are recognized after the impairment
assessment performed by the Board as at 31 December 2019 with
reference to valuations performed by Moore Transaction Services
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer. Details of
the valuation approach, key assumptions and inputs are set up in
note 16, 17, 19 and 20 to the financial statement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS SEGMENT

Automotive Engines Business
The Group recorded a deteriorating performance of the Automotive
Engines Business for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As the final products of the Automotive Engines Business are
specifically designed for only a few customers (the “Automotive
Engines Business Customers”) in the PRC, operation status of such
Automotive Engines Business Customers will have a crucial impact
on the performance of the Automotive Engines Business. The
management of the Group had noticed that the key Automotive
Engines Business Customers were experiencing unsatisfactory
performance and financial difficulties, which were caused by the
reduction of excessive production capacity policy and the de-
leveraging policy in China in 2018. Then in 2019, the negotiations
of the resumption arrangement between the Automobile Engines
Business Customers and all of their own suppliers along the
supply chain were still ongoing as some suppliers had concerns
over the payment ability of the Automotive Engines Business
Customers. Thus, the plan for full resumption of production of the
Automotive Engines Business Customers had been handicapped
due to shortage in the supply of automotive parts. The Automotive
Engines Business Customers needed to undergo further financial
and operational restructuring to address the suppliers’ concern
but such restructuring was still in progress. The delay in the full
resumption of production of the Automotive Engines Business
Customers caused the revenue of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 decreased significantly.

On 10 September 2019, the management of the Group found,
from public information channel, that a winding-up petition (the
“Winding-up Petition”) has been filed against one Automotive
Engines Business Customer, namely Baic Yinxiang Automobile Co.,
Ltd.* (AL/5 R A B AR A A, “Baic Yinxiang”). The Winding-up
Petition was accepted and publicized by a court on 10 September
2019. Upon noticing the Winding-up Petition, the management of
the Group has (i) conducted site visits to the Automotive Engines
Business and Baic Yinxiang; and (ii) engaged a qualified PRC lawyer
to monitor progress of the Winding-up Petition. As informed by
Baic Yinxiang, it was in the progress of negotiating with local
government for financial and operational restructuring, but success
of such negotiation was not guaranteed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNWE DN

BUSINESS SEGMENT (Continued)

Automotive Engines Business (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of the
Automotive Engines Business was approximately HK$81.3 million
(2018: approximately HK$276.5 million), represented approximately
17.7% of the total revenue of the Group. Average monthly
production sharply decreased approximately 83.7% from 1,108
units per month for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 181
units per month for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Excluding the provision for impairment loss for inventory amounting
to approximately HK$33.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: approximately HK$4.0 million) and the amortization
of intangible assets amounting to approximately HK$1.2 million
for the year ended 31
HK$26.4 million), the gross profit margin of the Automotive Engines
Business decreased from approximately 10.9% for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately 2.5% for the year ended 31
December 2019. The decline in gross profit margin was a result of
the significant drop of sales volume in automotive engines.

December 2019 (2018: approximately

Due to the unsatisfactory performance and negative prospects
of the Automotive Engines Business, the Group recorded (i)
an impairment loss in the fair value of the intangible assets of
approximately HK$88.0 million (2018: approximately HK$430.9
million) in relation to its acquisition of the Automotive Engines
Business; (ii) an impairment loss in the fair value of the goodwill
of approximately HK$275.8 million (2018: approximately HK$174.9
million) in relation to its acquisition of the Automotive Engines
Business; and (i) an expected credit loss of approximately
HK$349.4 million (2018: approximately HK$125.3 million) to the
accounts and bills receivables due from the Automotive Engines
Business Customers for the year ended 31 December 2019. This
leaded to a further deterioration of the financial performance of
the Automotive Engines Business. Nonetheless, the Company would
like to emphasize that the impairment loss and the expected credit
loss are non-cash items and have no effect on the Group’s daily
operations and cash flow.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS SEGMENT (Continued)

Civil Engineering and Construction Business

All of the Group's contracts undertaken for both civil and building
construction business were for customers which are independent
third parties including certain departments of the Government of
Hong Kong, public utilities companies and private organizations in
Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of
Group’s civil engineering works and building construction and
maintenance works were approximately HK$377.8 million (2018:
approximately HK$466.9 million).
included in the turnover was: (i) revenue from civil engineering
works of approximately HK$310.9 million (2018: approximately
HK$389.8 million); and (ii) revenue from building construction
and maintenance works of approximately HK$66.9 million (2018:
approximately HK$77.1 million).

For the year under review,

The overall gross loss margin of this segment was 5.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: gross profit margin of 2.6%).
As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 12 significant projects in
progress (2018: 13). Four of them were building construction and
maintenance projects while the remaining were civil engineering
construction projects.

As of 31 December 2019, the total contract sum and the total
outstanding values of the Group’s substantial projects in progress
were approximately HK$566.1 million and HK$300.1
respectively.

million

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was awarded
with the following new substantial contracts:

° Provisional of External Cable Construction Works & Outside
Telecommunications Plant Maintenance Services

. District Term Contract for Maintenance, Improvement and

Vacant Flat Refurbishment for Kowloon West & Sai Kung (1)

2020/2022

o Construction of superstructure Works at Sections 4 of Tseung
Kwan O Depot phase |l
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR N

BUSINESS SEGMENT (Continued)
Withdrawal from entering into the industrial hemp

planting business

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has been
actively looking for opportunities which can provide sound
diversification prospects. With an optimistic view for the prospect
of the industrial hemp sector, the Company has decided to invest
in the industrial hemp planting and processing business through the
acquisition of 70% of the shares of Yunnan Tairui Biotechnology
Co., Ltd. ("Yunnan Tairui”) and 60% of the shares of Qiubei Woma
Ltd. (“Qiubei Woma") to capture
the potential growth of the industry during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Agricultural Development Co.,

In order to seize the first-mover advantage in the industrial
hemp sector, the minority shareholders of Yunnan Tairui and
Qiubei Woma (the “Other Shareholders”) had put forward a tight
project timeline for the development plan of the industrial hemp
business. However, due to the reduced optimism for the outlook
of the global economic and business environment, the Company
would require more time to obtain sufficient financing to support
the Group's development plan in respect of the industrial hemp
business. After considering the differences with respect to the
expected project timeline between the Group and the Other
Shareholders and the change in market sentiment, and after further
discussion with the Other Shareholders, who had a strong desire
to implement the development plan soonest possible, the Group
had subsequently disposed of Yunnan Tairui and Qiubei Woma. No
material gain or loss was incurred for the Group in the acquisition
and disposal of Yunnan Tairui and Qiubei Woma.

As at the date of this report, the Group had no intension to re-
initiate entering into the industrial hemp planting business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT
The management of the Group remained cautious and conservative
on the prospects in the year 2020.

For the past year 2019, the economy has shown signs of
recession. Global growth was much lower and entered a window
of weakness, due to the U.S.—China trade conflict and Brexit
uncertainty. Protests against the political establishment in Hong
Kong have leaded to a more challenging and more uncertain
business environment. Worse still, the COVID-19 outbreak gave a
larger impact, first leading to a serious concern on public health
and then significantly damaging confidence in the economic
prospects. In the late 2019, economic activity was slowing down
in the PRC, and declining at the sharpest rate in Hong Kong in
over a decade.

Looking into future, the economy is expected to remain battered
amid the COVID-19 outbreak. Meanwhile, in politics, pro-
democracy protests in Hong Kong have seemingly taken a back
seat due to fears of the virus spreading, but there is no guarantee
that such protest will not re-initiate.

The Group expects the delay in the restructuring and resumption
of production of the Automotive Engines Business Customers will
continue to adversely affect the Automotive Engines Business
in 2020, and the COVID-19 outbreak will further delay the
restructuring negotiation and progress. There will be a dimmer
hope that the Automotive Engines Business Customers can resume
their full production in 2020 despite a strong support from the
local government to the industry. The Group will continue to closely
monitor the progress of their restructuring and consider necessary
action or measure to protect the interest of our shareholders.

On the other hand and for the construction business, although the
operating environment in Hong Kong is expected to remain tough
in the coming years such as continuously rising wages and cost of
construction materials and shortage of skilled labour, the Company
is confident that the Group would be capable of securing promising
business opportunities given its vast experience in handling a wide
variety of construction works. The Group will continue to adopt a
prudent approach when submitting new tenders.

BEEEFWE DN

Al &
FEEEREH -_T_TEMNMRREBE
BEEE -

RBEHZZFT-—NF KEE2HERRY
Z-HARFPEZEZHREEBFBRNT
BEYH 2HEEEREBEEILEA
REH - HE BB AEHMMESIRE
BERBUERTHEMNEERE - LAE
& COVID-19% B MEARNTE 5%
SIMEARFENTY@E  HXERER

BZAMHEEEMNRHNEDL R_F—hF
FR - PENEHETSNE  ALLFEBL

BATFERESRERRE -

RERK - HCOVID-19/2 B EAR - T8 HIK
ENEEXEAR - BREE - EBUA L
HRELASER  BENREEINZED
PUTFREXRBHA - BTEERBZIHR
EURE NN 3 S

AEBEH RZT_TFTEEHHRE
BEPEARERMELEREEH A
BERPREBELTNFZE - ACOVID-19
MBERKBELCREERHALER - &
BEMBAANIFAETE  BREH
HMEREFEE_S_TF2EMEE
ENHEYE AEERESTYERE
EHEEE YERRBRLEBITHHEBNA
R R A 2

Z—H BEREFEENKLREBHGE
SEHFTREAT WIEMEZEDH
FOATE B RS TRR - BERA
SERRESBERETRTEEEER
B ARBREANKRERLEEDND
o AEEREXHNBRERGHER
HuZE R AR -

Annual Report 2019 ZZ — L FF R 21



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNWE DN

PROSPECT (Continued)

Looking ahead, the Directors are cautious about the prospect of
the Group’s operation and business in 2020 and will continue to
pursue costs control initiatives in its business segments. Meanwhile,
the Group shall also look for opportunities which can reinforce
the current business segments in the Group or provide sound
diversification prospects, with an aim to improve our performance
and maximize the interest of our shareholders.

In February 2020, the Group intended to perform a strategic
portfolio review of its business after the continuous deterioration
in performance of the Automotive Engines Business. Management
of the Group will assess strategic options in Hong Kong and
internationally, focusing on new business opportunities involving
construction and the potential diversification of the business. The
Company will make further announcement(s) in relation to the
above matters as and when appropriate.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's operations, financials and prospects are affected by
risks and uncertainties. The risk factors listed below may directly
or indirectly lead to significant differences in the Group’s operating
performances, financial
from its expected or past performances. These factors are not

positions and development prospects

comprehensive, and there may be other risks and uncertainties that
are not known by the Group or may not be noticeable at present,
but may become significant in the future.

Business Risk

Performance of all business segments of the Group may be affected
by fluctuations in market prices and market demands of the Group'’s
final products and services. On the other hand, raw materials or
outsourced services which are provided by the Group’s suppliers
are subject to price fluctuations. The Group does not enter into
any material contracts to hedge against such price fluctuations.
Therefore, any increases in these raw materials or outsourced
services will exert pressures on the Group’'s production costs,
gross profits and final prices that the Group in turn charges the
customers. If the Group fails to adapt and respond successfully to
the changing demands and supplies, it may adversely affect the
business performance and development prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Industry Risk

All business segments of the Group are operated in industries
which are highly competitive. Competition may intensify as the
Group’s competitors expand their product or service, lower their
prices, or increase their qualities. There may be new competitors
entering the Group's existing markets as well. If the Group does
not compete successfully against existing and new competitors, the
Group may not be able to maintain its existing business scale and
operation performance.

Policy Risk

Some business segments of the Group must abide by various
policies and regulations. For example, the civil engineering and
is subject to compliance requirements
imposed by the Hong Kong government. The regulators may
require the Group to apply for new licenses, and impose new rules,
regulations or requirements. Changes in policies and regulations
will affect the development of the Group’s business, such as
increasing compliance costs and reducing business opportunities.

construction business

Credit Risk

All business segments of the Group allow a credit for their
customers’ payment. All trade and other receivables are accounted
by their carrying amounts less expected credit loss. In the past,
the Group has experienced significant delay in the payment of the
trade and other receivables, especially in the Automotive Engines
Business, and therefore some credit loss has been recognized in
the financial statements of the Group in accordance with the
accounting standards. However, the impaired amounts of the trade
and other receivables do not represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk. Recoverability of such receivables depends
on a lot of factors, including the general economy, government
policies, investor confidences, and most importantly, the business
performances and financial positions of each debtor.

Liquidity Risks

As discussed before, the Group recorded net current liabilities
and net liabilities as at 31 December 2019, indicating that the
Group was exposed to liquidity risk. Despite that the Group has
some measures to raise additional working capital to finance its
operation, there is always a risk that the Group cannot meet its
financial obligations as they fall due.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR N

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Other Risks

Some risks are not noticeable from the daily operations of the
Group, but they can have a material adverse impact on the Group.
For example, the harshening business environment from the U.S.-
China trade conflicts, the sharp decrease in Hong Kong economy
after the local political movements, and the recent COVID-19
outbreak. These kinds of events may interrupt the Group's
operations, increase prices of raw material and outsourced services,
and deteriorate other risks and uncertainty that the Group are
facing. All such events are outside control of the Group and there is
no guarantee that the Group's responsive measures are sufficient to
protect the Group’s interests. Given the complexity and materiality
of these events, the Group is of the view that their impacts may
take a longer time to fully emerge.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,

LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$64.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 140.2% from approximately HK$27.0 million as at
31 December 2018. The increase was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of (i) net cash flows generated from financing
activities in respect of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings; and (i) net cash inflow from operating activities of the
Civil Engineering and Construction Business. The Group had not
pledged any bank deposits for the bank loans. The Group’s cash
and cash equivalents were denominated in HK$ and RMB.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets were approximately
HK$439.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately 66.4%
from approximately HK$1,307.4 million as at 31 December 2018.
The significant decrease was mainly due to (i) the decrease in
accounts and bills receivables and contract assets in aggregate of
approximately HK$446.9 million as mainly because of the expected
credit loss of approximately HK$349.4 million made on the account
and bills receivables of the Automotive Engines Business; and (ii)
the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets of approximately
HK$275.8 million and approximately HK$88.0 million made in 2019
respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the total liabilities were approximately
HK$1,413.9 million, representing an increase of approximately 1.0%
from approximately HK$1,400.3 million as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the convertible bonds had a carrying
amount of approximately HK$761.9 million (2018: approximately
HK$728.0 million), in which approximately HK$375.6 million
was recognized as equity and approximately HK$386.3 million
was recognized as current liabilities. As at 31 December 2019,
the promissory notes had a carrying amount of approximately
HK$554.0 million (2018: approximately HK$512.4 million)
recognized as current liabilities. On 8 November 2019, the
Company and the then holder of the convertible bonds and the
promissory notes, Power Expert Global Limited (“Power Expert”),
entered into an amendment agreement, pursuant to which (i) the
maturity date of the convertible bonds shall be extended for 5
years to 4 February 2025; and (ii) the term of the promissory notes
will be changed to perpetual and the interest rate will be fixed at
5% per annum with effect from 5 February 2020, payable annually
and the interest accrued on or before 4 February 2020 shall be
payable on 4 February 2025. This proposed amendment took
effect on 14 January 2020. Following the amendment, majority of
the convertible bonds and the promissory notes is expected to be
re-categorized as non-current liabilities.
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BEEEBNWE DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Continued)

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group
comprised (1) other loans from independent third parties of
approximately HK$53.9 million (2018: approximately HK$57.5
million) with the contractual interest of 5.0% to 12.0% per
annum; and (2) bank loans of approximately HK$4.1 million (2018:
approximately HK$12.8 million) with an interest rate of the Hong
Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate plus 2.5% per annum; of which a
corporate guarantee was given by the Company on the bank loans.
They are repayable within 1 to 3 year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$42.8 million (2018: approximately HK$52.8
million) which approximately HK$30.0 million was not utilized and
was secured by corporate guarantees.

As at 31 December 2019, the net current liabilities were
approximately HK$980.8 million, as compared to approximately
HK$130.7 million of net current assets as at 31 December 2018.
The decrease in net current assets was primarily attributable to (i)
the reclassification of the convertible bonds of carrying amount
of approximately HK$386.3 million and promissory notes of
carrying amount of approximately HK$554.0 million from non-
current liabilities to current liabilities as at 31 December 2019; (ii)
an expected credit loss of approximately HK$349.4 million was
recognized on the accounts and bills receivables of the Automotive

Engines Business in 2019.

Current ratio of the Group has significantly deteriorated to
approximately 0.3 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: approximately
1.3). Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities. Such deterioration was mainly due to the classification of
the convertible bonds and the promissory notes as current liabilities.
However, following an amendment on the terms of the convertible
bonds and the promissory notes which took effect on 14 January
2020, the repayment date of the convertible notes was extended
to 4 February 2025 and the promissory notes was changed to
perpetual. Such amendments will lead to an improvement on the
general liquidity of the Group, including the net current assets/
liabilities positions and current ratio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Continued)

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the amount of net cash and
bank balances (interest-bearing borrowings, liability component of
the convertible bonds and promissory notes less cash and cash
equivalent) divided by the total equity. The gearing ratio as at
31 December 2019 is not available because the Group reported
a negative equity attributable to owners of the parent as at 31
December 2019 (2018: not available).

GOING CONCERN

Despite the Group incurred a net loss of HK$906,245,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and had net current liabilities and
net liabilities of HK$980,762,000 and HK$974,755,000, respectively
as at 31 December 2019, and the expected impact from the
coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic, which has
also resulted in the temporary closure of its automotive business
operation in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its operation and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future, based on the cash flow projections of the Group
and after taking into consideration the following:

(i) On 8 November 2019, the Company and Power Expert Global
Limited (“Power Expert”), the then holder of the convertible
bonds and promissory notes, entered into an amendment
agreement, pursuant to which (a) the maturity date of the
convertible bonds shall be extended for 5 years to 4 February
2025; and (b) the term of the promissory notes will be
changed to perpetual and the interest rate will be fixed at
5% per annum with effect from 5 February 2020, details
of which are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the financial
statement;
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GOING CONCERN (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

28

subsequent to the end of reporting period, a major
shareholder of the Company has agreed to provide
additional funding by a shareholder’s loan of not less than
HK$58,600,000 from 1 January 2019 to 31 March 2021 to
the Group as and when required, and not to demand for
repayment of the amount due by the Group until it is in the
position to repay without impairing its liquidity and financial
position. As of the reporting date, such shareholder loan
amounted to HK$8,750,000 was drawn down by the Group
after 1 January 2020;

subsequent to the end of reporting period, Power Expert
and its shareholder, Mr. Liu Chang, has agreed to provide
undertaking and continuous financial support by loans with
market interest rate to the Group as and when required prior
to 31 March 2021. Despite the fact that Power Expert ceased
to be holder of convertible bonds and promissory notes on
3 February 2020, Power Expert still confirm to provide such
financial support to the Group;

the restructuring of the customers of the Automotive Engine
Business and their negotiation with local government and
their shareholders are still ongoing. The process started from
2018 and the whole supply chain, includes the suppliers
of the Automotive Engines Business, understand the time
needed for the completion of the restructuring would be
long and no radical actions were taken previously. It is not
expected that they will take such actions against the Group's
subsidiary engaging in the Automotive Engines Business
unless the restructuring exercise is proved to be a failure,
which is not expected to happen in the next 12 months after
the end of reporting period, for the details of the progress
of the restructuring, details of which are set out in note 16
to the financial statement; and

various cost control measures have been taken by the Group

to tighten the costs of operations and various general and
administrative expense.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GOING CONCERN (Continued)

The directors of the Company believe that, taking into account
the above factors, the Group will have sufficient working capital
to satisfy its present requirements for at least the next 12 months
from the end of the reporting period. However, should the above
financing or support be unavailable, the Group may be unable to
continue as a going concern, in which case adjustments might have
to be made to the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to state
them at their recoverable amounts, and to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify its non-current assets
and non-current liabilities to current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTES
On 4 February 2016, the Company issued (i) zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
approximately HK$390.0 million; and (ii) promissory notes in the
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$410.0 million
to Power Expert Global Limited (“Power Expert”) as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Well
Surplus Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries in October 2015.

amount of

On 8 November 2019, the Company and Power Expert entered
into an amendment agreement, pursuant to which (i) the maturity
date of the convertible bonds shall be extended for 5 years to 4
February 2025; and (i) the term of the promissory notes will be
changed to perpetual and the interest rate will be fixed at 5% per
annum with effect from 5 February 2020, payable annually and
the interest accrued on or before 4 February 2020 shall be payable
on 4 February 2025. Further details of the amendment are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 November 2019 and
the Company’s circular dated 19 December 2019. This proposed
amendment took effect on 14 January 2020.

On 3 February 2020, the Company received (i) a duly-executed
transfer notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that
Power Expert has agreed to transfer the convertible bonds to LE
Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. Later (“LEGH"); and (ii) an assignment
notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that Power Expert
has agreed to assign the promissory notes to LEGH. The Company
has given its consent on the transfer and issued new certificates
of the convertible bonds and the promissory notes to LEGH.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED AND/OR
RELATED PARTIES

On 15 April 2019, Global Harvest Inc (a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into an agreement with Mr. Jiang Jianhui
(the controlling Shareholder), for the purchase of 100% of the
total issued shares of Links Wonder Investment Holdings Limited
(“Links Wonder”). The target group held a permit by the relevant
government authority of Yunnan Province, the PRC, for industrial
hemp processing for up to the production capacity of 50 tonnes
of cannabidiol.

On 6 May 2019, Xingyu Keji (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (&4
B ORI B AT, a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into an agreement with Mr. Jiang Jianhui
(the controlling Shareholder), for the purchase of 60% of the total
issued shares of Qiubei Woma. The target company has certain
binding agreements with certain local farmers in the Yunnan
Province, the PRC, for the planting of the industrial hemp. Pursuant
to the planting agreements, the target company was to provide
industrial hemp seeds, training and technical support for the said
local farmers for planting and upon harvest, these local farmers
were obliged to sell the industrial hemp to the target company at
a pre-determined price.

As the abovementioned two transactions involved the same vendor
and formed a series of transactions conducted within the past
12-month period, they were required to be aggregated pursuant
to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. Upon aggregation, as all of
the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules)
were less than 5% and the total consideration was less than
HK$3,000,000, the transactions were thus fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.

On 27 June 2019, the Group disposed of its interests in Links
Wonder and Qiubei Woma to an independent third party. No
material gain or loss was incurred for the Group in the acquisition
and disposal of Links Wonder and Qiubei Woma.

As at 31 December 2019, shareholder loans amounted to
approximately HK$29.7 million were provided to the Group for its
working capital. The shareholder loans were conducted on normal
commercial terms or better, and were not secured by the assets
of the Group.

More information about the transactions with connected and/or
related parties are set out in note 38 to the financial results.

30 Bisu Technology Group International Limited tb i Fl & £ B B R A R A A

HEELAR SHEBEIZRS
R-ZZE—AFEWMA+FHHE ' Global Harvest

nc. (A 2R —HE2EWE QA HEE
BEEEEGERKRR)GTIME BB
Links Wonder Investment Holdings Limited
([Links Wonder]) 100% 2 # 1T 5 - B 1%
SERETHREMEABBRTHER T
A AETIEXRMINT - &= E#RABS0
WA K il — B

RZZE-NFHEANE - BERZCRID)
BERAR(KAARR—HEZ2ENBA
CDEES @ﬁf‘ﬁi(%%ﬁﬁ%)ﬂﬁ%%*
YWiE LR M60% E#H T - BER
Eﬁiqﬂlmﬁé\iﬁ’\”‘imrELEX%:F/\,’]
Rithag » AETTIEAMMT - REEHE
& - B E/“TH#%LL;?i@;—Ek{#\I
EAMET -~ F R RF - Fi R
3t %iﬁ#ﬁﬁ%fibﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁli
RN ETFBEREAR -

HRLEAMRIZHERE—EF » WR#E
ENRBERAAFEK—RINRS Iltt/,ﬁﬁ%ﬁé
FHRBIE1AABUEHI M T EITE O ©
Bt1& - BRPTBERES tt(m%ﬁtm%ﬁ
B ¥9E 5% - BAE L% K 143,000,000
/%75 lﬁtzii’\%ﬁéiﬁ%%%?ﬁﬂ
W FEEZ - NEF - BREEIRRER
/E*/%XE"

—NFENA-++tH KEBBE
EALmks Wonder & fr 4t 7K fiif 9 8 2 ﬁﬁ?
WY EZF o AEBRUE K& Links
Wonder& bR EIBHRE A E KB

N
z~ o
mT

%

“E-NAF+-_A=+—H BRAE
BiRERRES i’]29700000/’§751’ﬁ7%/\

LEED -  RREFR —MREEHEREL
ERFETT - HTLAZKEIé{%f’E%EHEﬁ

BB R
IS BT FE38 o

RHp2ZHBRINRN



Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any material acquisition
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
investment or capital assets (2018: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any pledge of

assets (2018: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Detail of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 36
to the financial results.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in HK$
and RMB, which are the functional currencies of respective group
companies. The Group has not entered into any instruments on
the foreign exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor
exchange rate movement and will take appropriate activities to
reduce the exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 452
employees (2018: 611) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
remuneration policy is reviewed periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, company performance, and individual
qualifications and performance. Other staff benefits include
bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, mandatory provident
fund scheme for Hong Kong employees, state-sponsored retirement
plans for the PRC employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

NO OTHER MATERIAL CHANGE H\EME KRB

Save as disclosed, there has been no material change in the Group’s M T  BFIEARBEHE T —NF
financial position or business since the publication of the latest +—A=+—HItFERKHNFEREUAKE
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December ARNEBH B AL EHBBES KAES -

2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD HREMREE
Save as disclosed, there was no other significant event after the BRETIETEIN  SREHBREEZAREAHH
reporting period and up to the date of this report. mEMBE RNREREEE o

32 Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive directors

Mr. Artem Matyushok, aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 5
February 2020. He holds a Bachelor of Science from Northern
Kentucky University in Kentucky, the United States and a Bachelor
of Economies from the Peoples Friendship University of Russia in
Russia. He is currently an Executive Committee member and Chief
Investment Officer of the group of LE Group Holdings Pte Ltd
(“LE Group”) and its subsidiaries, being responsible for company
strategy, portfolio management and investments. Prior to this role,
he held various roles with the PJSC Rosneft Oil Company, recently
being Global Head of Mergers and Acquisitions and Business
Development. In addition, he held positions as Project Director and
Manager of Merger and Acquisitions and Project Financing at Royal
Dutch Shell PLC. He has executed numerous high-profile M&A
transactions; he has considerable experience in establishing joint
ventures and has over the years built a considerable experience in
infrastructure development projects.

LE Group is the holder of (i) the zero-coupon convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$390,000,000 issued by the
Company on 4 February 2016; and (ii) the promissory notes issued
by the Company on 4 February 2016 in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$410,000,000.

Mr. Matyushok is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENGAREEEBR

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive directors (Continued)

Mr. Brett Ashley Wight, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 5 February 2020. He is currently an Executive
Committee member and Executive Director of the group of LE
Group and its subsidiaries. He has more than 20 years’' international
experience in law, engineering, construction and the delivery of
major engineering and construction projects. He was a lawyer
with Blake Dawson Waldron (now Ashurst) focusing on major
projects especially in transport, energy, mining and engineering.
He has extensive experience advising on projects including
sporting complexes, commercial developments, energy, mining
and engineering projects. He was also a board member of an
established multi-national engineering and construction company
that undertook major projects throughout Australia, Asia and the
Middle East. Such projects included airports, stadiums, industrial
facilities, process plants and public infrastructure. He has significant
experience in developing and executing company strategy,
business development, planning, procurement, finance and project
management.

LE Group is the holder of (i) the zero-coupon convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$390,000,000 issued by the
Company on 4 February 2016; and (ii) the promissory notes issued
by the Company on 4 February 2016 in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$410,000,000.

Mr. Liu Wengang, aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 November 2019. He joined the Group in October
2019 and was appointed as the Chief Investment Officer. He is
principally responsible for the capital, financing, fund and financial
management of the Group and participates in investment decisions.
He obtained a Master Degree of Economy from Capital University
of Economics and Business in the People’s Republic of China and
a Bachelor Degree of Economy from Tianjin University of Finance
and Economics. He worked in an auditory firm and financial
institutions before joining the Group, and is experienced in capital
and financing management.

Mr. Liu is also a full-time employee of a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company and director of two wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive directors (Continued)

Mr. Xing Bin, aged 31, was appointed as an executive Director
on 11 September 2015. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business
Administration in Accounting from Peking University. He has over
8 years of solid experiences in the field of finance from his past
work experiences.

Non-executive director

Mr. Lam Wah, aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director on
12 November 2018 and re-designated from an executive Director
to a non-executive Director on 31 August 2019. He graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with Bachelor of
Business Administration — Professional Accountancy in 1999.
He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He was the senior vice president
of Strategic Investment of Imperial Pacific International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1076), a company listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 2015 to 2019.
He was the vice president of Simsen International Corporation
Limited (now known as Huarong International Financial Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 993) from 2013 to 2015, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was the vice
president of the Strategic Planning of Management Office of DBS
Bank Ltd. from 2012 to 2013 and the vice president of Private
Equity of DBS Bank Ltd. from 2007 to 2012. He was employed
as the financial controller of Dickson Industrial Co., Ltd. from
2006 to 2007. He served as the finance manager of South China
Printing Co. Ltd. from 2003 to 2006. He was an audit senior of
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Arthur Andersen from 1999 to 2003.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENGAREEEBR

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Ip Mei Shun, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 April 2019. He is also a chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company, a member of
each of the audit committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. He is currently the Managing Partner of Avantfaire
Investment Management Limited, which is licensed by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission for carrying out Type 4
(Advising on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated
activities. He started my career at Hong Kong Exchanges &
Clearing Ltd (HKEx) followed by Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA) during the period between 1997 and 2004. He was then
employed by Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (CIBC) and
Toronto-Dominion Bank (TD) in Canada during the period between
2004 and 2008. He has been working in Hong Kong again since
then. He served as the assistant vice president of Citigroup Global
Markets Asia Limited from 2008 to 2010, and the director of CTBC
Private Bank responsible for investment advisory and portfolio
management from 2012 to 2017. He obtained an MBA degree
from the Schulich School of Business at York University in Canada,
an MSc Systems Engineering & Engineering Management degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a BSc Finance
degree from the City University of Hong Kong. He also holds the
designations of Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), Financial Risk
Manager (FRM), Certified Private Wealth Professional (CPWP) and
Certified International Wealth Manager (CIWM).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive directors (Continued)

Mr. Leung Tsz Wing, aged 36, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 November 2018. He is also a
chairman of the audit committee of the Company, a member
of each of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He is currently the Managing
Partner of Avantfaire Investment Management Limited, a licensed
corporation authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission
conducting regulated activities of advising on securities and asset
management in Hong Kong. He started his career at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and he has also been taking up the senior
positions in various SFC licensed corporations, listed companies,
family office and private equity fund. He has over 14 vyears
of experience in direct investment, private equity, fund raising
and financial reporting. He obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Accounting & Finance) from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2009 and
a fellow member since 2016. He also holds Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA) designation.

Mr. Zhang Guozhi, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2019. He is also a chairman
of the nomination committee of the Company, a member of each
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. He graduated from Renmin University of China and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law in 1991. He served as a legal
consultant in Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. He
also served as a manager in Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance
Limited. He was also a partner of Guangdong Jiangshanhong Law
Firm* (B3 )T ILUZ=EAIEFFT). He is currently a senior partner
of Dentons Law Offices, LLP* (KA BNE 75 FT). He specializes
in overseas listing of enterprises, foreign investment, mergers and
acquisitions.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENGAREEEBR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Kon Ting, aged 40, is the Contracts Manager of the
Group, responsible for implementation of works and the overall
management of contracts. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Civil and Structural Engineering in November 2001 from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and Degree of Master
of Science in Engineering (Infrastructure Project Management) from
The University of Hong Kong in November 2014. He is a Chartered
Engineer of Engineering Council, United Kingdom and a corporate
member of the Institution of Civil Engineers and the HKIE as well
as a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil). He has over 11 years of
experience in the construction of roads and utilities works, landslip
prevention, waterworks and building works. He is also a Tutor for
Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training (Scheme A) for
graduate engineers.

Mr. Wong Kin Sang, aged 40, is the Project Manager of the
Group, responsible for all activities on site to ensure the efficient
running of a project and effective use of resources. Mr. Wong
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Civil and Structural Engineering in
November 2002 from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a corporate member of the HKIE. He has over
11 years of experience in the construction of waterworks, roads
and utilities works, landslip prevention and building works. He is
also a Tutor for Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training
(Scheme A) for graduate engineers.

Mr. Wong Kin Yan, aged 50, is the Environmental and Quality
Manager of the Group, responsible for the implementation
and maintenance of our Group's environmental and quality
management systems. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Applied Science in December 1994 from Hong Kong Baptist
University. He is a Chartered Environmentalist and a corporate
member of the Society of Environmental Engineers. He has over 16
years of experience in the environmental and quality management
in the construction field. He is the Management Representative
of Excel’s ISO 9001 Quality Management System and ISO 14001
Environmental Management System.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 December 2013, the date on
which dealings in its shares first commence on the Stock Exchange.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code with the following
exception:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Company has not appointed the
chairman and chief executive officer, and the roles and functions
of the chairman and chief executive officer have been performed
by all the executive Directors collectively. On 5 February 2020, Mr.
Artem Matyushok was appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company. The Company is looking for suitable candidates to
fill the vacancy of the chairman of the Company, and will issue a
further announcement as and when appropriate.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code requires that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors have not been appointed for any specific terms
as they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.
Since the Company has not appointed a chairman of the Board
for the year ended 31 December 2019, no chairman of the Board
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on 12
June 2019 (the 2019 AGM"), and other members of the Board
(including executive Directors, the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and the members
of the Nomination Committee) attended the 2019 AGM to ensure
effective communication with the shareholders of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors, as equal
board members, should give the board and any committees on
which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. They should also attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
One independent non-executive Director was unable to attend the
2019 AGM due to his business commitment. Nevertheless, two other
independent non-executive Directors attended the 2019 AGM to
ensure a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code requires that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Mr. Xing
Bin, an executive Director, was first appointed as a Director at a
meeting of the Board held on 11 September 2015 and was re-
elected as a Director at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 23 August 2016. In accordance with the CG Code, Mr.
Xing should have been subject to retirement at the 2019 AGM.
However, the Company inadvertently did not notice the status of
Mr. Xing's directorship. As a result, Mr. Xing did not retire at the
2019 AGM and has continued to act as a Director and his name has
continued to appear on the register of directors of the Company
as a Director since the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. In order to
rectify the non-compliance with the CG Code, the Company hold
a Board meeting to confirm the appointment of Mr. Xing as a
Director to remove any doubt of Mr. Xing's status as a Director
and Mr. Xing shall be re-elected as a Director at the next general
meeting of the Company. A Board meeting from which Mr. Xing
has abstained from attending and voting was held on 10 February
2019 and the Board has confirmed the appointment of Mr. Xing
as a Director. An extraordinary general meeting is convened to
consider and to approve the re-election of Mr. Xing as an executive
Director.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices

to ensure they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest
developments.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting the required
standard set out in the model code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company has made specific
enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-compliance with the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors
confirmed their respective full compliance with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2019.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance of the Group. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Board Composition
From 1 January 2019 to the date of this report:

(i)  Mr. Chan Kai Wing has resigned as the independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee and the member
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 28
February 2019;
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(x)

Mr. Zhang Guozhi has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee with effect from 28
February 2019;

Mr. Leung Tsz Wing has been appointed as the chairman of
the Audit Committee with effect from 28 February 2019;

Mr. Wong Hin Shek has resigned as a non-executive Director
with effect from 12 April 2019;

Mr. Yip Tai Him has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and the member of each of the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee with effect from 12 April 2019;

Mr. Ip Mei Shun has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee with effect from 12 April
2019;

Mr. Lam Wah was re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director with effect from 31 August 2019;

Mr. Liu Wengang was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 1 November 2019;

Mr. Artem Matyushok was appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 5 February 2020; and

Mr. Brett Ashley Wight was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 5 February 2020.

As at the date of this report, the Board is composed of eight

Directors,
Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

including four executive Directors, one non-executive
The

biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 33 to 38 of this annual report.
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Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following confirmations
from the Directors, there was no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e)
and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors. Having considered the guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation on
independence as required under the Listing Rules; (ii) the absence
of involvement in the daily management of the Company; (iii)
the absence of any relationships or circumstances which would
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment; and (iv)
the absence of remuneration from the Company other than the
directors’ fee.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. All Directors have separate and independent
access to the advices and services of the senior management
and the company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.
When needed and upon making request to the Board, the
independent non-executive Directors may obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense in carrying out their
duties. Saved as disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report, there
are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) among members of the Board.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has not
appointed a chairman and chief executive officer, and the roles and
functions of the chairman and chief executive officer have been
performed by all the executive Directors collectively.

On 5 February 2020, Mr. Artem Matyushok was appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Company is looking
for suitable candidates to fill the vacancy of the chairman of the
Company, and will issue a further announcement as and when
appropriate.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional

Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company continuously updates the Directors
on the Group’s businesses and the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

According to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. The
Company has requested from each director and maintained their
records of training received during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors pursued
continuous professional development and relevant details are set

out below:

Name of Director

Esns
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ARSI AmT
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REE-T-NF+_A=+—HLFE "
FMEEFEEHA2ARESEER

PZALRE

Types of training
=B

Executive Directors
Mr. Artem Matyushok

(appointed on 5 February 2020)
Mr. Brett Ashley Wight

(appointed on 5 February 2020)
Mr. Liu Wengang

(appointed on 1 November 2019)
Mr. Xing Bin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Wah (re-designated from executive
Director to non-executive Director on
31 August 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ip Mei Shun (appointed on 12 April 2019)

Mr. Leung Tsz Wing
Mr. Zhang Guozhi
(appointed on 28 February 2019)

Remarks:
A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums

B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

BITES

Artem Matyushok 5t 4
(R—E-_ZTFE_ARAAEERT)

Brett Ashley Wight %t 4
(RZZEZZTF_ARAEZMT)

21 32l % A
(RZZE-NF+—-—R—BEZE)

& &

FHTEES

MREE ST
(R=F—-hFENA=1+—H
HRTESHIRIENTES)

BIKPTES
5 5 I8 56 2
(R=B—AFMA+T-AEER)
RTHRE
o5 5

(R—EBE—NF-_A-+\BEZMT)

s

Not applicable
N iE A

Not applicable
N iE A

B

’

A—HERSTE & WiE
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, which does not specify any fixed term of service and may
be terminated by either party giving to the other not less than one-
month prior notice in writing. They are also subject to retirement
and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

According to the Articles, the Board has the power at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Director. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election. Besides, at every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession planning
of Directors.
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Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four regular board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of majority of Directors, either
in person or through electronic means of communication.

The Company convened and held 19 Board meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Additional Board meetings will be convened, as and when required,
to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is not able to present
physically may participate at any Board meeting through electronic
means of communication, such as conference telephone or other
similar communication equipment, in accordance with the Articles.

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14
days in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board
meetings and committee meetings. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman and the executive Director(s) to prepare the meeting
notice and agenda. Each Director may include any item in the
agenda. Save for urgent matters which require the Board's or a
committee’s immediate attention and therefore lead to a short
notice of a meeting, the agenda, accompanied by meeting papers
with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each Director
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting
to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on the matters
to be discussed.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes will normally be circulated to Directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, 19 Board meetings, 3 REZ-"ZT—NF+_-_A=+—HILtFE -
Audit Committee meetings, 6 Remuneration Committee meetings, HE{TthAEFEE@FE  —XAFEXELE
5 Nomination Committee meetings and one general meeting were &% NAFMEESCH - AXIRSA
held. Details of individual Directors’ attendance at these meetings ZE&@ @@ N —ABREAE - BEEARE
are set out in the following table: EHRZEERNFRHINTR:

Attended/Eligible to attend
BHERH AHERY

Audit  Remuneration  Nomination

Board  Committee Committee  Committee General
Name of Director meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
E3g ENRZEE FHEEE REZEE
EEps 2% L L g% RRKg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Artem Matyushok Artem Matyushok%i N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 5 February 2020) (R-FE-FFE-FRAEZF) TEA TEA TiEA TEA TEA
Mr. Brett Ashley Wight Brett Ashley Wight %t 4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 5 February 2020) (R-FE-FFE-FRAEZF) TEA TEA TiEA TEA TEA
Mr. Liu Wengang 21 Cm 5 A 212 N/A N/A N/A 0/0
(appointed on 1 November 2019)  (R=ZF—NF+—H—HEZF) TEA TiEA TEA
Mr. Xing Bin & 5 & 18/19 N/A N/A N/A 17
TER TER TER
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Lam Wah HWERE 18/18 N/A N/A N/A 171
TER TER TER
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TBELEE 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/0
(resigned on 12 April 2019) (R=ZF-NFEMA+ZHFE) i i F T
Independent non-executive BYKHTES
Directors
Mr. Ip Mei Shun EE|ELAE 13/14 22 3/3 3/3 7
(appointed on 12 April 2019) (R=ZF-NFERATZHEZH)
Mr. Leung Tsz Wing RFREE 17119 2/3 5/6 5/6 11
Mr. Zhang Guozhi i L 16/17 212 5/5 5/5 0N
(appointed on 28 February 2019)  (R=F—N#=HA=-+/\AE)
Mr. Chan Kai Wing 5 E Sl 212 0/0 17 11 0/0
(resigned on 28 February 2019) (R=F—-HFMA+-HFT)
Mr. Ip Tai Him REBEER=ZF-—NF 3/5 0N 2/3 173 0/0
(resigned on 12 April 2019) ZAZF/\AEZE)
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.
(excluding the Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
included in note 10 to the financial statements.

Remuneration paid to the senior management

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company purchases annually the Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for members of the Board. The insurance cover
is reviewed annually to ensure that the Directors and officers are
adequately protected against potential liabilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules
3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

As at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee was made up of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Tsz
Wing (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ip Mei Shun and
Mr. Zhang Guozhi. Mr. Leung Tsz Wing was the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. Mr. Leung Tsz Wing is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and holds Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA) designation, and therefore possesses the
appropriate accounting qualifications and experiences in financial
matters.
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice annually and also meets
with the Company’s external auditor at least twice annually to
discuss the audit plan and to review the Company’s annual report
and accounts. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee held 3 meetings.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but not limited

to:

50

make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of the resignation or the
dismissal of that auditor;

review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
and reporting obligations in accordance with applicable
standards;

discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

monitor the integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgements contained
in them;

review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in

confidence to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters;
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o review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

o discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duties to have
an effective internal control system;

o review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

o review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response.

Audit Committee also reviewed final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019 as well as the
audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting
issues and major findings in course of audit.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in compliance with
Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision B.1.2
of the CG Code. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’'s website and the
Company'’s website.

As at 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee was made
up of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ip
Mei Shun (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Leung
Tsz Wing and Mr. Zhang Guozhi. Mr. Ip Mei Shun was the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to review
the remuneration of Directors and make recommendations to the
Board. During the year ended 31 December 2019, 6 meetings of
the Remuneration Committee were held.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
not limited to:

o make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management;

o determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management;

o review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office; and

. review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in compliance with
Code Provision A.5.1 and A.5.2 of the CG Code. The full terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

As at 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee was made up
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang
Guozhi (chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Ip Mei Shun
and Mr. Leung Tsz Wing. Mr. Zhang Guozhi was the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, 6 meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but not
limited to:

o review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations to the Board in order
to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board,;
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o To review the policy concerning diversity of the Board as
appropriate, to review the measurable objectives set for
implementing the board diversity policy and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives, and to disclose the
review results in the annual corporate governance report.

o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.
In identifying suitable candidates, a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs will be considered, including but not
limited to gender, age, culture, race, educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills;

o assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

o make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors; and

o conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
the Listing Rules or applicable law.

NOMINATION POLICY
The Board has adopted a nomination policy. A summary of this
policy is disclosed as below.

1. Criteria
The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall consider
the following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates
for directorships:

o Character and integrity.
o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,

knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy.
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o Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships and
significant commitments.

o Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules (as
amended from time to time) and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

o Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Company for achieving diversity on the
Board.

o Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

Nomination Process

Appointment of New Director

o The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out in section 1 to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

o If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable).

° The Nomination Committee shall make recommendation

to the Board in respect of the appointment of
appropriate candidate for directorship.
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o For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out in section 1 to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship and where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

o The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director including his/her
attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and the level of participation and
performance on the Board.

° The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall also
review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out in section 1.

o The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then
make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to strengthen the business development of the Company,
enhancement of the effectiveness and performance of the Board
are the fundamental and vital elements. The Company believes
that diversity at the Board level can intensify these fundamental
elements. The Board diversity shall consider from, including but
not limited to, age, gender, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All the
appointments of the Board members shall be based on the positive
contribution to be brought by the proposed candidate to the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its affiliated companies of the

group.
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It is set out below a list of measurable objectives for selection
of candidates. The list is only an indication of factors relevant to
the selection of candidates to be considered by the Nomination
Committee and shall not be regarded as conclusive nor exhaustive
in nature. Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee may
take into account and/or further adopt and/or weight against one
another such factor(s) relevant to the business to be transacted.

Age: 18 or over.

Gender: Welcome both genders with no preference for any
particular proportion.

Professional qualification: At least one independent non-
executive Director shall possess appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Composition: One third of the Board or minimum three
members shall be independent non-executive Directors to
meet the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Service period: Independent non-executive Directors’ tenure
(as at the date of re-appointment) could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive Directors’ independence.
Re-appointment of independent non-executive Director
serving more than 9 years should be in full compliance with
the Listing Rules requirements.

Other experience: Knowledge and experience which may
contribute to the business of the Company.

Any other relevant factors

As at the date of this report,

56

four Directors were within the age range of 30-39, three
Directors were within the age range of 40-49, and one
Director was within the age range of 50-59;

eight Directors were male and nil Director was female;
two Directors possessed appropriate professional

qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the
requirements of the Listing Rules;
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° three Directors, being over one third of the Board, were
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules;

° four Directors served the Board for less than one year, three
Directors served the Board for over one year but less than
two years, and one Director served the Board for over four
years but less than five years;

o all Directors contributed to the business of the Company with
their own knowledge and experience.

The Nomination Committee acknowledged that there was an
imbalance between the male and female Directors. Consideration
of such fact would be taken into account for selection and
appointment of future candidates.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the
development and review of the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group and monitoring the compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing the corporate governance compliance
with the Code Provisions and disclosure in the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Board is provided with explanations and
information by the senior management of the Company, so that
the Directors have an informed assessment of the financial and
other information of the Group putting forward to the Board for
discussion and approval.

The external auditor of the Company acknowledges his reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 as set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 103 to 113 of the annual
report.

Governance Report
TtEERERE

e RELTRA =2EF(BBE=F
EREANBN=02)RBIAL:

s MEBEZFREFELBIMF =
FEEREEFSEREMFELRN
2F R RESREFTELRES
AR DR5F

e 2REFTFHEHEASNIBRER
RARRAEBELER -

REZEEAR  EFBLTY - £HE
REERREKEAGHEERE—FE -

EEERBE

E=28 8 (AR HE e ANEE
ZEFREBBRRRER  URERETX
BREERTEZEN BIRERESERK
EREEBZBIIREERRERE AR
BMEERERARAN A TAHRX LR F
WIEHEE

EEFHVYBRRNVMBRBREL

EEPANSEEIUSELSE EER
AR RAGSEBREZE-_T—NLF+H
=t+t—HEFEZUB®REX  UEEAER
Tt RBEARRRANEBR Z FBARR - B
FEREARFEREEERHITARE
B UEEERREEETSTmAIEN
REBE G B R EMERERNERNTMG -

RRB) 2 9N 1z BB £ AN F R £ 103E 113
BENBUZBMRET  HERSEHEA
ECE-NFFTRA=T-HILEFEHH
WERNBIL XA R ENRBEE -

Annual Report 2019 ZZF — N F F R 57



Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRSE

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditor, Zenith CPA
Limited, is set out below:

B AT &
BE-Z-NF+-A=+—ALFE"
AR R B KBRS SIS % B D 35 2 & 216
EBRBERARANMS T :

HK$'000
FERT

Audit service 1% IR 7%

No non-audit services have been provided by the Company’s
external auditor, Zenith CPA Limited, for the year ended 31
December 2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound risk management
and internal control systems to ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group has been conducted at least annually, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and ensuring adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programs.

The Company conducted review of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019, in order to ensure and enhance (i) proper
process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks;
(i) main features of the risk management and internal control
systems were identified; (iii) the systems were designed to manage
the risks to achieve business objectives and provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss; (iv) appropriate
process to resolve material and (v)
effective procedures and internal controls for inside information
management. The Company has conducted a review of the internal
audit function of the Group.

internal control defects;
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The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group annually and considered
that the systems were appropriate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 31 August 2019, Mr. Lam Wah resigned as the company
secretary of the Company, and Mr. Zhou Danging was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Zhou Danging has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking relevant
professional training.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely disclosure
of information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company reviewed and
updated its policy for communication with its shareholders and
investor relations.

The various channels via which the Company communicates with
its shareholders include interim and annual reports, information
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, annual
general meeting and other general meeting that may be convened.
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

60

The right to attend the annual general meeting and

to receive information

The annual general meeting of the Company provides
opportunity for shareholders to communicate directly with
the Directors. The Chairman and the chairman of the Board
committees will attend the annual general meeting to
answer shareholders’ questions. In their absence, he should
invite another member of the committee or failing this his
duly appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should
be available to answer questions at the annual general
meeting. The chairman of the independent board committee
(if any) should also be available to answer questions at any
general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that requires independent shareholders’
approval. The external auditor of the Company will also
attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and contents of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

Copies of the reporting documents,
statements, the Directors’

including financial
report and the auditor’s report
must be sent to members at least 21 working days before
the annual general meeting of the Company.

The right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionists by the Company.
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The voting powers at the shareholders’ meetings
Every shareholder has the right to vote at the shareholders
meetings subject to provisions on the Articles.

The power to elect and re-elect Directors and
auditors

The shareholders could hold individual Directors (or the Board
as a whole) to account for their actions by voting against
their re-election. The Articles provides at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of 3, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

For the Directors to retire by rotation, and if they wish, they
may submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible for reappointment
to the office.

The shareholders also have the right to approve (or reject) the
appointment of the auditors each year. The Company may by
an ordinary resolution passed at a general meeting remove
a person from the office of auditor despite any agreement
between the person and the Company or anything in the
Articles.

The right to receive information of the Company
The Company shall keep shareholders informed of certain
developments and to obtain shareholder approval for certain
transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules. In these
cases, the Company must communicate with its shareholders
and seek their support.

The right to communicate with the Company

The Chairman or the executive Director should ensure that the
views of the shareholders are communicated to the Board as
a whole and the Chairman or the executive Director should
discuss strategy and governance with the major shareholders.

Non-executive Directors should be given the opportunity to
attend general meetings with major shareholders, and should
be expected to attend general meetings if requested by major
shareholders.
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CONSTRUCTIVE USE OF GENERAL MEETINGS
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Effectiveness of general meetings

Shareholders should be given the opportunity to send in
written questions before the meeting. There should be a
circulation of a brief summary of points raised at the annual
general meeting to all shareholders after the event. The Board
should dispatch a circular accompanying the annual general
meeting notice, which contains comprehensive information on
the business to be transacted at the meeting, together with
summary procedure governing voting at the annual general
meeting and frequently asked questions regarding voting
procedures.

The Company should arrange for the notice of the annual
general meeting and the related papers to be sent to the
shareholders at least 21 working days before the meeting.
For other general meetings this should be at least 14 working
days in advance.

Giving shareholders an opportunity to ask

questions

The Chairman should attend the annual general meeting. He/
she should also invite the chairmen of the audit, nomination
and remuneration committees and any other committees (as
appropriate) to be available to answer questions at the annual
general meeting. In addition, independent non-executive
Directors and other non-executive Directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders.

Voting procedure

At any general meeting, the Company proposes a separate
resolution on each substantially separate issue and in
particular proposes a resolution at the annual general
meeting relating to the report and accounts. For each
resolution,
shareholders with the option to direct their proxy to vote
either for or against the resolution or to withhold their vote.

proxy appointment forms should provide

Bisu Technology Group International Limited tb i Fl & £ B B R A R A A

ERUENBRRRE

BRRREHERME
BREARENBRKRGAAETE
FARM RERBFAEIR JE
EERRBERGLAMBERE D #
RUHRE BEEGRFTERRBSF
TREILBE ETHAG L
BREFEENZEER  ERERE
FRAELRRBENBERFALK
RREFHNELBE -

ARRELERBHARRASHE
AMETEB MR R X ERF
AREeBMREEXH - - BREMEK
RAEHEZLVRINAETIIEREH
BA

BRREKERER

EFEETFRRLERRBFERS
THFERZES RHZEE®-
FMEZEeEMABEZES (R
EERME)NEIFERRBFAS
LEIERER o BIFATE
ENEMIERTESREERRA
T HERNEERARLENTH -

RREF

EEMERRASL  ARBAREER
ERBUNEEBEMNRBLEESR XL
HEEBRRBAFAS LR BELE
BIREORER - LBRRERME -
XERRZERBERBREMHRE
ARETREZXZRRREEK
HIREZRARLERE -



Corporate Governance Report

At any general meeting there should also be a separate
resolution to each substantially separate issue. The Company
should avoid “bundling” resolutions unless they are
interdependent and linked forming one significant proposal.
Where the resolutions are “bundled”, the Company should
explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of
meeting.

In the context of voting by proxy and poll results, the
Company should ensure that all valid proxy appointments
received are properly recorded and counted. For each
resolution, after a vote has been taken, except where taken
on a poll, the Company should ensure that the following
information is given at the meeting and made available
as soon as reasonably practicable on a website which is
maintained by or on behalf of the company.

The Company should announce the poll results as soon as
possible and at least 30 minutes before the commencement
of the Exchange’'s morning session or any pre-opening
session on the business day following the general meeting.
The poll results announcement must include: the number of
shares entitling the holder to attend and vote at the general
meeting; shares entitling the holder to attend and abstain
from voting in favour; shares of holders that are required
under the Listing Rules to abstain from voting; shares actually
voted for a resolution and shares actually voted against a
resolution.

SHAREHOLDERS' ENQUIRES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East,
Hong Kong.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make
a request for the Company’s publicly available information. The
designated contacts and addresses to enable them to make query
in respect of the company are:

Contact: the Board of Directors

Address: Room 1001, 10/F, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3728 8710
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).
A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders
by way of cash or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in recommending
in the
Company'’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company to

dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate

retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s decision
to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of
such dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current
and future operations, financial condition, liquidity position and
capital requirements of the Group, as well as dividends received
from the Company’s subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will
depend on the ability of those subsidiaries and associates to pay
a dividend. In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will
be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. The declaration
and payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the laws of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong
Kong, the Company’s article of association and any applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on
the financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will
continue to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and
the Board may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems
fit and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or paid in any particular amount for any given period.
The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that any dividend will be paid in
any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no amendment made to the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2019. The latest version of the constitutional documents of the
Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company’s principal
subsidiaries were engaged in the business of (i) development,
production and sale of automotive engines; and (ii) civil engineering
works and building construction and maintenance.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 114 to 115 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred during the year
ended 31 December 2019, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, are set out in the “Director’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. A description of principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group is also set out in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group’s commitment to protecting the environment is well
reflected by its continuous efforts in promoting green measures
its daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
also implements green office practices such as promoting the use
of recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by switching
off idle lighting and electrical appliances.

and awareness in

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses and enhance
environmental sustainability.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the current financial year, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact
on the business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that employees are valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, senior management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
when appropriate. During the current financial year, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its business
partners.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five period/years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 236 in this report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION, CONVERTIBLE
BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTES

Details of movements in the Company's share capital, share
options, convertible bonds and the promissory notes during the
year are set out in notes 26, 27, 29 and 30 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as disclosed in the below
section headed “Share Option Scheme” and the section headed
“Convertible Bonds” of “Management Discussion and Analysis”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the largest customer accounted for approximately 42.5% (2018:
approximately 22.3%) of the Group’s total revenues. The five
largest customers accounted for approximately 98.8% (2018:
approximately 74.7%) of the Group’s total revenues for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

For the Automotive Engines Business, the customer base is relatively
concentrated to certain private companies in China. The largest
customer was engaged in this segment.

For the Civil Engineering and Construction Business, the customer
base is relatively concentrated to certain departments of the
Government, public utilities companies and private organisations in
Hong Kong.

None of the Directors or their respective associates or any
Shareholder (to the knowledge of our Directors) holding more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the
five largest customers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)
The Group’s five largest suppliers, being its suppliers for
Automotive Engines Business and sub-contractors for Civil
Engineering and Construction segment, together accounted for
approximately 71.6% (2018: approximately 46.6%) of the Group's
total cost of sales charged to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019. The largest supplier accounted for approximately
38.5% (2018: approximately 20.7%) of the total cost of sales
charged to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Other than as set out in the paragraph above, none of the Directors
or their associates or any Shareholders (to the knowledge of our
Directors) holding more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any interests in the five largest sub-contractors.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company had no reserve available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares to existing
Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s listed
securities.

68 Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A

FEEFRMERE)
HEZZT-hWhF+A=1+—HLEFE"
REBRAHEER BN/ B R ERH
EEktTARIEBRBZES S BH) AL
HAREEZNHEEKR TN EBENTI6% (=
T—N\F:4466%)  BE-_ZT—ILF+
ZA=T—BLFE ZAEEBEASE
B ER AR L38.5% (ZT—\
F 1 #920.7%) °

PR EERFTESIES  BIEmEEXHEESE
E’JH BASBEEMANEAEARREET

RAS% A FREMBRRERAERARD B
B AREAT LR -

ME - BMERERE
AEERBE_ZE-NFT-A=+—H

LEFEANYE  BERREZBFIEH
R HHRAME14 -

i 8
AEERBE_T-hF+-_A=+—H
tif?ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%{%;@afrl FNREED
i*iib%

A 7 K i e
RZFE-NF+-_A=+—H ARAYL

EEAAEIKTERRERORHEE( TN
FrE) o

BrRBEE

40 1) o AN A R RE AR ST FTE ) B 8 B B0k
P TRAE M E R EXREARABE
FREPIMBERRR2BENRY -

i 18 Rl &
AR BT HERREFERRR LT E
%S E[BERR -



Report of the Directors
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERRARORAEBRRGHRE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES =

As at the date of this Annual Report, the following interests of 5% HRAFRABLH - ARAREZFEL B EK
or more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded  ff] 55336 {5 17 & #9 1 25 & 0 fit BT a2 8% 165 4K
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company RAIEEITRAS% KA FMEZEIT
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the issued shares/underlying shares of RAATERHITRG HERHG KT

the Company v}
Approximate
Number of  percentage of
ordinary shares/ issued share
underlying capital of the
Name of shareholders Notes Nature of interest shares held Company
FEHEEER GHEQTRACSRT
e ] it & ERnME JHBRNEBEE RAMAYTIHL
Mr. Jiang Jianhui (a) Interest in a controlled corporation 150,000,000 75.0%
EEBELYE (a) SEEEER
Youth Force Asia Ltd (a) Beneficial owner 150,000,000 75.0%
Youth Force Asia Ltd (@) EnBEBEA
Mr. Arrab Chalid (b) Interest in a controlled corporation 195,000,000 97.5%
Arrab Chalid %€ & (b) S EE RS
LE Group Holdings Pte Ltd (b) Beneficial owner 195,000,000 97.5%
LE Group Holdings Pte Ltd (b) ExBEBA
Notes: M 5E -

(@) Youth Force Asia Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr. Jiang Jianhui. As such, (@)  Youth Force Asia LtdiliEZBHLEEE

Mr. Jiang Jianhui is deemed to be interested in the 150,000,000 A Al ZXRERBEZFHFRBAERK
shares owned by Youth Force Asia Ltd by virtue of the SFO. 19 %% 18 & 7 Youth Force Asia Ltd A& &Y

150,000,000% B P A #E x5 ©

(b)  On 3 February 2020, the Company received a duly-executed (b)) R-_ZT-_FTE_-F=H AQXFTHRITE

transfer notice from Power Expert Global Limited to transfer all REBBRARAKIEARAFREETEAS
convertible bonds, in the principal amount of HK$390,000,000 /4$390,000,0007% T #) & &6 7] #2 f% (& 5
issued by the Company, to LE Group Holdings Pte Ltd. LE Group #% TLE Group Holdings Pte Ltd Hy%
Holdings Pte Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr. Arrab Chalid. As such, BN ZEBEA o LE Group Holdings
Mr. Arrab Chalid is deemed to be interested in the 195,000,000 Pte Ltdf Arrab Chalidc £ & B A -
underlying shares through its interests in the convertible bonds, in U - BREBEES LB GHEA - Arrab Chalid
the principal amount of HK$390,000,000 issued by the Company, EEWRRREBRBERETRAIBSEITAS
owned by LE Group Holdings Pte Ltd by virtue of the SFO. ¥ /390,000,000 ;T 2 A] ] R & H 2

# 28 PALE Group Holdings Pte Ltd# B =
195,000,000 % 48 B i fh R HE A #E 25 o
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum
public float under the Listing Rules.

HIGH CONCENTRATION OF SHAREHOLDING

On 10 May 2019, the Securities and Futures Commission (the
“SFC") published an announcement on its website, informing the
public that the SFC had recently completed an enquiry into the
shareholding of the Company. The SFC's findings suggested that as
at 23 April 2019, a group of 19 Shareholders held an aggregate of
31,154,000 Shares, representing 15.6% of the issued Shares. Such
shareholding, together with 150,000,000 Shares (representing
75.0% of the issued Shares) held by the controlling shareholder
of the Company, represented 90.6% of the issued Shares as at 23
April 2019. Therefore, only 18,846,000 Shares (representing 9.4%
of the issued Shares) were held by other shareholders.

In view of the high concentration of shareholding in a small number
of Shareholders, Shareholders and prospective investors should be
aware that the price of the Shares could fluctuate substantially even
with a small number of Shares traded, and should exercise extreme
caution when dealing in the Shares. Further, as a result of high
concentration of shareholding, the Company’s securities may not
have a genuine market or its shareholding may have concentrated
in the hands of a few Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date

of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Artem Matyushok (appointed on 5 February 2020)

Mr. Brett Ashley Wight (appointed on 5 February 2020)
Mr. Liu Wengang (appointed on 1 November 2019)
Mr. Xing Bin

Mr. Lam Wah (re-designated from executive Director to
non-executive Director on 31 August 2019)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Wah (re-designated from executive Director to
non-executive Director on 31 August 2019)

Mr. Wong Hin Shek (resigned on 12 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ip Mei Shun (appointed on 12 April 2019)

Mr. Leung Tsz Wing

Mr. Zhang Guozhi (appointed on 28 February 2019)

Mr. Chan Kai Wing (resigned on 28 February 2019)

Mr. Yip Tai Him (resigned on 12 April 2019)
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS
From 1 January 2019 to the date of this Annual Report:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

72

Mr. Chan Kai Wing has resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee and the member
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 28
February 2019;

Mr. Zhang Guozhi has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee with effect from 28
February 2019;

Mr. Leung Tsz Wing has been appointed as the chairman of
the Audit Committee with effect from 28 February 2019;

Mr. Wong Hin Shek has resigned as a non-executive Director
with effect from 12 April 2019;

Mr. Yip Tai Him has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and the member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee with effect from 12 April 2019;

Mr. Ip Mei Shun has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee with effect from 12 April
2019;

Mr. Lam Wah was re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director with effect from 31 August 2019;
Mr. Liu Wengang was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 1 November 2019;

Mr. Artem Matyushok was appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect

from 5 February 2020; and

Mr. Brett Ashley Wight was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 5 February 2020.
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REASONS RELATED TO THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
GIVEN BY A DIRECTOR FOR RESIGNATION OR
NOT SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2019, all directors who resigned
or did not seek re-appointment confirmed that there was no reason
related to the Company's affairs.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Latest biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in Director and Senior Management
Biographies of this Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Biographies”, there was no change in
information of the Directors and chief executives of the Company up
to the date of this Annual Report of the Company which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Board has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities transactions.
The Company had made specific enquiry of all Directors regarding
any non-compliance with the Model Code for the period under
review, and they all have confirmed their respective full compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities & Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he was deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, directly or indirectly,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the

either in any transactions,
Group to which the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no Director was
interested in any business apart from the Company’s business,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the Company’s business which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
The Company has received, from each independent non-executive
Director, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of Directors and senior management are
recommended by the remuneration committee and determined by
taking into consideration of their duties and responsibilities with the
Company, the market rate and their time, effort and expertise to

be input into the Group’s affairs and the Company’s performance.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest

paid individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
24 March 2016, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of the share option scheme of the Company (the
“Scheme”). The relevant listing approval was granted by the Stock
Exchange on 29 March 2016. A summary of the principal terms of
the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Company.

Participants

The eligible participant(s) of the Scheme is/are full time or part time
employees of the Group (including any directors, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the Group);
and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents
or representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or
licensors, customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the
Group or any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has

contributed or may contribute to the Group.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted at any time under this Scheme
together with options which may be granted under any other share
option schemes for the time being of the Company shall not exceed
such number of Shares as equals 10 per cent of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of approval of the Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participants (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1 per cent of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Option period

The option period of the Scheme, in respect of any particular
option, the period to be determined and notified by the Directors
to the grantee thereof at the time of making an offer provided
that such period shall not exceed the period of ten (10) years from
the date of the grant of the particular option but subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof contained herein.

Acceptance of offer

Any offer of the option of the Company may be accepted by
an eligible participant in the duplicate letter of option grant
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such
eligible participant and received by the Company together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof within twenty-one (21) days
from the offer date.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined at the discretion of the
Board at its absolute discretion, provided that it shall be not less
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date, which must be a Business Day; (b) the
average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown in the daily
guotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five (5) Business
Days immediately preceding the offer date; (c) the nominal value
of the Share on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 29 March 2016 to offer the grant of an option to
any eligible participant. The Scheme will expire on 28 March 2026.

Number of share options
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2019 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or his/her spouse or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED AND/OR

RELATED PARTIES

On 15 April 2019, Global Harvset Inc (@ wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into an agreement with Mr. Jiang Jianhui
(the controlling Shareholder), for the purchase of 100% of the
total issued shares of Links Wonder Investment Holdings Limited
(“Links Wonder"”). The target group held a permit by the relevant
government authority of Yunnan Province, the PRC, for industrial
hemp processing for up to the production capacity of 50 tonnes
of cannabidiol.

On 6 May 2019, Xingyu Keji (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (£
B CRID BRAR], a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into an agreement with Mr. Jiang Jianhui
(the controlling Shareholder), for the purchase of 60% of the
total issued shares of Qiubei Woma Agricultural Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Qiubei Woma"). The target company has certain binding
agreements with certain local farmers in the Yunnan Province,
the PRC, for the planting of the industrial hemp. Pursuant to the
planting agreements, the target company was to provide industrial
hemp seeds, training and technical support for the said local
farmers for planting and upon harvest, these local farmers were
obliged to sell the industrial hemp to the target company at a pre-
determined price.

As the abovementioned two transactions involved the same vendor
and formed a series of transactions conducted within the past
12-month period, they were required to be aggregated pursuant
to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. Upon aggregation, as all of
the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules)
were less than 5%
HK$3,000,000, the transactions were thus fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.

and the total consideration was less than

On 27 June 2019, the Group disposed of its interests in Links
Wonder and Qiubei Woma to an independent third party. No
material gain or loss was incurred for the Group in the acquisition
and disposal of Links Wonder and Qiubei Woma.

*  For identification purpose only
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TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED AND/OR
RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019,
approximately HK$29.7 million were provided to the Group for its
working capital. The shareholder loans were conducted on normal
commercial terms or better, and were not secured by the assets
of the Group.

shareholder loans amounted to

Save for disclosed, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2019.

More information about the transactions with related parties
are set out in note 38 to the financial results. None of these
related party transactions constitutes “connected transactions” or
“continuing connected transactions” as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and therefore there is no disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles and Code Provisions as set
out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, save as disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report”, the Company has
complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other significant
event after the reporting period and up to the date of this Annual
Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group,
discussed risk management, internal controls and financial reporting
matters and the consolidated results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019. As at the date of this Annual Report,
the Audit Committee comprises three members including Mr. Leung
Tsz Wing (Chairman), Mr. Ip Mei Shun and Mr. Zhang Guozhi all
being independent non-executive Directors.
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CHANGE OF AUDITOR IN ANY OF THE
PRECEDING THREE YEARS

On 14 December 2018, Ernst & Young (“EY") has resigned as the
auditor of the Company with effect from the same date, as the
Company and EY could not reach a consensus on the audit fee
for the year ending 31 December 2018. The Company appointed
Zenith CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 14 December 2018 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of EY.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been audited by Zenith CPA Limited.

Zenith CPA Limited shall
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Zenith
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

retire in the forthcoming annual

On behalf of the Board
Bisu Technology Group International Limited

Liu Wengang
Executive director

Hong Kong, 8 May 2020

80 Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A

RBE=ZFZREMEH

RZZE-N\F+-_A+HAE  HRARA
B KGRI ER AT (T2 oK) REEFLE R
TE-NFTA=+T-BLFEZEZ
BERERAE  LKDBERRAZEED
— B BRBAEM - ARFEEREHES
B AR s RUNCIVE RN R 8 2 4=l
B N\F+-AtHAEER A
LK EIERAERE =6

B BLEm
HEBFTMEHMBERRFCEREE
E-NEF+ A=+ "BLEFENGEANM
B«

HEGHENEBMER AR AR EREBRR
BFERELRE ANAEBLBEEER
B ARERHESFMELMARA
B A 82 B A BB AR 3 5 1 0 B JE ARUIR
BEAXSLERZ -

REEZFS
EENMNREEHBBRERAT

HITEE
2 3

EB —_E_TFHANAB



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

Bisu Technology Group Limited (“Bisu”
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as a limited
liability company. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1372). The Company with its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group” or “we") were engaged
in the business of (i) development, production and sale of
automotive engines (the “Automotive Engines Business”); and (ii)

International or the

Civil engineering works and building construction and maintenance
works (the “Civil Engineering and Construction Business”).

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
This is the fifth “Environmental,
Report” prepared by the Group. This report mainly outlines
report the Company’s
protection, social

Social and Governance
the commitments and strategies and
performance
responsibility and governance issues.

regarding environmental

SCOPE OF COVERAGE

This report outlines the environmental and social performance
of the Group’s core business segment operations. Our fourth
report with particular focus on impacts arising from the following
operation locations of the Group:

o Group's headquarter office in Hong Kong;

o Civil Engineering and Construction Business in Hong Kong;
and

Due to the delay in resumption of the operation of the Automotive
Engines Business in Chongging, the performance regarding
environmental protection, social responsibility and governance issue
of automotive engines production base in Chongging is excluded
in the scope.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Relevant disclosures of this report are prepared in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“Guide"”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities issued by the Stock Exchange. The content of this report
includes two main subject areas, being Area A — Environmental
and Area B — Social as required by the Guide.

TIME RANGE

This report is an annual report for the year from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group places high value on communication with stakeholders.
To ensure the Group to operate in a sustainable manner, we engage
our stakeholders regularly to understand the business impacts we
bring to them and how they expect us to tackle our impacts. Our
business activities involve a diverse range of stakeholders, including
but not limited to shareholders, investors, clients, employees,
contractors and suppliers. To understand their concerns, we
employ a multi-channel approach to gather feedback and strive
for continuous improvement. The information we gathered and
analyzed was not only the summary of the environmental and social
works carried out by the Group during 2019, but also the basis
for the Group to make strategies for sustainable development. The
following table summaries stakeholders’ participation channels and
their expectations and demands.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Shareholders and Investors  Clients

BEA EF

RE HERERKRE

EEAZ

%

E2 (4

it

)

B

Sub-contractors
and Suppliers
TEEREER

Employees

’E

Interests and concerns

Fl 25 2 B X

— Financial results — Sustainability performance — Career development — Corporate contribution

— MBEE ARBEERRR —BERER — HEENER

— Sustainability business — Robust project management — Health and safety — Product quality
development — BAMEEEE —RRRAT 2 —EmEE

— EBAREER — Full compliance with — Remuneration and benefits — Environmental responsibility

— Environmental responsibility requlations — iR — RERH

— REBEEM TEFEER — Sustainability development — Long-term partnership

— Company transparency — Quality product offerings ~ — A& %R — RPEGERE

— RAIERE — BENER — Ethical business practices

— Return on investment — Health and safety-Ethical —HEBERD

— REDRE marketing — Assessment criteria

— Corporate strategy and — REETPEESH — TEEE
governance

— EHBERE

— Risk management

— RERER

Actions and initiatives undertaken

KEMTEREE

— Organised the annual general — Received customer feedback — Conducted a regular — Closely Communicated with
meeting to engage with and continued to implement performance appraisals suppliers on safety and
shareholders a systematic approach — ETEMRRIZ environmental requirements

— EEBRR2EREEFAE  to ensure effective and — Frequent meetings — BREERRIFERKEME

— Published annual report, preventive actions are — BYgEER EEYER
interim report, Company taken for health, safety and — Training programs — Order/contract execution
announcements and circulars  product quality — #BIErE — 8 /AR

and other required disclosure — WEI B FREL #EE i
REHE - LERERB K
MEGEEARERE %

in a timely manner

— HIBFERE  PHEE -
ARAAEEBEHREME
LR R ENE R

— Conducted a review of the
Group's risk management
and internal control systems

— ERARENRREERA
e R

EhEREE

— Conducted regular onsite
and factory visits and
meeting

— BETEHRS R IME M

TEFRE®
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERHRE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT

We believe that the Group has a large part to play in protecting
the environment. We are committed to protecting the environment
and supporting sustainable development by conducting our
business in an environmentally responsible manner. We believe
that a successful environment management is important for us to
meet customers’ demand in environment protection and to ensure
healthy growth and sustainable development of our business.
Thus, we set and review environmental objectives from time to
time with a target to minimise our environmental footprints,
and seek for continuous improvement. All of our environmental
management policies were developed based on local requirements
and environmental standards.

Emission

During the current reporting year, the Group had not discovered
any cases of violation of the environmental laws and regulations.
The Group has adopted a series of environmental protection
policies and measures, regularly monitored and
to lay a solid foundation for green management,

which are
evaluated,
including:

Civil Engineering And Construction Business In Hong
Kong

Green Management

Environmental responsibility is an integral part of our construction
operations. We comply with relevant local laws and regulations to
ensure the environmental impacts arising from our business are
managed in a proper and responsible manner. Relevant laws and
regulations include:

— Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)

— Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)

— Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)

— Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400)

— Dumping at Sea Ordinance (Cap. 466)

— Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
Civil Engineering And Construction Business In Hong
Kong (Continued)

Green Management (Continued)

In addition, we are increasingly concentrating on the principles
of sustainable construction and have established a strong track
record in executing green building projects. Our environmental
management system was accredited I1SO 14001 certification.
Under its rigorous framework, we take a systematic approach to
managing our resources efficiency and emissions control in order
to drive continuous improvement. We place particular significance
on assessing our environmental data, such as energy and material
use, carbon emissions, water consumption and waste production.

Water Consumption Management
In respect of construction works, to conserve resources, the Group
continuously implement various measures including:

o Conversion & retrofitting of construction machine to fit into
different construction site;

o Compliance with the Code of Practice for Energy Efficiency
of Building Services Installation 2012 and the subsequent
amendment for Lighting, Air Conditioning, Electrical and Lift
Installations;

o Reuse of used timber in construction sites and recycling of
materials like metal parts, plastics and paper packaging; and

o Reuse treated construction wastewater for water spraying and
wheel washing when possible.

Noise Control Management

Noise is one of the material environmental aspects in the Group's
construction work operation. During construction, the operation of
machinery and equipment and the construction processes create
noise, which may affect the people nearby. In managing the impact
of construction noise on the surrounding environment, we strictly
adhere to relevant laws and regulations as well as the Noise Control
Ordinance and its established noise control guidelines for both
subcontractors and our employees to reduce the noise generated
from construction and controls the affecting areas of the noise.
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RE HERERHRE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
Civil Engineering And Construction Business In Hong
Kong (Continued)

Noise Control Management (Continued)

o Monitor noise intensity regularly and obtaining a valid
Construction Noise Permit (CNP) ahead of the construction
works especially for projects involving night-time works or
percussive piling to ensure compliance with the Noise Control
Ordinance.

o Well plan and improve construction processes to reduce
unnecessary knocking and cutting works.

o To lower noise level within an acceptable range, the number
and type of plant used are minimized and as required by law
we apply for Noise Emission Labels for air compressors and
handheld percussive breakers where appropriate.

o While observing the permit specifications, we also install
noise barriers to reduce the construction noise impact to
nearby noise sensitive receivers when necessary.

o Inspect and maintain all equipment in order to comply with
permitted noise level.

We regularly monitor the noise level at our construction sites
against the requirements and specifications of their respective
CNPs. In the reporting year, monitoring results of each site had
not exceeded the noise level limit set by the CNPs.

Management of Construction Waste

We are committed to preventing pollution and mitigating potential
environmental impacts arising from our projects and operation.
Throughout the current financial year, the Group did not produce
any hazardous waste. In managing construction waste, the possible
environmental impacts of waste generated during the course of its
operations such as site clearance, excavation works, construction
and fitting out works. Our objective is to promote the 3R policy,
i.e. reduce, reuse and recycle, and devote to prevent construction
waste from being disposed of in landfills. To mitigate environmental
impacts by adopting the right waste management strategy,
prioritizing avoidance and minimisation of waste generation, reuse
of materials, recovery and recycling. Waste treatment and disposal
are only the last resort. Specific measures include:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
Civil Engineering And Construction Business In Hong
Kong (Continued)

Management of Construction Waste (Continued)

o Formulating proper work plans and site management
practices to prevent over-ordering of materials and cross
contamination of reusable and recyclable materials to
minimized the waste;

o Reuse/recycle construction waste whenever possible;

o All construction wastes that could not be reuse/recycle are
minimised, transported and disposed of in environmental
friendly manners and in full compliance with statutory
requirements;

o Monitoring the performance of our subcontractors to ensure
their compliance with our environmental requirements;

o Both the Group and subcontractors carry out classified
collection and disposal of waste by segregating waste
materials into inert, non-inert and chemical waste;

o Construction inert waste is disposed to public fill for reuse,
while non-inert waste is reused and recycled by qualified
waste collectors;

o The common user disposal containers will be for the disposal
of controlled waste (i.e. non-hazardous industrial or special
waste) and will be situated in both the construction and site
establishment areas;

o Notice has been posted which clearly states which materials
can or cannot be disposed of through the common user
disposal skips; and

o Waste skips and other receptacles will be checked during the
routine safety and environmental inspections.

Throughout the current financial year ended, the Group is not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
that have a significant impact on the Group.
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CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation

The Group is committed to reducing negative impact to our

environment by conducting our operation in an environmentally

responsible manner. In order to reduce our environmental footprints

in the workplace, we always look for opportunities to reduce

unnecessary energy consumption and waste generation.

Green Office Policy

Electricity is the main source of energy used by our offices in our

daily operations. Other resources such as fresh water and paper

and printing ink are also consumed. As part of our environmental

policy, we enact 3R practices — Reduce, Reuse and Recycle — to

minimise the consumption of valuable resources and tackle waste.

The various implemented measures to achieve low-carbon and

green office, including:

Air Conditioning
RR

Lighting
EE

Office Equipment
ARME

Switch off air conditioning system when
out in use;

Strictly control the air condition
temperature by maintaining temperature
of air conditioners to the standard of
25.5 degrees in general conditions; and
Install solar films on windows.

Retrofit fluorescent lamps with LED
lamps;

Encourage the use of natural light
whenever possible;

Clean lighting tubes/bulbs periodically;
Arrange lighting zoning to ensure that
only required lighting is switched on; and
Post the reminder slogan “Turn lights off
when not in use”.

Electric appliances are required to turn-
off when unattended, reduce the standby
energy consumption of office equipment
such as computer;

Maintain equipment properly to reduce
energy consumption; and

Purchase office equipment with high
energy efficiency labels.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation (Continued)

To raise the environmental awareness of our employees and drive
behavioural change, employees are asked to make a pledge online
about creating a greener workplace. Green office stickers and posters
are used to remind them to develop greener office.

During the current reporting year, the Greenhouse gas emissions
("GHG Emissions”) of Scope 2 GHG Emissions' (kg of Co,)* of Hong
Kong headquarter office and Construction business headquarter
office were decreased by 2% in total as compared with previous
reporting period.

Hong Kong headquarter office
I P EREWAE

N\
5,419 kg CO/kWh

FTEES5 4198 —a1khx

\ 4

7 N\

— 3,216 kg CO./kWh

— BTRE3 21627 Z &bk
Notes:
1. According to the Carbon Audit Guidelines, Scope 2 Emissions refer

to energy indirect emissions. The disclosed figures are resulted from
electricity purchased from power companies.

2. The power company-specific emission factor of Hong Kong Electric
Company is adopted for the calculation.
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Construction business headquarter office
TREBERLAE

119,870 kg CO2/kWh
FT 119,870 —&/Hx

\ 4

119,732 kg CO./kWh
FTER119,732A T —&/thx
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RE HERERHRE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
Energy Conservation (Continued)

Business Travel Reduction Policy

The Group thoroughly understands that business travel will increase
energy consumption, leading to increase in emission of greenhouse
gas. Therefore, the Group actively reduces the number of business
trips of employees to reduce the resulted greenhouse gas emissions.
The Group also encourages employees to communicate in a
green manner, e.g. replacing long-distance travel for face-to-
face meetings by video and phone conferences so as to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions caused by extra transportation. In
addition, employees make use of public transportation during
business trips whenever possible. The Group also encourages
employees to plan travel and manpower arrangements earlier in
advance in order to share vehicles and reduce energy consumption
and pollution during travel.

During the current reporting year, the Greenhouse gas emissions
("GHG Emissions”) of Scope 3 GHG Emissions’ (kg of Co,)* of Hong
Kong headquarter office was increased compared with previous
year as the management visit Chongqing for closely follow up with
the resumption of the Automotive Business Customers and seek
for exposure of new business opportunity in China and overseas.
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REEH  BORLHEBEINBEKAR
EREHM - W BTHEHHEEME
AARKZBIE MATZBEIRER
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BHER = BELTBEPHER
HAEMIFR o

REAREFE  BEENFNEERBY
B(DEZE R T F S8 E3H R E B
(Fr & Lhx) 28 ML B PTIEM - T3
HREEESHEE  ZURERTIEED
BEBEPIRERRILS KA EMEIN
T o

2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\F

Scope 3 GHG Emissions® (kg of CO,)  #5 E3)& = R & i
(F7 —A{thH) 4,859 2,101

Notes:
1. According to the Carbon Audit Guidelines, Scope 3 Emissions refer

to other indirect emissions (optional for reporting purposes). The
disclosed figures are resulted from business air travel by employees.
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CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Resources Conservation

The Group is well aware that the earth’s natural resources are limited. Thus,
apart from implementing measures for managing resources consumption and
reducing waste generated, various other policies have been implemented
to manage the impact of our operations on the environment and natural
resources. Natural resources that the Group consumed in normal course of
operations involve paper. To reduce environmental impacts and raise the
efficiency on printing and minimize paper consumption, the Group focuses
on developing recycling measures and requires all employees to:

Plastic
8 5

Water
&R

Miscellaneous
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Resources Conservation

A EIR

Collect waste copy paper

Use internet fax

Reuse used envelopes for internal maiing

Prioritize electronic media over printed media

Encourage to minimise the use of office resources such as water, paper and printing machines
and to store drawings and product information electronically so as to fadittate information search,
management and sharing

Printer toner cartridges used by the Hong Kong Headquarter are regularly recyded by the suppliers
Use double-sided printing/photocopying

Default office printing as duplex in offices

Minimise spare provisions when printing

Use of recyde paper whenever possible

Set wider page margins so that more text would be filled in each page

Reuse paper printed on one side for manuscript paper or printing paper

Use e-mails as much as possible and reduce paper usage on fax

Use electronic supporting medium, such as tablet and projector

Collect reusable plastic packaging material

Encourage suppliers to recollect the packaging material reusable tableware
Provide sufficient

Promote “bottle-water free” culture

Purchase multi-function devices, such as printing, scanning, photocopy and fax
Donate or dispose of WEEE through proper schemes
Assign designated areas for WEEE collection

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

Ensure no leaky taps in the office

Adopt water taps with automatic sensors

Install toilet with dual flush cistern systems

Constantly reminds employees to conserve water by putting up water conservation
abels in washrooms, and rest areas such as “Please turn off the tap after washing
hands” and "It is everybody's responsibility to save water.”

Carry out regular leakage test on piping and check for overflowing tanks, worn
tap washers and other defects of the system

Make surplus materials/equipment available to other departments before disposal
Centrally monitor common consumable items to avoid duplication in purchase
Use web-conferencing to avoid travel

During the current reporting year, the paper consumption of Hong
Kong headquarter office and Construction business headquarter
office are 75 kg and 1,138 kg respectively which decreased by
26% in total as compared with previous reporting period.
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RE HERERHRE

CARING FOR PEOPLE

Employment and labour practices

Our team of 452 employees (31 December 2018: 611) are the
most important asset of the Group. The Group is devoted to
shape a non-discriminating, diverse, fair and harmonious workplace
disregard of the number of employees. The Group comply straightly
with all applicable rules and regulations of the “Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and “Employment Ordinances of
Hong Kong Administrative Region”.

The Group seeks and welcomes people with talent and passion.
We are committed to establishing an inclusive, diverse and
discrimination-free culture in our Group.

The Group complies with national laws and regulations, and treats
all job applicants equally without any unequal restrictions and
unequal preferential policies and provides equal opportunities for
all job applicants. Moreover, the recruitment process is open and
transparent and is monitored with no backroom deals allowed. The
Group also complies with the labour law and will not employ any
child labour.

On employment of employees, all job positions are open to all
with equal opportunities, decided with no discrimination on sex,
race, religion, gender, age and disability basis, and selected on
skill and competency basis. We identify potential new hires using
appropriate assessment tools and regularly review our recruitment
mechanism to ensure criteria for recruitment aligns with our up-
to-date requirements. The Group also consider internal promotion
and job rotation to ensure equal opportunities are given to
existing employees. The Group treats all employees equally and
consideration for issues such as employment, salary, benefit
package, bonus, promotion and dismissal is solely based on their
education background, professional qualifications and competency,
and male and female employees are treated equally. At all time,
we comply stringently with all applicable local rules and regulations
in anti-discrimination.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Employment and labour practices (Continued)
Employees’
the market level as well as their competency, qualifications

remunerations are determined with reference to
and experience. The Group has established a comprehensive
performance review mechanism in order to evaluate performance
of employees openly and fairly. The Group offers competitive
remuneration and benefit package to employees to express our
great gratitude towards their effort.

The Group treasury employees as the most important core asset.
In addition to operating its business diligently and attending
to the needs of employees, the Group pays close attention to
employees’ work and life balance. Employees’ balanced life style
can improve the overall efficiency of the Group. Therefore, the
Group shall comply with local regulations and policies to ensure
For example,
Beijing vehicle design centre arranges rest days for employees in

proper employees’ working hours and rest days.

accordance with its Attendance and Vacation System. Furthermore,
to strengthen employees’ sense of belonging to the Group and
create a harmonious working atmosphere, the Group adopts a
series of policies to ensure the work and life balance as follows:
Ensure employees have proper breaks and leaves according to
the relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong
Kong; Target to create a harmonious working atmosphere and a
comfortable workplace; Concern about employees’ health and care
for their families.
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RE -HERERRSE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued) HeEEE)

Employment and labour practices (Continued) ERERERZIERE)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 452 employees R-ZT—hAF+-_A=+—H AEBA
(31 December 2018: 611), with details as follows: 452F (ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H:611%)

BE FBEWOT:

Employment status
Rk

31 December 2019
—E-NEF+ZA=+—-H

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+ZA=+—H

M Full-time M Part-time

28 Fel
Gender
]l
31 December 2019
—ZE-hAE+=A=+-—H
31 December 2018
—E-N\F+=ZA=+—H
B Male B Female
St i
Age Group
FERRAE R | | |
31 December 2019
—g-AFt-A=+-8 40%
31 December 2018 44%

—E-N\F+=-A=+-—H

B Under 30 M 31-50 Over 50
305 31-505% 505 L

Region

[

31 December 2019
—2-nEt=A=+-8

31 December 2018
—E-NF+ZHA=+—-H
B Hong Kong M Mainland China

S R A

94 Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt &l 5 & B E X £ R QA



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Employment and labour practices (Continued)

In addition to our employees, we also believe board diversity
plays an important role in enhancing the Group’s sustainable
development. Nomination Committee was established not only
to recognise the terms of relevant Code Provisions of the Stock
Exchange Code, but also to review the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board from time to time. In designing the
Board's optimal composition, a range of diversity perspectives with
reference to the Group’s business model and specific needs will be
considered, including but not limited to gender, age, culture, race,
educational background, professional experience, knowledge and
skills. The Nomination Committee acknowledged that there was an
imbalance between the male and female Directors. Consideration
of such fact would be taken into account for selection and
appointment of future candidates.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, details of our Board as follows:

Gender

I

31 December 2019
—E-hE+=ZA=+—H

31 December 2018
—E2-N\F+ZHA=+—8H

Age

FiR

31 December 2019
—E2-AFt+=A=t+-H

31 December 2018
—E-N\E+=ZA=+—-H

Designation

Bz

31 December 2019
—E-hFt+=A=t-H

31 December 2018
—F-NFt=-A=+-H

M Executive Director M Non-Executive Director

WiTE= JEITER
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RE HERERHRE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Health and safety

Safety is the top priority in everything we do. In order to achieve
our goal of zero injuries, we pay special attention to providing a
healthy and safe working environment for all of our employees. To
meet our goal of zero injuries, we strive to integrating health and
safety considerations into all aspects of our business activities.

In respect of construction business operation, we have been
formulating effective plans and initiatives to cultivate a safety
culture within the Group.

The table below shows our approach and initiatives:

v
O ERTAR2 THEEFHAE

v  Independent site inspections

T EEE)

RERZE
ZERHEM—ITHENEPZE - B
NEGSSTREEERHEREZEZMNT
FRE  BMOBRTXBEE - REHT
XEERE BMABOSREEL2ZER
ABMEHEZSHEET@E -

EREXBELTH  RA—BEERTEA
MH LB M - NWEASERREEL
22X -

TRIREAFIEN TR R HE 56

Survey by behaviour-based safety working group

Enhance BIYRBHE
W_Srkplace safety ¢  Reinforce noise monitoring and control
ReIEEMzEl HN3ER = B e

e

v  Health, Safety & Environment management
training course for sub-contractors in-charge

Strengthen BE - Z2HEREEESHESGBEIIRE
safety training v  Sharing of good site practices

ez 23 APERIFNRISHEE

, v  Onsite dissemination of safety messages
p ¢ by senior management
Promote a %%&%EEE%?&W?QE%H

safety culture v  The Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Target Seminar

REREXIL gk - RERHERIB(HSE) B RS

It is vital for our employees and subcontracted workers to be on the
alert for potential hazards, and follow strict safety protocol when
working onsite. Our occupational health and safety management
system has been certified compliance with OHSAS 18001, which
is aligned with international standards of best practice. We work
closely with our subcontractors to ensure that all subcontracted
workers we engage are given comprehensive safety training during
different project stages.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Health and safety (Continued)

Prior to construction project commencement:
o Risk assessment is conducted on each project and
subcontractor at the outset to identify the risks associated to
determine and implement relevant precautionary measures

o Induction trainings are provided before commencement of
work

o Site-specific training and

complicated work procedures are to be executed

is organised when technical

During the project:

o Communications are frequently held to enhance alertness of
workers

o Meetings with subcontractors and perform site visit to keep
track on progress and quality of work

As well as attending today-to-day health and safety considerations,
we must be prepared for the unexpected. To augment the ability
of emergency preparedness and response of our employees, all of
our operating companies are required to carry out emergency drills
and safety exercises periodically according to applicable national
laws and regulations as well as emergency preparedness plans.

We also believe that regular education and training play a vital
role in raising and maintaining the occupational health and safety
awareness among our people at all times. We covered topics
such as safety use of equipment, prevention and handling of
accident, emergency management and rescue, production safety
and corresponding laws and regulations, fire protection knowledge,
etc.

In the event of any safety incident at work, our employees have to
report and investigate the incident in accordance with the Group’s
policy. All employees must report to their supervisors in respect of
any accident at work for immediate implementation of appropriate
protective measures.
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RE HERERHRE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Health and safety (Continued)
In both the current and prior reporting year, the Group achieved
the goal of zero fatalities.

Safety performance

g B5EGE)

REEZZ(H)

RAREFER L—REFE  AEEE
REFTAE -

ZERH

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Bz HE
—2-nE —T-N\F
T=A=+—-B +T-A=+—H
- E IEFE

Civil Engineering and Construction HFBt AKIE K

Business in Hong Kong BEXR

Fatalities BT RE 0 0
Number of lost time injuries BAIRIERE 5 7
Lost time injuries frequency rate RIBI=X 2.5 3.4

Development and training

The Group considers that the capabilities of our employees are
the key requirements to maintain the Group’s sustainability and
to increase the revenue for the Group. The Group offers different
types of training programs regularly and on needed basis for
employees to improve their skills and satisfy position needs.
Meanwhile, the Group encourages employees to actively participate
in position-related trainings organized by external institutions in
order to enhance individual professional quality and efficiency, the
costs of which would be paid by the Group on application and by
discretion of the senior management.

The Group devotes resources to employees’ development as we
believe that enhancing their knowledge and skills adds value to
our business operations. Training programmes are organized for all
employees by the human resources department and the operating
officer. Besides internal training, the Group provides subsidies
and special leave to employees applying for Graduate Training
Scheme and other Continuing Professional Development courses.
In addition, we strongly support the nurturing of young talents
who are determined to develop their careers in the construction
and engineering industry.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Labor standards

The Group has a comprehensive human resources policy in place
regarding recruitment, dismissal, leaves, holidays and benefits to
support our works on manpower resources. The Group stringently
complies with the People’s Republic of China and the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region labor laws and employment
regulations, and has totally forbidden recruitment of child labor
and forced labor.

Child Labour Prevention Policy

The Group strictly abides by national laws and regulations and
prohibits the use of child labour. To effectively avoid the use
of child labour, applicants are required to be at least 18 years
old as set out in the recruitment advertisement. Applicants’
identification documents and resumes are also carefully checked
during recruitment to verify their age. Accordingly, a job applicant
will only be interviewed after verification of his or her identification
document in order to avoid employing child labour using the
others’ identification document. Through annual review on
child labour and daily management, the Group will immediately
terminate any employment which is identified as use of child
labour.

Forced Labour Prevention Policy

The Group strictly abides by national laws and regulations and
prohibits all forms of forced labour. The following measures are
implemented strictly: A labour contract or internship agreement
shall be signed by every employee on fair and voluntary basis;
Detention of an employee’s identity card, temporary residence
permit or other identification documents is strictly prohibited; No
department or person is allowed to physically abuse, assault, body
search or insult an employee or to restrict an employee’s personal
freedom by locking up workplace or employee quarters; and No
department or person is allowed to force an employee to work by
any means of violence, threat or unlawful restriction of personal
freedom. The overtime work is required to be arranged under such
principle by the Group to prevent all involuntary overtime work.
Any identified deviation from this principle shall be investigated
immediately.

In both 2019 and 2018, there were zero reported cases of
discrimination and unethical labor practices.
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RE HERERHRE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Operation practices

As the Group regards supply chain competitiveness as one of the
core corporate competitiveness, we have maintained supply chain
management strategy of balancing between quality and efficiency.
At all time, the Group adheres to the principle of integrity first
and conducts business according to the operation practices which
are compliance with the local rules and regulations.

Supply chain management

Our supply chains mainly cover three general categories: (i) office
supply chains; and (ii) construction work with subcontractors and
suppliers.

The Group recognises the supply chains play in an important
role in the overall sustainability performance. Stringent guidelines
were adopted to guide the assessment of suppliers. Suppliers are
assessed for their capability to fulfil our business needs based on
a price and non-price factors such as labor practices, environment
and quality.

Civil Engineering and Construction supply chains

During construction projects, we have to work with different
subcontractors and suppliers. Therefore supply chain management
is important to the Group’s provision of quality construction work.
We have well-established procedures regarding the selection and
control of subcontractors and supplier partners. The Selection of
Subcontractor and Supplier Policy documents our procedures in
selecting suppliers for projects, and requires cautious assessment of
suppliers based on criteria like reputation, capability, work quality,
experience and other relevant factors.

During the course of project we continue to monitor supplier
performance, and adopt adequate control measures to ensure that
the purchased product conforms to project specifications. Every
year, we evaluate supplier performance to help determine if the
supplier qualifies to stay in our Approved Subcontractors/Suppliers
List. Supplier behaviours are guided by the Supplier Code of
Conduct and site visits are performed to confirm their compliance
to the questionnaire.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)
Supply chain management (Continued)

Encouraging Good Labour Practice

Not only are we committed to treating our own people fairly
and with respect, we also require our construction subcontractors
to follow sound labour practices. At a minimum, we expect our
subcontractors to operate with integrity, treat their people fairly
and ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
We will hold regular meetings with subcontractors to ensure they
and their workers align with our environmental protection policy.

Supporting Local Subcontractors

We choose to work with subcontractors in Hong Kong whenever
possible. Throughout 2019, all of our subcontractors are located in
Hong Kong. We believe that in doing so, we contribute to the local
economy. We will also assess the viability of incorporating more
medium or even social enterprises in our supply chain to promote
local entrepreneurship.

Quality Management of Civil Engineering and

Construction Business in Hong Kong

We believe that our commitment to enhancing the quality of our
management and construction works is instrumental in maintaining
our overall reputation. In pursuit of quality, we implement and
operate a quality management system in accordance with the
requirements of 1SO 9001.

To ensure delivery of quality work to our customers, our project
team members are well trained in implementing our quality control
measures which comprise monitoring, verifying and validating the
construction, installation works and materials before delivery of
completed project works to our customers. Regular inspection will
be conducted by our project team members to ensure that the
work completed conforms to the specifications and requirements
set out in the relevant contract.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises the importance of its supplier
and customers’ personal data protection. The Group has
established stringent guidelines to protect and monitor personal
data and privacy. Personal data of our suppliers and customers
are treated as highly confidential and accessible only by authorised
personnel. Internal trainings were organized in order to ensure
employees have well understanding of those policies so that
relevant guidelines could smoothly enact. We are also devoted to
protect intellectual property rights and trademarks of our suppliers
to support their business interests and confidentiality.
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RE HERERHRE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to providing quality products and services
to customers and all employees must perform duties at the highest
level of integrity, commitment and professionalism. The Group
has implemented policies on anti-corruption in order to prevent,
detect and report misconduct. The Group also provide guidance
for all employees which are made for the purpose of setting out
the standard of behavior we expected for our employees, such as
acceptance/offer of gifts or entertainment during the course of
soliciting business, conflict of interest and outside employment.
The Group encourages and enables employees to raise serious and
material concerns on anti-corruption and in case there is any doubts.
All reporting will be treated as confidential and in a sensitive manner.
At the same time, the Group also welcomes communication and
consultation. With the implementation of clear policies, the Group
reported no bribery nor corruption cases in both 2019 and 2018.

Community

Community investment

We understands well the importance of making a positive
contribution to the communities where the Group operates,
and sees the interests of the communities as one of its social
responsibilities The Group supports a harmonious and sustainable
working environment.

We encourage our employees to actively participate in charitable
activities at all time. In the coming year, we target to engage
different community groups to support and add value to
communities. We will also invest our money into communities
whenever possible.

OUTLOOK

We would like to take this opportunity to extend our sincere
gratitude to our employees, suppliers, shareholders and other
stakeholders for their long-term support and trust to the Group.
The feedbacks from these parties are of great value to us in forming
our business strategy to focus on their needs. “Excellence is not a
destination; it is a continuous journey that never ends”. Although
we believe that our performance has granted positive recognition
in the current financial period, there is still more to be done. In
the coming year, we will continue to strive to implement the best
practices in corporate social responsibility to advance the global
sustainability agenda at large.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

ASSURANCE | TRANSACTIONS | ADVISORY

ZENITH%‘\%

To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International
Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bisu
Technology Group International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 114 to 235, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated net financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$906,245,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, and as of
that date, had net current liabilities of HK$980,762,000 and net
liabilities of HK$974,755,000. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in note 2, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of the
Group's goodwill and intangible assets amounted to
HK$16,557,000 and nil, respectively, relating to the cash-
generating unit of the development, production and sale
of the Automotive Engines Business (the “Automotive
Engines CGU"). In accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets, management of the Company is required to
test goodwill for impairment annually. Management of the
Company is also required to determine whether there are
any impairment indicators for the goodwill and intangible
assets with reference to the recoverable amount of the
Automotive Engines CGU.

A provision for impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets of HK$275,821,000 and HK$88,042,000
respectively, in respect of the Group’s Automotive Engines
CGU was made for the year ended 31 December 2019.

We focused on this area because this impairment
assessment is based on the recoverable amount of
the Automotive Engines CGU, which is determined by
a value in use calculation, which requires significant
management’s judgement with respect to the Group's
cash flow projections based on the financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by management. The
projection is largely based on management’s expectations
and estimates of future results of sale of automotive
engines.

Disclosures in relation to goodwill and intangible assets
are included in notes 4, 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to management’s
judgements used in the impairment assessment of
the Group’s Automotive Engines CGU included:

— Understanding, evaluating and testing the key
controls over the preparation and approval of
the cash flows projections;

— Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independent of the external valuer used by
management;

— Discussing with the external valuer their work
scope, and assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation methodology used based on our
industry knowledge and market practices;

— Assessing reasonableness of the key
assumption used by the external valuer and
management such as revenue growth rate,
terminal growth rate and discount rate by
comparing these assumptions against relevant
market data and industry research;

— Comparing the current year actual results
with the prior year forecasted results
prepared by management for the automotive
engines business to ascertain the reliability of
management’s forecast; and

— Testing the arithmetical accuracy on the value
in use calculation of the Automotive Engines
Business.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recoverability of accounts and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2019, accounts and bills receivables
amounted to HK$207,206,000, representing 47% of
the Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2019. The
loss allowance charged to the profit and loss account
for the year was HK$349,156,000, and cumulative loss
allowance of accounts and bills receivables carried as at
31 December 2019 was HK$491,000,000. Management
exercised significant judgements to evaluate the
collectability from customers after taking
into account their creditworthiness, whether they have
financial difficulties, experience of default in principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy,
aging analysis and forecast of future events and economic
conditions which may impact the recoverability of trade
receivables. The judgements applied by management have
a significant impact on the level of provision required for
accounts and bills receivables.

individual

We focused on the impairment assessment of accounts
and bills receivables as a key audit matter because (i)
the material amounts involved, and (i) the significant
judgement and assumptions involved in the determination
of loss allowance under the expected credit losses model.

Disclosures in relation to accounts and bills receivables are

included in notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our

procedures in relation to management'’s

judgements used in the recoverability of accounts and
bills receivables included:
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Understanding and evaluating the operating
effectiveness of key internal controls which
govern credit control, debt collection and

estimate of expected credit losses;

Testing on a sample basis the ageing of accounts
and bills receivables as at year end;

In respect of accounts and bills receivables
balances which are past due, additional
procedures were performed to evaluate their
historical progress payment records, settlement
plan, assessing whether the customers are
experiencing financial difficulties, default in
principal payments, and assessing the probability
that the customers will enter bankruptcy with
reference to available information;

Evaluating the level of provision made by
management for accounts and bills receivables
using forward-looking and historical information;
and

Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independent of the external valuer used by
management and discussing with the external
valuer their work scope, and assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology.
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B AR S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

misstatement when it exists.
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Cheng Po Yuen.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Cheng Po Yuen

Practising Certificate Number : P04887
Hong Kong

8 May 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ReEakEMEZEBAX

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=1+T—HIEFE

2019 2018
—E-AF —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 F#& T FETT
REVENUE PN 6 459,109 743,414
Cost of sales FERSID N (511,665) (731,632)
Gross (loss)/profit E (&), F (52,556) 11,782
Other income and gains, net H b A R Uk 25 5 6 4,985 86,357
Administrative expenses THRAX (428,153) (180,834)
Research and development costs Bt 3% A AR (842) (6,163)
Finance costs B 7% & 7 (82,065) (75,107)
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAED 16 (275,821) (174,933)
Impairment of intangible assets \mEEERE 17 (88,042) (430,928)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBLAIE 18 8 (922,494) (769,826)
Income tax credit TSI % 11 16,249 66,059
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREIER (906,245) (703,767)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2HE B
Other comprehensive loss that may 7 1% 4& B9 R8 A] E & 57
be reclassified to profit or loss in DEEBEZHAM
subsequent periods: THEERE:
Exchange differences on translation of # & 9| % 75 1 [& 5
foreign operations == (5,094) (56,699)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS HEBRER (911,339) (760,466)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REeBEaRkEMEEKRAXK

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—2-7E —T)\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT 5 FHB T FHEIT
Loss attributable to: LTALTEEES:
Owners of the parent BATREBA (905,423) (703,767)
Non-controlling interests FERES (822) —
(906,245) (703,767)
Total comprehensive loss LTATEREZEEE
attributable to: HEEE
Owners of the parent BATRERA (910,517) (760,466)
Non-controlling interests FERER (822) —
(911,339) (760,466)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BARERAEMN
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT BREE 13
Basic (HK cents) EAREAL) (452.7) (351.9)
Diluted (HK cents) e (OB L) (452.7) (351.9)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BRI T
As at 31 December 2019
R=ZB-nF+=A=1—8

2019 2018
—E-REF —E-)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 F#E T FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WERZE 14 32,120 38,592
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(a) 3,252 —
Goodwill BES 16 16,557 297,552
Intangible assets EmREE 17 — 88,618
Accounts and bills receivables & U BR 2 K U = IR 20 — 256,395
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 51,929 681,157
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 9,895 106,804
Contract assets BRNEE 19 60,623 197,521
Accounts and bills receivables JE I BR B K U 2= IR 20 207,206 260,859
Prepayments, deposits and BRHIE - Ee2 Kk
other receivables H h FE U 3R 21 44,665 34,078
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEEY 22 64,777 26,971
Total current assets MEBEELE 387,166 626,233
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts payable J& 5 BR R 23 313,300 340,760
Tax payable JE 1~ 74 18 92 2,776
Other payables and accruals HiENRLERER 24 55,686 87,728
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEERTT R H A K
borrowings 25 57,980 64,255
Lease liabilities HEBEF 15(b) 552 —
Convertible bonds A R E 26 386,333 —
Promissory notes QI 27 553,985 —
Total current liabilities mEBBREMEE 1,367,928 495,519
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ RE(ER)/ BEFAE
ASSETS (980,762) 130,714
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBESE
LIABILITIES (928,833) 811,871
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—2-hE —ENE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FERT FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables and accruals HiEAR LEREA 24 29,752 7,944
Interest-bearing other borrowings STEER 25 — 6,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(b) 2,820 —
Convertible bonds Al {5 18 F 26 — 352,411
Promissory notes HH R 27 — 512,387
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIBEBAG 28 13,350 26,088
Total non-current liabilities EmBBEREA 45,922 904,830
Net liabilities BEFE (974,755) (92,959)
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BAREREAEGEESR
of the parent
Share capital &N 29 2,000 2,000
Equity component of convertible bonds 7] # f% {& % 2 # 5 28 9 26 375,576 375,576
Reserves 1 31 (1,352,331) (470,535)
Deficiency in assets & E B A (974,755) (92,959)
Liu Wengang Xing Bin
2 3T’ FBE
Director Director
- -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEX

Year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_ZT-NAF+-A=1+—HLLEE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAREAAER
Equity
Statutory Exchange  component Share  (Accumulated Non-  (Deficiency
Share Share surplus fluctuation  of convertible option loss)/retained controlling i assets)/
capital  premium reserve  reserve bonds reserve profits  Subtotal interest total equity
EERS SHERD  TRRES (Rt ER) (BERH)
BE& ROEE NEE fE  EEBS BRERE /REEA NtOEBRER /8RR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TEr  ThR TEL  TER FEL THEL FEL FEL FEL THEL
(note 31(a)) (note 31(b))
(B &E31) (B £E31(0))
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\5-f—-8 2,000 45,486 34,863 34,634 390,716 - 174,948 682,647 - 682,647
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (703,767)  (703,767) —  (703767)
Other comprehensive loss rEFAMZEESR:
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEEMNEHS
translation of foreign EXER
operations — — —  (56,699) — - — (56,699) - (56,699)
Total comprehensive income  REFZ2ERALE
for the year - - - (56,699) - - (703,767)  (760,466) - (760,466)
Extinguishment of convertible 4% A # 1§ (& %
bonds - - - - (15,140) - - (15,140) - (15,140)
Transfer to retained profits' ~ BB ERBEF - - (34,863) — - - 34,863 — - -
Transfer from retained profits &% 8RB &7 - - 1,085 — - - (1,085) — - -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F+=ZA=1—-H 2,000 45,486* 1,085 (22,065)% 375,576 - (495,041)*  (92,959) - (92,959)
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hnE-A-AH 2,000 45,486 1,085 (22,065) 375,576 - (495,041) (92,959) = (92,959)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (905,423)  (905,423) (822) (906,245)
Other comprehensive income  EREM2EMA:
for the year:
Exchange differences on BREGNEBHNERER
translation of foreign
operations = = = (5,094) = = = (5,094) = (5,094)
Total comprehensive income ~ AEF2ERALE
for the year = = = (5,094) = = = (910,517) (822) (911,339)
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB - - — — — — — — 8,375 8,375
Injection of capital by non-  HBARFERKETE
controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries = = = = = = = = 4,545 4,545
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR — — — — — — — - (12,098) (12,098)
Equity-settled share option ~ WURELE 2 BREZH
arrangements = = = = = 28,721 = 28,721 = 28,721
Transfer of share option reserve EUJ B R i1 & 2
upon the cancellation of BRERE
share options = = = = = (28,721) 28,721 = = =
At 31 December 2019 WZE-nE+ZA=1-H 2,000 45,486 1,085 (27,159) 375,576 = (1,371,743)F  (974,755) = (974,755)
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated negative reserve * WERERBBEREFEA M BR R EXFTH

of HK$1,352,331,000 (2018: HK$470,535,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

*# Transfer of statutory reserve to retained profits as a result of dividend

distribution between subsidiaries.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T-AEt-A=t+-BILEE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FTHER FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BREAIE R (922,494) (769,826)
Adjustments for: BTHIEEELRE:
Finance costs BH%ER 7 82,065 75,107
Interest income AIRSY@N 6 (5) 7)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBINE
equipment 8 6,223 6,398
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 8 3,161 —
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEHH 8 1,236 26,371
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEME  BERKXE
property, plant and equipment EAM(KE)/ BB 6 (92) 209
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNB ARz Kz 6 (1,682) —
Gain on extinguishment of convertible JE BR AT AR (B 55 6
bonds Iy 6 — (80,757)
Impairment of goodwill &R E 16 275,821 174,933
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE 17 88,042 430,928
Impairment of accounts and bill RREERZRRE
receivables 8 349,156 125,130
Reversal of impairment of contract assets & #) & & 3 & # [l 8 (312) (232)
Provision for inventories FERE 8 33,140 3,963
Equity-settled shared option expense R EE B RER 8 28,721 —
(57,020) (7,783)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/ (M) 63,755 (47,991
Decrease/(Increase) in contract assets BHEERML,/ (3EM) 137,210 (131,404)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts and bills FEMBR Tk N R W 2= 4%
receivables (1), /> (39,108) 531,426
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other FEfFIE « 24 & H b & Y 3K
receivables 0 (3,376) (14,976)
Decrease in accounts payable & 1< BR SR (27,460) (328,917)
Decrease in other payables and accruals HiER TR RBERERRD (25,633) (25,670)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &2 15,/ (FTA) KRS 48,368 (25,315)
Interest received BUH B 5 7
Interest paid BARFLE (6,545) (6,275)
PRC corporate income tax refunded/(paid) R /(Bf)PEEFEH 827 (12,697)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEBMER — (12)
Net cash flows from/(used in) mEEREE /(TN
operating activities HBeneFa 42,655 (44,292)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-NG+-A=+—BILEE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & TAERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBKELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Additions of items of property, REME BEIREHBIEAR
plant and equipment (15,928) (2,497)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEW% - HE K& &K HEE
plant and equipment FT18 538 108 5
Acquisition of subsidiaries s B B B8 & 32 596 —
Disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ%f‘ﬁ%@ﬂ 33 (1,055) —
Net cash flows used in investing activities R EEMFERANELREFE (16,279) (2,486)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEXBELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
New interest-bearing bank and other TR RITREMER
borrowings 600 22,490
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BB B RIT R H A &K
other borrowings (7,610) (3,933)
Principal portion of lease payment HENKE2 B (3,025) —
Non-controlling interests arising from BINTEEEREERER
additional capital injection 4,545 —
Advances from a shareholder % 3R 2 3 22,209 —
Net cash flows from financing activities BMEEEE LN
ReEREFE 16,719 18,557
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ~ B&RBLZEME M,/
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 2) =8 43,095 (28,221)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRERBESEED
beginning of year 21,706 68,623
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net §h[E [E & & 8 5 £ % %8 (24) (18,696)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXRNRERRESEED
AT END OF YEAR 64,777 21,706
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND B & RERF5 2
CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED IN RERRESEEY
THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS B DM
Cash and bank balances Be RRITER 22 64,777 26,971
Bank overdrafts RITEX 25 — (5,265)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BE&REXMIIZ2EHE K
statement of cash flows ReEEY 64,777 21,706
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Bisu Technology Group International Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Room
1001, 10/F, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

During the reporting year, the Group was principally engaged
in the following principal activities:

o Development, production and sale of the automotive
engines (the “Automotive Engines Business”); and

o Civil engineering works and building construction
and maintenance works (the “Civil Engineering and
Construction Business”).

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company is Youth Force
Asia Ltd., a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

1.

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

REAIREEHEHR
HEMBREEBRRAERQATERRD
AR —MERSHSTMK I
BHREBRRAGT o AQAH M
= J& {2 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 222 A 9
FTELEMBLURNFETHBR M
5% K &2 FULV0KE 1001 E »

RAZREFE AEEBXTBHRET
ES 5K

s FH¥ LERHEETEEDK
(MREBEBRER] &

e ITAIRBEUREBEFEER
RERXRB(ZARIREREZESR
%) e

EERR BEEERAFR&KE

% A & A& Youth Force Asia Ltd. (— &
REBREZHEBEFEMAE Y 2RF]) -
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Notes to Financial Statements
B A& R M &

31 December 2019

—
—=

1.

122
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of
incorporation/

registration and Nominal value of issued

RAREBER(F)

FRNBARZESR
ARRZ TEMBRABFBET

Percentage of
equity attributable

Company Name business ordinary share capital  to the Company  Principal activities
MR/ BT ERTEER KRR EA
NEER REEHE RANEE BEEAL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# A &

Chongging Bisu Yunbo Motor  People’s Republic of RMB60,000,000 — 100 Development, production
Technology Limited*# China ("PRC") A R #60,000,00070 and sale of automotive
("Bisu Yunbo") hEARERM engines

ERURERHNNEAR (Mg ) RE EER
AR ((LEEE]) HERBRYHK

Excel Engineering Company Hong Kong HK$23,288,000 — 100  Civil engineering
Limited B 23,288,00078 7T works and building

BRIEERRA construction and

maintenance works
TARIRUREF
RERREBRH
Excel Construction Development Hong Kong HK$1 — 100 Leasing of equipment for
Limited 00 18T construction works
METREMHE
* Registered as a limited liability company under the PRC law. * REFEEEAMABERAA -
# The English name of this company represents the best # BRI EAMENECEBE -

effort made by the management of the Company to directly
translate its Chinese name as no official English name has

been registered.

The table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Despite the Group incurred a net loss of HK$906,245,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and had net
current liabilities and net liabilities of HK$980,762,000 and
HK$974,755,000, respectively as at 31 December 2019, and
the expected impact from the coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19") pandemic, which has also resulted in the
temporary closure of its automotive business operation in
the PRC. In the opinion of the directors, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operation and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future, based on the cash flow projections of
the Group and after taking into consideration the following:

(i)  On 8 November 2019, the Company and Power Expert
Global Limited (“Power Expert”), the then holder of
the convertible bonds and promissory notes, entered
into an amendment agreement, pursuant to which
(@) the maturity date of the convertible bonds shall
be extended for 5 years to 4 February 2025; and (b)
the term of the promissory notes will be changed to
perpetual and the interest rate will be fixed at 5% per
annum with effect from 5 February 2020, details of
which are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the financial
statement;

(i)  subsequent to the end of reporting period, a major
shareholder of the Company has agreed to provide
additional funding by a shareholder’s loan of not
less than HK$58,600,000 from 1 January 2019 to 31
March 2021 to the Group as and when required, and
not to demand for repayment of the amount due by
the Group until it is in the position to repay without
impairing its liquidity and financial position. As of the
reporting date, such shareholder loan amounted to
HK$8,750,000 was drawn down by the Group after 1
January 2020;

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A
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BNEZEMTEREHETABR
BN 2 B E T
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RIETEEIRIRA R AR (11968
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+—H BRABERFEHRTIR
58,600,000% 7T #) Bx B & 5 IA
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

(ili) subsequent to the end of reporting period, Power
Expert and its shareholder, Mr. Liu Chang, has agreed
to provide undertaking and continuous financial support
by loans with market interest rate to the Group as and
when required prior to 31 March 2021. Despite the fact
that Power Expert ceased to be holder of convertible
bonds and promissory notes on 3 February 2020, Power
Expert still confirm to provide such financial support to
the Group;

(iv)  the restructuring of the customers of the Automotive
Engine Business and their negotiation with local
government and their shareholders are still ongoing.
The process started from 2018 and the whole supply
chain, includes the suppliers of the Automotive
Engines Business, understand the time needed for the
completion of the restructuring would be long and no
radical actions were taken previously. It is not expected
that they will take such actions against the Group's
subsidiary engaging in the Automotive Engines Business
unless the restructuring exercise is proved to be a failure,
which is not expected to happen in the next 12 months
after the end of reporting period, for the details of the
progress of the restructuring, details of which are set
out in note 16 to the financial statement; and

(v)  various cost control measures have been taken by the
Group to tighten the costs of operations and various
general and administrative expense.

The directors of the Company believe that, taking into account
the above factors, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to satisfy its present requirements for at least the next
12 months from the end of the reporting period. However,
should the above financing or support be unavailable, the
Group may be unable to continue as a going concern, in
which case adjustments might have to be made to the
carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to state them at their
recoverable amounts, and to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify its non-current assets and
non-current liabilities to current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

("HK$'000") except when otherwise indicated.

accounting

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

3.1
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Payments Features with Negative
Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3,
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Other than as explained below, the adoption of the above
new and revised standards has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

(@) HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance
leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17.
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3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

128

(a)

(Continued)
HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases
when the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard
has been applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was
not restated and continued to be reported under HKAS
17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has
been applied only to contracts entered into or changed
on or after 1 January 2019.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as

operating leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for leasehold land and
building. As a lessee, the Group previously classified
leases as either finance leases or operating leases based
on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
applies a single approach to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases of
low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis)
and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of
the right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 January 2019 and included in lease liabilities.
The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present
the right-of-use assets separately in the statement of
financial position.
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3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

130

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as

operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition (Continued)

(a)

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January

2019:

Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application

Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease

Using a single discount rate to portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics

Excluding the initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at date of

initial application

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at

1 January 2019 was as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to
the operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2018 are as follows:
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HK$'000
FHT
Operating lease commitments as at 31 R-—ZF-NF+=ZA=+—H
December 2018 HREHERE 4,326
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate W Z=ZT—hLF— A — BRI MN#E
as at 1 January 2019 g 8 R X 10.9%
Discounted operating lease commitments RZZE-NF-A—B8ER
as at 1 January 2019 KCEFH E AR 3,882
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R=-Z-hF—-—A—BWHEE
=R 3,882

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
(current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS
12 (often referred to as "“uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an
entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The interpretation did not
have any significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not
yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 (2011) Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A

33 EMMERERZERBUBR

=2 Al

AN 52 B 30 K7 it % B 5 R 3R 9
DA B A 16 180 8 R A M0 3T T B 48
IERTE B ISR & 28 -

BANBREER EBEE
EELACCHE)

BB RELER FlEREHE
F9% - ABGHER|
EFRBEBRER
EERET
(B3 A)

AN BREER REZHAEHE
FI0RRBEGHE  AFHAEE
B8 (ZE——F) FPEZEE
CHES) HEZKA?

BB RELER REEA
7%

ERASHEAEIRR EABZEE
BEAQH LR ESH

CHES
! BRAR-_Z-ZETF-A—Hzxkz&
57 06 &) 6 B
2 BRAR-_ZE_—F—-—HA—RHztz#’
57 06 &) 6 B
3 MAREES G ERAE - MR TR
i

EREMERARAEENTEYB
HEERZFHBOT -



3.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the
focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided
to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the date
of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature
or magnitude of information. A misstatement of information
is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

34 FTEETHEHE

BEXBES

BEEBLHEBAREGEZES
FEHERLHRBECEEERNLEA
EEB LR - XFRZEFTIR
MELHOEHRARMABER
B HRZGHEEEHBEIDFE
HKAZAEEREH 2B ELE —BAE
RERFIH -

AEBEREENSEXKEEN
B

s EE BREEBGHRBEZ
TREE:

s RE BREEWARAEZ
ERaE:

e HEHEBHAEXRBELZWK
A .

s HEGAEXBHEELZW
AR

e X BEEBEHABEHLEZ
EfAI i -

HEAREEEXGRAMEBNEE
BE - BARIHTIREAREH
BE BfE WARXENEEY
BREERARK -

EBEHREE
EGETERKEEANR - T
FRREDANKEBESHMNAALEE
AR RANBEAANSEME R
MEE ASBEHWKELSNESR
AERENEERAEBZEITABRE
UGB T 1 ) R A R AN B A UK BB
HHHMAREBEMNEMN LS ER
EHME AEEEEESTUAR
BENELEWE T AIHAEEF
BERLS  FERKETNEZER
#m B TERBEATEBERIZ
LEBI DG EEFREANIERA R
meo TABHMIFERESILHIER
AEBEEFE WHEEBEKNARESE
ek 88 o

Annual Report 2019 ZZE— L FFH®K 135



Notes to Financial Statements
B A& R M &

31 December 2019

—
—=

3.4

136

NFE+-ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract assets, deferred tax assets
and financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 34 FEESHHRERE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Machinery and equipment 10% to 24%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% to 33%

Motor vehicles 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents machineries in the
process of installation, which is stated and at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of installation and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of installation.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Customer contracts

Customer contracts secured on the date of acquisition are
recognised as cost of goods sold under the unit of production
method which is based on the volume of production in each
reporting period as a proportion of the total estimated units
of production for the relevant customer contracts over the
contract period.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

142

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms of land and building.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

144

(c)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value. (Alternatively) When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of

ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of accounts and bills receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. amounts and bills receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through

profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

34 FEEFTHEMEE)

BREIACHEE
ETANBERLIRE - SREE (3 (K
AR EREEN o —ABU
TREEN D) IR KB B R
R ANEARENERE MR K
FFR) -

s WREEUMERBARENENE
e K

e AEEEHEHEHLEERIUR
SREMNER - HBEE ]
ZH o BRERE=ZFEER
BEEEMNBERTZ2E8INEE
BREMENES: X H: @F
SEEEREENBADHE
S & B3R - k(o)A 5 B I £ 6
FIRBEENE AT ER
ek - BEEEEEMNZE
TE o

EASHOCEREREELNDRE
MEMNENAETLENZH A
SERFHEREEREZEER
BEREMEREEHRIALDRENE
EeoMASREYEBRIREEE
4B KR D LB K [ 5 - U R
BEMEGE ZHECEREES
NAEEFESLENEREBRTIA
R HEZBRD  AEBEITTHER
HEAMNAE ZBECEBEREE RN
AEERRRASECRENER
MBEHOELESE o

UEEREERRIANTESE
REERFRAEREAKEARERE
KEENRENRS2RZANK
KEFTE -

Annual Report 2019 —ZZE— N FFH®K 147



Notes to Financial Statements
B A& R M &

31 December 2019

-
==

3.4

148

—AFE+ZA=t—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12-months (@ 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts and bills receivables and contract asset which apply
the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowances is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts and bills receivables and contract assets that
do not contain a significant financing component or when
the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For account and bills receivables and contract assets that
contain a significant financing component, the Group chooses
as its accounting policy to adopt the general approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as loans and borrowings. The
Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities
at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and other

payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds and promissory notes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost (loans and

borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs.
On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

152

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using weighted average method
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and, an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
tax levied by the same taxable authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets expected to be settled or recovered.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers

at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

€)

(b)

156

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue from provision of construction services is
recognised over time and classified by the Group as a
construction contract with the contract relates to work
on civil engineering and construction assets under the
control of the customer and therefore the Group's
construction activities create or enhance an asset under
the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the output
method, based on th direct measurement of the value
of contract work performed, provided that the value of
contract work performed can be measured reliably. The
value of contract work performed is measured according
to the completion of specific detailed components as
set out in the contract. Variations in contract work are
recognised as contract revenue to the extent that the
modification has been approved by the parties to the
contracts and its is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from other sources

Consultancy fee income is recognised over the schedule
period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are expected to be recovered;

Other income

Interest income is recognised on the accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract asset are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e. transfer control of the related goods
or services to the customer).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

()  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the pattern of the revenue to which the asset related is
recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 30 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service
and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken
as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end of each
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’'s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
("ORSQO") retirement benefit scheme for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the ORSO scheme. This
scheme operates in a way similar to the MPF Scheme, except
that when an employee leaves the scheme prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employee contributions vesting fully,
the ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the relevant amount of forfeited employer’s contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. This subsidiary is
required to contribute certain percentages of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

162

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge
of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on these monetary items
are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currency of certain subsidiaries operating in
the PRC is currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollar at
the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the PRC subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the PRC
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements and have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Revenue recognition of construction contracts
Revenue from construction contracts are recognised over
time. The revenue and profit recognition on uncompleted
projects is dependent on estimating the total outcome of the
contract, as well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group's recent experience and the nature of the construction
activities undertaken by the Group, the Group has made
estimates of the point at which it considered the work was
sufficiently advanced such that the outcome of the contract
can be reasonably measured. Until this point is reached the
related contract assets disclosed in the note 19 do not include
profit which the Group might eventually realise from the work
done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total
cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the
end of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2019
was HK$16,557,000. Further details are given in note 16.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than

goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit loss on accounts and

bills receivables and contract assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its accounts and bills receivables
and contract assets. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. To make that assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and consider reasonable and supportable information, that
is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative
of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.
Significant estimates and judgements are
determining the probability-weighted amount that is not
recoverable and the forecast of future economic conditions.

required in

The information about ECLs on the Group’s contract assets
and accounts and bills receivables is disclosed in notes 19
and 20 to the financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing

rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and service and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

o Automotive engines segment — development, production
and sale of automotive engines

o Civil engineering and construction segment — civil
engineering works and building construction and
maintenance works

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decision
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit
or loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit or loss before
tax except that gain on disposal of subsidiaries, finance costs
as well as corporate and unallocated corporate income or
expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZEER(HE)
Civil engineering and
Automotive engines construction Total
RERDH TRIBREE st
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

=$-hf "B\ ZE-RE T\ Z¥-AF “INF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TR TERT  TER  TER

Segment revenue BB 81,293 276,514 377,816 466,900 459,109 743,414
Segment results PHEE (761,824) (746,607) (38,693) (9,074) (800,517) (755,681)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR 2 W= 1,682 —
Corporate and unallocated income LERRIERA — 80,757
Corporate and unallocated expenses ~ ERKHDERZ (41,594) (19,795)
Finance costs HHBER (82,065) (75,107)
Loss before tax BRBAIER (922,494) (769,826)
Other segment information: Htt A BER:

Bank interest income RITFI B A 4 6 1 1 5 7
Impairment of goodwil HERE (275,821) (174,933) — — (275,821) (174,933)
Impairment of intangible assets EWEERE (88,042) (430,928) — — (88,042) (430,928)

(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of B8R 3 R B Z I
accounts and bills receivables, net (BfE),/FME

BEEE (349,368) (125,256) 212 126 (349,156) (125,130)
Reversal of impairment of contract assets 4 414 & il & %[ — - 312 232 312 232
Provision for inventories GERE (33,140) (3,963) — — (33,140) (3,963)
Depreciation of property, plant and nE- BEREZE
equipment g (5,684) (5.547) (266) (677) (5,950) (6,224)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (1,060) — (1,457) - (2,517) —
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH (1,236) (26,371) — — (1,236) (26,371)
Capital expenditure BREH (127) (1,593) (26) (466) (153) (2,059)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

(@) Revenue from external customers

5.

72 HE R (&)
ith & & B

() XRENBEFHBA

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#& T FHE T

PRC i 81,293 276,514
Hong Kong 55 377,816 466,900
459,109 743,414

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

i A BB TEREFPME

o

(b) FRBEE

2019 2018

= % —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FB T FHE T

PRC i 48,522 680,139
Hong Kong &5 3,407 1,018
51,929 681,157

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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5. 7HERE)

Information about major customers FEREFHNESR

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10% RESETEEFPHBAGEREER

or more of the Group’s revenue for the year, is set out below: FAWAB0%TA E - IATFR

2019 2018
—B-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET

Customer A* BEA 82,068 111,651

Customer B® X FBe — 131,921

Customer C* BEC* 160,740 165,952

Customer D* 2FED* 83,442 84,039

# These customers are under the automotive engines segment. # REEPRABEDRIBLE

E o

* These customers are under the civil engineering and * REBEPEIAIRRREDE -
construction segment.

e The corresponding revenue of these customers are not ° ZE R PR M E R A A EE
disclosed as it individually did not contribute over 10% of the HEABMAEBEZFLRATHE
Group total revenue for that year. i#H10% -

Except for the aforesaid, no revenue from a single external BrEutESN  ERBE—INEEF

customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s WAEREB KR ABI10%3 A £ o

revenue.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. WA - Bl A RKZE FEE

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZAHT -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE& T FHE T
Revenue from contracts with customers HREF 7 M & HNE £ H
WA 459,109 743,414
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. WA - Httg ARWK = FE

(Continued) (#8)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i) PIHFBAER:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hF+=-A=+-—8
IHFEE
Civil
engineering
Automotive and
Segments ol engines construction Total
TARIRE
RER B REE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FER
Type of goods or services & ¥ 5k iR # % 5l
Sales of goods EYHEE 81,293 — 81,293
Construction services 2R = 66,945 66,945
Civil engineering services T ARIRERE — 310,871 310,871
Total revenue from contracts EEF 2 HHEHNEE
with customers B U A 48 58 81,293 377,816 459,109
Geographical markets # & %
Hong Kong BB — 377,816 377,816
PRC F 81,293 = 81,293
Total revenue from contracts & F 2 K &G HEE
with customers Ol N K 81,293 377,816 459,109
Timing of revenue BRKRENEBD
recognition
Goods transferred at a point AR —FEBEZ 2
of time =47 81,293 — 81,293
Services transferred over PERS % 2 RIS
time = 377,816 377,816
Total revenue from contracts E2 & P 2 [ H & KV E £
with customers RNk 81,293 377,816 459,109
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. WA - EMR ARKZFFE
(Continued) (#8)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i)

DIFWBAE R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H

IEEE
Civil
engineering
Automotive and
Segments 7 EB engines  construction Total
+ARIFE
RE I B K& st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Type of goods or services & ¥ 3% iR % 38 5l
Sales of goods EWHEE 276,514 — 276,514
Construction services BiERE — 77,134 77,134
Civil engineering services T ARIERE — 389,766 389,766
Total revenue from contracts HEEF Z B HE K EL
with customers ER ANk 276,514 466,900 743,414
Geographical markets & ™S
Hong Kong &% — 466,900 466,900
PRC A 276,514 — 276,514
Total revenue from contracts HEEF 2 BHE K EL
with customers EOR ANk 276,514 466,900 743,414
Timing of revenue BRBENEBD
recognition
Goods transferred at a point RE— M ZER Y
of time B 276,514 — 276,514
Services transferred over BE B F 88 72 2 IR 7%
time — 466,900 466,900
Total revenue from contracts B &P 2 HH &K EE
with customers EOR ANk 276,514 466,900 743,414
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. WA - HEftlg A Rz F 58
(Continued) (#8)
(i) Performance obligations (i) BHEME
Information about the Group’s performance obligation FRAAREEBEAREREZERS
is summarised below: aan
Sales of goods HE®BMm
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery BRABEERINEmEENKR
of goods and payment is generally due with 60 to 90 MNHBE RN Z60E90H
days from delivery. W& o
Construction and civil engineering services BERIAIRERK
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as B 49 & (£ e 12 1 AR 75 1 32 A &
services are rendered and payment is generally due NFBERKREBERL3I08A
within 30 days from the date of billing. A certain B MR —ELflBEER
percentage of payment is retained by customers REBEZERBHER  BALXE
until the end of the retention period as the Group's B B AR R R AR P
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the & &) P AT 3= 18 B FE A 15 48 AR
satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over BEERGH -
a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.
2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH& T
Other income and gains, net Ht ARz FE
Interest income A EW A 5 7
Consultancy fee income AR & WA 480 1,580
Government subsidies* I8 I 78 Bh * 1,225 4,154
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of HEME BMEKZEIEE
property, plant and equipment m s (& 8) 92 (209)
Gain on extinguishment of convertible &F $4 A] # i% (& %5 2 Uk 5
bond (note 26) (B 3£ 26) . 80,757
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z Wi 1,682 —
Sundry income MK 1,501 68
4,985 86,357
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Various governments grants have been received mainly for
the business development in Chongging Province, Mainland
China. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these subsidies.
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ZET-NF+=ZA=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 7. BBEHR

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERITWT:
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHEIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFB 404 —
Interest on bank and other borrowings R 77 & H b {& X F B 6,141 6,275
Interest on promissory notes R EEFE 41,598 38,469
Imputed interest on convertible bonds — BJ#2 i% (& %5 2 #H & 7| 8 33,922 30,363
82,065 75,107
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8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. BRBIATEIR
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBZBRBRABECSNE,(GTA)
(crediting): =
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 F#& T FAT
Cost of sales: Fiz RPN
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKRAN 79,283 246,466
Provision for inventories FEEE 33,140 3,963
Amortisation of intangible assets | & EE 17 1,236 26,371
Contract costs B # KA 398,006 454,832
511,665 731,632
Research and development costs ot 2% A AR 842 6,163
Impairment of accounts and bills JE W2 AR 3R I JE W 2R AR
receivables* B> 20 349,156 125,130
Reversal of impairment of contract & #J& /& il (B # o] *
assets™* 19 (312) (232)
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% - B E & & &
equipment** P& *x 14 6,223 6,398
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FFAEEERTE 15(a) 3,161 —
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R 2 1,311 1,700
Employee benefit expense EBERAFX
(excluding directors’ and chief (TEEEER
executive’s remuneration X=TBABME
(note 9))* (Mg 3E9)) # 34,255 38,733
Equity-settled share option expense LA % 4 4 & # B % 1
(excluding directors’ and chief A (TEFBEESEK
executives’ remuneration (note 9)) HE TR AEM &
(Bt 5£9)) 27,369 —
Minimum lease payments under KEHETH
operating leases SR iwithen — 3,157
* The impairment of accounts and bills receivables and reversal * FRNEKER R ERERBENLR
of impairment of contract assets for the year are included in AHEERBEREFAGZEERZR
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement profit Hh2mBRaERATTHRAL] -
or loss and other comprehensive income.
**  The depreciation of property, plant and equipment of > FRAME - BMEERRKBEHE
HK$1,339,000 (2018: HK$4,366,000) for the year included in 1,339,000 t(= & — N\ F:
“cost of inventories sold” provided above. 4,366,000/ 7T) 5T A EXFIE[E 6
FEKAR] -
i The employee benefit expense of HK$11,922,000 (2018: # F A& & 18 MR 211,922,000/ 7T
HK$13,509,000) for the year included in “cost of sale” (=2 — )\ £ : 13,509,000/ 7r) &t
provided above. AN XX E8E &R A -
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the vyear,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

EERRSTRAEMS

BEBEBMIMBLSLMAA (FBE
N FEBYE383(1)@) ~ (b) * (O K@)
I R(AT R EE B H 24 %) 18
BIYE2HBEBECFRNEERESIT
BABME®MT:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees 1w 433 432
Other emoluments: H b 357 B
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e 2K
kind B F = 2,063 8,819
Pension scheme contributions RAOKTE FIEH & R
(TREH KT 45 47
Equity-settled share option expense RiEAEEERESE R 1,352 —
3,460 8,866
3,893 9,298

During the year, a director was granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

RER —BEFRRAASE R
8 AR 75 4R 1% AN~ B 19 B B At
ERBRE SRAE-FPHBHEN
BI TS MmRMIFE30 - ZEBREN R
REECREBHANERDBER
BEREARBEDIAELAMERE - M
AAREETBHRRNESEDFTA
PREERERTRAEMEHE
A o
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31 December 2019

—E-NF+ZA=1+—8H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

9.

176

9. EERBESTHRAEM=

REMUNERATION (Continued) (#&)
(@) Independent non-executive directors () BYUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FAXNTELIENITESH
during the year were as follows: s
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme share option Total
Fees in kind  contributions expense remuneration
e 2R RAER REEE
e REVNR FEMR BREERR ok
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ks TET TET TET TET TET
2019 ZE-hE
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BRI E (i) 24 — — — 24
Mr. Yip Tai Him L3¢ $itea (i 4 — — - 41
Mr. Leung Tsz Wing RAEEE 144 — — — 144
Mr. Zhang Guozhi REVE %4 (i) 120 — — — 120
Mr. Ip Mei Shun EXIEEE (iv) 104 — — — 104
433 = = = 433
2018 —E-N\E
Ms. Chu Yin Yin REH AL (v) 131 — - - 131
Mr. Yip Tai Him ERMEE 144 — — — 144
Mr. Chan Kai Wing 34 5 144 - — — 144
Mr. Leung Tsz Wing RYRESE (vi) 13 - — — 13
432 — — — 432

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A

Resigned on 28 February 2019
Resigned on 12 April 2019
Appointed on 28 February 2019

Appointed on 12 April 2019

Resigned on 28 November 2018

Appointed on 28 November 2018

GEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Z—-hE-A=-+NRH

[1AR T

T-nEmA+T-AE

\ZE—-NFZA=+N\H
Z 1
\ZZE-NFWNUA+-—HE
£

—E-)N\Ft+—-HAZtNR

OO K W R

o

RZZE-NF+—A=+N\H
EBZE
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Notes to Financial Statements
p S e

31 December 2019
—E-AE+=A=+—8

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERBSTHRAEME
REMUNERATION (Continued) (#&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive by BITEERKHITESE
directors
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme share option Total
Fees in kind  contributions expense remuneration

& 2H R A RELE
e REVAEH SEMYN BREEA A s
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B & TR FTHER TR TR FTHER
2019 —E-hE
Executive directors WiTER
Mr. Xing Bin MELE — 360 18 — 378
Mr. Lam Wah MELE (i) = 993 12 1,352 2,357
Mr. Liu Wengang Elpdilp (ii) — 300 3 — 303
= 1,653 33 1,352 3,038
Non-executive directors 3EHTES
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TEELE (iii) — 170 6 — 176
Mr. Lam Wah MELE (i) — 240 6 — 246
— 410 12 = 422
= 2,063 45 1,352 3,460
Notes: B 5 -
(i) Re-designated as non-executive director and resigned i RZE—HNAFNA=ZF+—H
as executive director on 31 August 2019 FAERBIENTESRETH
TES
(i) Appointed on 1 November 2019 iy MHZE—NF+—HA—RHE
=
(i) Resigned on 12 April 2019 iy RZE—NFNA+=—HE
£
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31 December 2019
—T-hF+=ZA=+—8H

9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

9. EERBESTHRAEM=

REMUNERATION (Continued) (#&)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive by BITEERKHITESE
director (Continued) (&)
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind  contributions expense  remuneration
e 2 RNER RiERLE
e REWAR FEMT BREER EHe
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fit 5t AT FAEL TEL FTAEL FAEL
2018 —E-N\F
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lo Kin Ching BRERE (i) - 5,740 9 - 5,749
Mr. Wong Hin Shek ITBEREE (ii) — 2,387 16 - 2,403
Mr. Xing Bin &% & — 390 18 — 408
Mr. Lam Wah MERE (iii - 89 2 - 91
— 8606 45 — 8,651
Non-executive director ~ FFH{TEH
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TEELE (ii) — 213 2 — 215
— 8,819 47 — 8,866
Notes: B 5
(i) Retired as executive director and ceased to be the (i) RZE-NEFERATZHE
Chairman on 12 June 2018 EHRTEENTBAETE
(i) Re-designated as non-executive director and resigned (i MZE-—NEF+-HA=+NH
as chief executive officer on 28 November 2018 AERFEPNTESKEFTT
I 48 &
(i) Appointed on 12 November 2018 (i) AZZE—\F+—A+=HE

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018:
Nil).
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. IEBREFHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included REAN - hEmaTMEERE —%
one (2018: two) directors, details of whose remuneration “E-N\F -WMB)ES - HEHH
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of SHBEEHN LEXMFE - RFER - A
the remaining four (2018: three) non-director, highest paid BRUB(ZE-—N\F:ZR) &= FHM
employees for the year are as follows: MIEENEENMESFBFLOT
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % & -~ 2B T W& 7 6,630 5,726
Discretionary performance-related HERBEHBHBIBEL
bonuses 666 2,946
Pension scheme contributions RRAR A E & R 195 192
7,491 8,864
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose B & 1 T 5 48 B &) &% = B B 9
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: EENEEBEAEMET:
2019 2018
—2-7E —T-N\F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T 2
1,500,000 JT 2 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,008 T &
2,000,000/% 7T — 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T &
2,500,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T 2
3,000,000/ 7t 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001t E
4,500,000/ 7T — 1
4 3
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11.

180

INCOME TAX 1. FREH
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group BE-_Z-NAFt+A=1T—HLF
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong B -AEBKRETBEETMER
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). Bisu BMAE - B REERBENEH(Z
Yunbo, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in the PRC, T—\F &) AEBENFEZ—MH
is subject to a preferential corporate income tax (“CIT") rate 2ENBRARAILREBAEKZERD
of 15% (2018: 15%). Tax on profits assessable elsewhere EEH(CEMER]) RI5%EHFH
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the ZE—)\F 1 15%) o H b i [& & R
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. s F 2B IRNEBEERT
AERRZRITBEE -
2019 2018
—E-AEF AN S
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FH& T
Current charge for the year FEHNHEA
PRC CIT tax charge PR EMER — 2,546
Overprovision in prior years — PRC F—F@aEE — 9+ (3,511) —
Deferred (note 28) iR FE (B 75 28) (12,738) (68,605)
Total tax credit for the year FEBHBERLERE (16,249) (66,059)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory/applicable rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

AR AR Je B A #B D M & & =) P2
MBDEERZEE ERBEE
B B T AT S 1808 R A B B R S BRI
EREBRERFENOR AR 2 SR

follows: i
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Loss before tax BrEiRIE A (922,494) (769,826)
At the statutory/applicable rates of BRARBEER ZEE
different jurisdictions HABEE (184,725) (129,877)
Lower tax rate enacted by local T EBRENBENE
authority 41,837 13,333
Income not subject to tax /AR B A (102) (14,041)
Expenses not deductible for tax TSR0 R 2 130,303 64,464
Overprovision in prior years F—FHREEE (3,511) —
Others Hfth (51) 62
Tax credit HMIEE R (16,249) (66,059)
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ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

DIVIDEND 12. BRE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any final EETEBRAFEEIR ML ] K E
dividend in respect of the year (2018: Nil). EE(ZE—N\F &)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 13. BARIEEAEBLEERER
OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based BRERAEBNEESAGHEA
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the JE {4 N /E518905,423,0008 L (=&
parent of HK$905,423,000 (2018: HK$703,767,000) and the — J\4 : 3% 703,767,000 7T) & 35
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during SHEE BT TR Z MEFHE
the reporting period. FTE -
The calculation of the diluted loss per share amounts is based EREEEBEBDERERATREERA
on the loss for the year attributable to the owners of the BIEFANBEERFTE  WHKABUR
parent, adjusted to reflect the interest on the convertible MAmRESFE - ARAEZE
bonds. The weighted average number of ordinary shares BERMETFIBRSERERNEE
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in HEHREANFASETEBREE -
issue during the year, as used in the basic loss per share BEBBRMETFHHEDERRRER
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary BET HRARTEXNESHRAEEE
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on BELTARALZRER -
the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based BREARBISEENGEER:
on:
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FH& T
Loss &8
Loss attributable to owners of the ARFAEFRER
parent, used in basic loss per share BENERAREE A
calculation FE15 & 18 (905,423) (703,767)
Interest on convertible bonds AR EHF 2B 33,922 30,363
Loss attributable to owners of the MR AT R & 2552
parent before interest on convertible — AI& A BB A A
bonds & 18 (871,501) (673,404)
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13.

182

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 13. R RARIBEEAELEESRERE

OF THE PARENT (Continued) (#&)
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based EREALBEEEENGTEER:
on:

Number of shares

g
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)N\F
Shares A& 19
Weighted average number of ordinary MR TEEFIE ALK #8
shares in issue during the year used BB 2FANB BT
in the basic and diluted loss per share i f% hn & F 5 &
calculation 200,000,000 200,000,000
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended HE_Z-—NFE_T-—N\F+=A
31 December 2019 and 2018 does not assume the impact T+ —BIEFEZERESEE
of the convertible bonds outstanding since their assumed B RBITEARARA Z EARITHE
conversion would result in a decrease in loss per share. ERERERITBRER  REAR

HEREAKERTREBERRD -
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—E-Af+=A=+-A

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BRERRHE
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and  and office Motor Construction
improvements  equipment  equipment  vehicles in progress Total
A
EEHER

HERE HBERRE BHORE nE  EEIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TER THET

31 December 2019 “E-NE
+=A=+-H
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-N\F
1 January 2019: +ZA=+-8RK
“E-NE-RA-AB:

Cost AR 388 51,689 5,278 1,558 18 58931

Accumulated depreciation RitE (39) (16,925) (2,247) (1,128) — (20,339

Net carrying amount BEEE 349 34,764 3,031 430 18 38,592
At 1 January 2019, net of RZE-N¥—-A-H"

accumulated depreciation MBREFHE 349 34,764 3,031 430 18 38,592
Additions NE 8,187 52 279 919 6,491 15,928
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) Y & I B 2 7] (f 5£32) = — 152 1,007 522 1,681
Disposals HeE = = — (16) — (16)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) & B A R (P 52 33) (8,187) = (338) (1,799) (6,946)  (17,270)
Transfer Bz — 67 — — (67) —
Depreciation provided during the year 4 Fa#7 & & f& (i 5£8)

(note 8) (78) (5,566) (319) (260) = (6,223)
Exchange realignment I — (527) (48) 3 — (572)
At 31 December 2019, net of RZZE-NE

accumulated depreciation +-A=t—8”"

Mk e 271 28,790 2,757 284 18 32,120
At 31 December 2019: RZZE—nF
+=ZA=+-8:

Cost AR 388 50,589 4,586 495 18 56,076

Accumulated depreciation 2 E (17) (21,799) (1,829) (211) — (23956

Net carrying amount REEE 271 28,790 2,757 284 18 32,120
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ BERRE(E)
(Continued)

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and and office Motor ~ Construction
improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
AL
EE%ER

REWE HERFZBE MHORE AE EBRIR st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAR TAL  TERL TEL  TATL

31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+=ZA=+-H
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—LF
1 January 2018: +ZA=+-HBk
—E-\$-R—-H:

Cost AR 428 52,053 4,337 1,340 1,850 60,008

Accumulated depreciation i (206) (12,170) (1,561) (1,255) — (15,192)

Net carrying amount BEEE 222 39,883 2,776 85 1,850 44,816
At 1 January 2018, net of R-_E-NF—HF—H"

accumulated depreciation NRRHHE 222 39,883 2,776 85 1,850 44,816
Additions NE 432 482 1,122 436 19 2,491
Disposals HE n) - 3) - — (214)
Transfer i - 1,760 - — (1,760) —
Depreciation provided during the year 4 ¥ & & #& (i 5£8)

(note 8) (94) (5,455) (758) 91) — (6,398)
Exchange realignment fEHAR — (1,906) (106) — 91) (2,103)
At 31 December 2018, net of RZZ-N\F

accumulated depreciation +-B=+—H"

Mk 2EtiTE 349 34,764 3,031 430 18 3859
At 31 December 2018: RZE-NF
+-A=+-8:

Cost AR 388 51,689 5,278 1,558 18 58,931

Accumulated depreciation i (39) (16,925) (2,247) (1,128) —  (20,339)

Net carrying amount BEEE 349 34,764 3,031 430 18 38,592
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15. LEASES 15. #HE
The Group as lessee AEEEREEA
The Group leases office premises for its daily operations. The AEBABELERER QG-
lease term is two years, with an option to renew the lease Tﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi AIAIRIEBAEEN
when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually EmEERBEETHE - BEHN
increased annually to reflect current market rentals. FORBIREE MU REE RO TS
HE e
(@) Right of use assets (@ SEHAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets REARN AEEBFEREEER
and the movements during the year are as follows: HEREHHBREOT:
Office premises
N
HK$'000
FHETT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—-H—H 3,882
Additions NE 2,546
Depreciation charge TEEHR (3,161)
Exchange alignment ME H, 58 B (15)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hF+-_A=+—H 3,252
(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the (b) ?&EE‘E o
movements during the year are as follows: ZEW HERRKREENR
""""" EHFERWOT
Office premises
NS
HK$'000
FET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZFE-—NF—A—BAZEHE 3,882
New leases MEE 2,546
Accretion of interest recognised during the 4= A # 52 89 F 2 38 o0 (B 5£7)
year (note 7) 404
Payments 3% (3,429)
Exchange realignment ME H, 58 B (31)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 RZFE-—NAF+ZA=+—8H2
fRmEE 3,372
Analysed into: DA
Current portion Bl HA &8 9> 552
Non-current portion JEBNHA &R 2,820
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—T-hF+=ZA=+—8H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. & (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEEHAHEAE)
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (0 HEERBERIPHEIHSHEN
leases are as follows: T:
2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 404
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENEEZER 3,161
Total amount recognised in profit or loss FTAB B 3,565
16. GOODWILL 16. BHE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHE T
Cost and net carrying amount: B K B TE (A
At 1 January R—H—H 297,552 498,343
Acquisition of subsidiaries L B BT /B~ R
(note 32) (B 5E32) 419 —
Disposal of subsidiaries & BT B A A
(note 33) (Bff 5£33) (419) —
Impairment during the year FE N E (275,821) (174,933)
Exchange realignment PE o, 3 2 (5,174) (25,858)
At 31 December n+-HA=+—H 16,557 297,552
Goodwill acquired through a business combination is RETHEINZRAME  BBEKE
allocated to the cash-generating unit of the Automotive HAKENE B EETEEY
Engines Business (the “Automotive Engines CGU") for WEBBeEESBM([AEEFHHE
impairment testing. ReEEEM] -
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Notes to Financial Statements

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill
For the year ended 31 December 2019

The full resumption of production of the Automotive Engines
Business Customers encountered further delay during 2019
due to the shortage in supply due to the suppliers’ concern
on the payment ability of the Automotive Engines Business
Customers. The Automotive Engines Business Customers need
to undergo further financial and operational restructuring to
address the suppliers’ concern but such restructuring is still
in progress as of the reporting date. Based on discussion
with the Automotive Engines Business Customers, only the
restructuring of one of the Automotive Engines Business
Customers, namely Baic Yinxiang Automobile Co., Ltd.* (3t
ARATEBRAA,
but the result of the restructuring is still uncertain. Moreover,
it is expected the COVID-19 outbreak will further delay the
restructuring negotiation and progress.

“Baic Yinxiang”) is making progress

In view of the above situations, the Board performed
an impairment assessment as at 31 December 2019 and
recognised impairment losses of HK$275,821,000 (2018:
HK$174,933,000) in connection with goodwill allocated to
Automotive Engines CGU for the year ended 31 December
2019 (“2019 Annual Valuation”). The impairment losses
are made based on the results of impairment tests for the
goodwill using their value in use calculation with reference to
a valuation performed by Moore Transaction Services Limited
(“Moore"”), (formerly known as “Moore Stephens Advisory
Services Limited”), an independent professionally qualified
valuer. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based, to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

(@) the cash flow projections from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2024 (the “Forecast Period”)
on management expectation of future business
performance and prospects of the Automotive Engines
CGU;
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

188

(b)

since only the restructuring on BAIC Yinxiang is making
progress, the uncertainty about the resumption of
the operations of other Automotive Engines Business
Customers is very high. It is therefore assumed only
BAIC Yinxiang can resume its operations during the
Forecast Period. Therefore, only potential cashflow from
the purchase plan of BAIC Yinxiang is considered in the
projected cashflow during the Forecast Period,;

given the restructuring of BAIC Yinxiang is still in
progress, it is assumed BAIC Yinxiang can only resume
its operations and execute its purchasing plan from
2021 onwards;

downward adjustments of 70% on the revenue from
the purchasing plan of BAIC Yinxiang were made by
the management considering the historical difference
between the actual purchase from BAIC Yinxiang and
the past purchase plans as well as the uncertainty of
the success of the restructuring. The forecasted revenue
during the Forecast Period ranges from approximately
HK$104,037,000 for the year ending 31 December
2021 to HK$229,330,000 for the year ending 31
December 2024;

the net (loss)/profit margin of (1.4)% to 6.4%
throughout the Forecast Period were estimated by the
management based on the historical gross profit margin
and fixed overheads with downward adjustments
considering higher marketing expenses in the future.
The forecasted net loss during the Forecast Period
ranges from HK$1,476,000 to net profit HK$14,741,000
from the year ending 31 December 2021 to the year
ending 31 December 2024;
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Notes to Financial Statements

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

(f)  the post-tax discount rate of 18.43% based on the
weighted average cost of capital representing the
weighted average return attributable to all of the
operating assets of the CGU; the pre-tax discount rate
of 20.20% determined by an iterative computation so
that the value in use determined using pre-tax cash
flows and a pre-tax discount rate equals value in use
determined using post-tax cash flows and a post-tax
discount rate; and

(g0 the growth rate beyond 2024 was 2.5% which did
not exceed the long-term average growth rate of the
industry.

The inputs and assumptions used in the 2019 Annual
Valuation has the following significant changes from those
previously adopted in 2018:

(@) the assumed date of the resumption of operation was
delayed from 1 July 2019 to 1 January 2021 due to the
delay in the restructuring of the Automotive Engines
Business Customers;

(b)  only BAIC Yinxiang is assumed to resume its operation
while in 2018 all Automotive Engines Business
Customers were assumed to resume their operations.
This change of assumption is mainly due to the lack of
progress and therefore high uncertainty of the success
of the restructuring of Automotive Engines Business
Customers other than BAIC Yinxiang; and

() downward adjustment from the purchase plan of BAIC
Yinxiang increased from 50% in 2018 to 70% in 2019
due to the increased uncertainty of the success of the
restructuring of BAIC Yinxiang given the further delay
in the plan as well as the obstacles from the suppliers
in the supply chain.
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board performed
an impairment assessment with reference to a valuation
performed by Moore (the “2018 Annual Valuation”) because
the Board considered that it was necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets, in light
of i) the negative market growth of automobile sales in the
PRC in 2018; ii) the financial difficulties encountered by the
Automotive Engines Business Customers and; iii) the risk and
time required for the Automotive Engines Business Customers
to complete the negotiation of the resumption arrangement
with all suppliers along the supply chain to resume normal
operation.

The discounted cash flow method under income approach
was adopted by Moore in the 2018 Annual Valuation. The
2018 Annual Valuation was based on the following key
assumptions and input:

(@) the projected cash flow from 31 December 2019
to 31 December 2023 (the “2018 Forecast Period”)
on management expectation of future business
performance and prospects of the CGU;

(b)  the revenue for the 2018 Forecast Period projected
by the management based on the purchasing plan of
the major customers of the CGU with the downward
adjustments of 50% made by the management
considering the historical difference between the actual
purchase from the major customers and the past
purchase plans;

() the net profit margin for the 2018 Forecast Period
was estimated by the management based on the
historical net profit margin with downward adjustments
considering higher marketing expenses in the future;
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Notes to Financial Statements

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(d)

the post-tax discount rate of 18.38% based on the
weighted average cost of capital representing the
weighted average return attributable to all of the
operating assets of the CGU; the pre-tax discount rate
of 21.42% determined by an iterative computation so
that the value in use determined using pre-tax cash
flows and a pre-tax discount rate equals value in use
determined using post-tax cash flows and a post-tax
discount rate; and

the growth rate beyond the 2018 Forecast Period was
2.5% which did not exceed the long-term average
growth rate of the industry.

The inputs and assumptions used in the 2018 Annual

Valuation has the following significant changes from those
previously adopted:

(a

the post-tax discount rate adopted increased from
16.96% for the valuation for the year ended 31
December 2017 to 18.38% for 2018 Annual Valuation
to reflect the deterioration in the operation and
financial stability of the major clients of the CGU; and

the cash flow forecast for the 2018 Forecast Period
was adjusted downward by the management in 2018
Annual Valuation compared with 2017 to reflect the
slowdown of the growth in automobile industry in the
PRC and the deterioration in operation of the major
clients of the CGU due to the financial difficulties
encountered by the Automotive Engines Business
Customers as well as the risk and time required for
them to complete the negotiation of the resumption
arrangement with all suppliers along the supply chain
to resume normal operation.
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16. GOODWILL (Continued) 16. EHE ()

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the Automotive Engines CGU from
the impairment assessment using the above key assumptions
against the carrying amount of the Automotive Engines CGU
as at 31 December are analysed below:

2R ERE (')
R+-A=+—B  AEZEPERRS
ELXBMOHAKRESERA Lt
ZRJELRMEFGHRESH) RITE
HYPRASELELUNE@EDN
LU

2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FHE T
Recoverable amount of BREGESHESEL
CGU per valuation Bz W E & FE 48,000 461,058
Carrying amount of the CGU: ReEAEN 2 REE:
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERXRE 31,443 38,574
Intangible assets EEE — 88,618
Goodwiill BES 16,557 297,552
48,000 424,744
Headroom Available 7] F Z= [ — 36,314

While the management has taken a conservative estimate
in performing the impairment assessment, the recoverable
amount of the Automotive Engines CGU equals to the
carrying amount of the Automotive Engines CGU as at
31 December 2019. Therefore, any unfavorable reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions indicated above on
which the management had based its determination of the
CGU'’s recoverable amount may cause further impairment loss
during the year.

Based on the impairment assessment for the year ended 31
December 2019, the Board estimated that the Automotive
Engines Business Customers would generate to the Group
an aggregate revenue of HK$Nil, HK$104,037,000 and
HK$135,416,000 for the years ending 31 December 2020,
2021 and 2022 and an aggregate net (loss)/profit before
any impairment loss and amortisation of intangible assets
and goodwill of HK$(11,286,000), HK$(1,476,000) and
HK$2,571,000 for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021
and 2022.
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ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREE
Customer
contracts
EFEHX
HK$'000
TERT
31 December 2019 —E-AF+=ZH=+-—H
Net carrying amount: FREDFE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—AH 88,618
Amortisation provided during the year (note 8) FADE B & (M E8) (1,236)
Impairment during the year FARE (88,042)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 B 660
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hF+-RAR=+—H —
At 31 December 2019: RZB-—NF+-A=+—8:
Cost DN 658,096
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RET#HERBE (658,096)
Net carrying amount REFE —
31 December 2018 —E2-N\E+=ZA=+—H
Net carrying amount: BREFE:
At 1 January 2018 R-E—N\F—HF—H 556,230
Amortisation provided during the year (note 8) FAE B e ( 58) (26,371)
Impairment during the year FRRE (430,928)
Exchange realignment PE o, 38 = (10,313)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-NF+-A=1+—H 88,618
At 31 December 2018: RZFE-—NFT+ZA=+—8:
Cost DN 669,741
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2t E i RRE (581,123)
Net carrying amount FREFE 88,618
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17.

194

NFE+-ZA=+—H

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Customer contracts represent certain automotive engine
sales framework agreements (the “Automotive Engine Sales
Framework Agreements”) entered into by Well Surplus
Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Automotive
Engines Group”) in 2015 and pursuant to which the related
customers agreed to procure pre-agreed quantities of engines
from the Automotive Engines Group from 2016 to 2020. In
February 2018, the Automotive Engines Group entered into
certain supplemental Automotive Engine Sales Framework
Agreements (the “Supplemental Agreements”) with the
related customers, pursuant to which the customer contract
period was extended to 2022, and the pre-agreed quantities
of engines were adjusted based on the customers’ latest
production needs. The customer contracts are amortised to
profit or loss under the unit of production method over the
relevant contract period.

The recoverable amounts of the intangible assets were
determined based on value in use calculation using cashflow
projections of financial budgets covering to the customer
contract period of the Automotive Engines Agreements and
Supplemental Agreements extended to 2022 approved by
management.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, an impairment loss
of HK$88,042,000 (2018: HK$430,928,000) was recognised
and the full carrying amount of the intangible assets was
impaired and provided as at 31 December 2019.

In view of the same reasons as disclosed in note 16 above, the
Board assessed the impairment loss on the intangible assets,
which were essentially the value of the automotive engine
sales framework agreement and the supplemental agreements
with the Automotive Engines Business Customers which would
expire in 2022. By applying the same key assumptions as the
impairment test of the goodwill which detailed in note 16
above, the present value of the estimated free cash flow arising
from the sales to the Automotive Engines Business Customers
from 2020 to 2022 (2018: 2019 to 2022) was extracted from
the valuation report prepared by Moore to determine the
impairment loss on the intangible assets. Since the present
value extracted was negative, management consider there is
no recoverable amount from the intangible assets and a full
impairment loss was provided.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

INVENTORIES 18. &
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Raw materials JR AR 6,581 105,942
Finished goods 2K ah 3,314 862
9,895 106,804
CONTRACT ASSETS 19. EHEE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F —N\F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FETT
Contract assets arising from: 2 B8 LA T & EH)
BHEE:
Construction services BERS 4,006 44,118 44,118
Civil engineering services T ARITERHE 56,718 153,816 188,173
60,724 197,934 232,291
Impairment B (101) (413) (645)
60,623 197,521 231,646

The excess of cumulative revenue recognised in profit
or loss over the cumulative billings for construction or
civil engineering services are recognised as contract
assets. Included in contract assets for construction or
civil engineering services are retention receivables. Upon
completion of construction or civil engineering work and
acceptance by customer, the amounts recognised as contract
assets are reclassified to accounts receivables. The decrease
in contract assets in 2019 and 2018 was the result of
decrease in ongoing provision for both construction and/or
civil engineering services at the end of each of the years. The
Group’s trading terms and credit policy with customers are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
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19.

196

NE+=ZA=+—H

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 19. ERNEEE)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract R+ZA=T—BREeHNEENKE
assets as at 31 December is as follows: NEEMTERREDT
2019 2018
—ZE-h#EF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within one year —F R 54,599 172,972
After one year —F1& 6,024 24,549
Total contract assets BWENEE 60,623 197,521
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of EREERBEBEEREZSHOT
contract assets are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
At beginning of year REH] 413 645
Reversal of impairment of losses BB B 18 Bl (B 518)
(note 8) (312) (232)
At end of year RER 101 413

Included in the above impairment allowance for contract
assets is an allowance for an individually impaired contract
asset of HK$101,000 (2018: HK$413,000) which was
considered in default due to indicators which showed that
the Group unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amount in full. Except for the specific impairment allowance
mentioned above, an impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates for the
measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the accounts receivable as the
contract assets and the accounts receivable are from the same
customer bases, the expected credit losses of contract assets
were minimal as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 19. ERNEEE)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TXIEHFERBERREAENRE
on the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix: EENEENEERBRER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBBLX 0.00%-4.85%  0.03%-9.85%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
Gross carrying amount BRHEARE 60,724 197,934
Expected credit losses EHEEEBE 101 413
ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. EWRRAR K EWRERE

Accounts and bills receivables represented receivables for
contract work and sale of automotive engines. The payment
terms of contract work receivables are stipulated in the
relevant contracts and the credit period is generally 30 days.
The payment terms for receivables arising from sales of
automotive engines are mainly on credit and the credit period
is generally 90 days. The payment terms of bills receivable
are stipulated in the relevant bills and their maturity periods
normally range from 90 to 180 days. The carrying amounts
of accounts and bills receivables approximate to their fair
values. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its accounts and bills receivables balances
and they are non-interest bearing.

ERERNEBREREGNTRER
HEANBHDHURNBKRENR - 64
TREEEINNRTEREHEA
HIRETER - MIEEH—MRA308 ° K
BHEETEEIROERRRNN
RATEUNEERT MEEH R
/3901 ° U B A0 A5 AR SR 4
ARBEATHR  EIHEHE RN
F90E180H - U IR M EM R &
MEEEREQAREERSE A&
36 4 L ORE KRR R N R R A
BE AT AR EMERER -
ARER/RE -

Annual Report 2019 —ZE— A FEFH 197



Notes to Financial Statements
B A& R M &

31 December 2019

-
==

20.

198

—AFE+ZA=t—H

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, bills receivables
amounted to HK$475,078,000 were overdue and returned
to the Automotive Engines Business Customers and are
reclassified to accounts receivables for impairment assessment
accordingly.

20. BWERE

R W RS (&)

HE-_Z—NWF+-A=+—HILF
g - & Uk Z $5475,078,00058 JT 2 #
HYRETAELHREFREF,
WEHDEEREKER -

2019 2018
—2-nE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHE T
Accounts receivable JE Uk BR X 698,306 178,221
Bills receivable R — 483,485
698,306 661,706
Impairment YR E] (491,100) (144,452)
207,206 517,254

Represented by: 2%
— non-current assets — ERBEE — 256,395
— current assets — REBEE 207,206 260,859
207,206 517,254

During the year of 2018, the Group has re-negotiated
with the Automotive Engines Business Customers on
the repayment terms of the outstanding accounts and
bills receivables amounted to HK$592,615,000, in which
those customers have agreed to undertake to repay their
outstanding amounts by 12-month instalments basis
commencing from 1 July 2019. However, due to the further
delay in the restructuring and resumption of operations of
the Automotive Engines Business Customers, the Automotive
Engines Business Customers further postponed their
repayments. As of the end of reporting period, there was no
new agreement is reached on the new repayment schedule
of the Automotive Engines Business Customers due to the
delay and uncertainty of the restructuring and resumption of
its operations.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's
accounts receivable relate to a few number of major
customers, there is concentration of credit risk and further
details are discussed in note 41 to the financial statements.
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20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. EWERRREWEE (&)

(Continued)
The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice or delivery date

RBERR BRERRERERX
NEBARIREBERREBR ZREKD

and net of loss allowance, is as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FETT
Within 3 months =@ AR 32,218 146,768
4 to 6 months mENEA 117 2,390
Over 6 months JNE A 174,871 2,272
207,206 151,430

The maturity profile of bills receivable, based on the issue
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

RUREREZTEHEMEGER
BErRoOIMESTIEWT

2019 2018

—E-hF —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

4 to 6 months AN = — 184,936
Over 6 months NE AU £ — 180,888
= 365,824

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

FEUW R R & R R BB B 1R AR

accounts and bills receivables are as follows: gamT:
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
At beginning of year NS 144,452 19,322
Impairment losses (note 8) 1B & 18 (P 528) 349,156 125,130
Exchange realignment PE X & (2,508) —
At end of year REXR 491,100 144,452
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NE+=ZA=+—H

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Impairment

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses on remaining accounts and bills receivables. The
Group determines the provision for expected credit losses
by grouping together accounts and bills receivables with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessing
them for likelihood of recovery, taking into account prevailing
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s accounts and bills receivables using
a provision matrix:

20. EWERR K EWRE (FE)

{8
REREAMERBERELETR
BN - PAEH 8 T & I8 4R 3 &% 8
WERZEHEEBR /FERE
HEEER AEERRERNE
ERREHREEREREZEREY A
REEBAZLEBR  SEFEHEKD
HY R BE M ©

TS5 B PR B T B B A0 KR
B R R R A AR
3R

Pass due
B
Current 1-3 months  Over 3 months Total
IR —-Z=f#A ZEARE @5t
2019 —E-RF
Expected credit losses rate HEHEEHEX 0.6% 0.0% 73.7% 70.3%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FTER FTER TER
Gross carrying amount REAE 32,236 117 665,953 698,306
Expected credit losses HHEEEE 18 — 491,082 491,100
2018 —T-N\F
Expected credit losses rate EHEERREX 20.2% 23.8% 24.0% 21.8%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAT FTHET
Gross carrying amount REEAE 358,774 254,116 48,816 661,706
Expected credit losses EBHEEEE 72,370 60,366 11,716 144,452
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20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s accounts and bills receivables by
business segments:

Civil Engineering &
Construction

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

20. EUBRR K EWRE (&)

IXINEEERH D EBE DAL E
BRERREERBEEERRNE

X

Automotive Engines Total
nERDH aE
2019 2018 2019 2018

=g-A%F “F-\F SE-AF “TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRA  TET  FTER  TER

TRIBRER
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Gross amount fak 33,125 68,634
Impairment B (18) 231)

665,181 593,072 698,306 661,706
(491,082) (144,221) (491,100) (144,452)

33,107 68,403

174,099 448,851 207,206 517,254

The Group engaged Moore Transaction Services Limited
(“Moore”), (formerly known as Moore Stephens Advisory
Services Limited) to perform an independent assessment
report to provide references to the Group for the assessment
of expected credit loss of accounts and bills receivables for
the Company in accordance to HKFRS 9.

Concerning the civil engineering and construction segment,
since the customers were mainly institutions related with
the Hong Kong Government, public companies or associates
of public companies, Moore Stephens have obtained or
estimated their relevant credit ratings and determined the
relevant default and recovery rates according to historical
statistics. The Group has also considered possible changes in
the macro economy and other factors which may result in
different default behavior and credit risks of the debtors as
compared to its historical performance. Based on the available
information as of the time, it was not expected there could
be changes in the credits of the customers in this segment.

AEEZFEMoore Transaction Services
Limited ([Moore |)( Bl T8 /& 5 it & 7%
HERARETE NGRS - A
AEBERBEEEVBERELENFIR
FEARREKER R ERZED
EHEEEERHESZ2E -

FAREIARTERERBZERTSE - AR
EFIZREFTSHFARKE
EHRRRR ETARMBEBAL - H
HEEEEFREFTRERREER
FHOARBELGKAERETHE
FOENERREIRE - REBTEE
TERBREENAREEPREMBEE
HEHFESLRBAELL  ZFE21{A
EEHEFANENTAREER
SBEMTE - REZEEEEER
Bz MPNEPERIEEE
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ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Concerning the Automotive Engines segment, for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the customers were experiencing
financial difficulties due to the suspension of capital supply
and it is expected the associated credit risk would increase
materially. Meanwhile, a restructuring agreement was made
among the debtors, banks and local government which would
provide financing to the debtors to resume their normal
operations. Considering the above two factors together
with the financials of the debtors provided, a lowest credit
rating of CCC grade was assigned to the debtors. Relevant
default rate of 40.31% and recovery rate of 38.43% were
determined according to historical statistics of the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the full resumption
of production of the Automotive Engines Business Customers
encountered further delay during 2019 due to the shortage
in supply due to the suppliers’ concern on the payment
ability of the Automotive Engines Business Customers. The
Automotive Engines Business Customers need to undergo
further financial and operational restructuring to address the
suppliers’ concern but such restructuring is still in progress.
Based on discussion with the Automotive Engines Business
Customers, as of the reporting date, only the restructuring of
one of the Automotive Engines Business Customers, namely
Baic Yinxiang Automobile Co., Ltd.* (At/ZRATEEHR A
Al, "BAIC Yinxiang”) is making progress but the result of
the restructuring is still uncertain. Moreover, it is expected
the COVID-19 outbreak will further delay the restructuring
negotiation and progress. Considering the above factors,
default rate of 100% was assigned to all Automotive Engines
Business Customer. Relevant recovery rates of 38.6%, which
is determined according to historical statistics of the market
for a lowest credit rating of CCC grade, was assigned to BAIC
Yinxiang and 12.5%, which is estimated from the average
recovery rate from liquidation cases in China, was assigned
to other Automotive Engines Business Customers.

Expected credit losses for both segments were calculated
according to the above basis and impairment loss were made
accordingly to determine the carrying amount of accounts
and bills receivables.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited tb i Fl & £ B B R A R A A

20. EWERR K EWRE (FE)
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The major impaired and overdue accounts and bills
receivables were from the Automotive Engines segment. In
order to recover these impaired and overdue accounts and
bills receivables, the Group has taken up and will take the
following actions:

o Demanding letters were sent to the customers for the
overdue balances.

o Regularly communicate with the customers on the latest
development of the restructuring exercise.

o Site visits to the customers were performed regularly
to verify the restructuring progress and closely
communicate to the customers.

o As disclosed in the announcement dated 11 September
2019, a winding-up petition has been filed by a
creditor against BAIC Yinxiang, which was accepted
and publicised by a court on 10 September 2019.
The Group has then engaged a local legal adviser to
represent the Group in the process to ensure the rights
of the Group would be protected.

o The Group has not filed winding-up petition against
the customers due to the consideration of the long-
term relationship with the customers as well as the
understanding that the restructuring plan was still in
progress. It is also advised by the local legal advisor
that cost of initiation of court action will be very high
and the rights of the Group would not be infringed
if other creditors file the wind-up petition earlier than
the Group. Having said that, the Group will continue
to monitor the situation and seek legal advice on
appropriate actions steps in the future to best recover
the accounts and bills receivables.

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. EARIE ZeRHMBEWK
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHE T
Prepayments TEF IR 1,203 517
Deposits and other receivables 12 & & Hith fE 5K 43,462 33,561
44,665 34,078
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to Fil&EHnBE e e & E Ty i 5
receivables for which there was no recent history of default I & R 4 K s HA AR SRR B A FE WRBR
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, RE@  RZZTE—NF+ZA=1—
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. AN \F+=_A=+—8"8
EREWTHAMTEM-
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. RERBLEEY
2019 2018
—B-nE T N&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHE T
Cash and bank balances He MIRITESR 64,777 26,971

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$1,568,000 (2018: HK$1,597,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, under PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration

however,

of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.
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23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

23. EFERRE

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end T RIEZEZHHRSREHKRE
of each reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as RER R Z BRER DA -
follows:
2019 2018
—B-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Within 3 months =@ AR 47,144 101,069
4 to 6 months gz XE A 359 28,187
Over 6 months 8@ 7S @ A 265,797 211,504
313,300 340,760
At 31 December 2019, retentions payable included in RZE—-—NAF+ZA=+—H"

accounts payable amounted to HK$8,444,000 (2018:
HK$13,348,000) and were normally settled on terms ranging
from two to three years. The carrying amounts of accounts
payable approximate to their fair values.

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms ranging from 7 to 120 days. The payment
terms are stipulated in the relevant contracts.

JEHEE REERENRKRERIE
78,444,000 (= T — N\ E
13,348,000 7T) * — N FME=
¢W,u#°ﬁﬁﬁﬁ AR EEEE
NAEEEE

e BR KB RETFE

1R0BAEE - IHIERK )Wﬁ%%é.\,%’]
FETH ©
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24, HENRREARE R

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHE T

Accruals of costs for contract work & #) T 12 5k AN 59
EiRE R 27,743 52,333
Other payables H b FE 3R () 15,803 17,504
Accruals EREA 12,140 16,115
Due to a shareholder B — 2R R FRIA (b) 29,752 7,500
Due to a director BN —RESZHRIE © — 2,220
85,438 95,672

Represented by: K&

— non-current liabilities — ERBEE 29,752 7,944
— current liabilities — nBBEE 55,686 87,728
85,438 95,672

The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals

approximate to their fair values.

Notes:

(@  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected to

be settled within one year.

(b)  The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable in

2022.

(©) The amount was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed

terms of repayment.
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ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. STRRITRHAMERK
BORROWINGS
2019 2018
“E-hE “E-N\E
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
per annum Maturity  HK$'000 per annum Maturity ~ HK$'000
ERNERE ANERE
(%) BHA TERT (%) 38R TEL
Current T E
Bank overdrafts — unsecured ~ $RITEY — EHE = — —  The Hong Kong  On demand 5,265
dollar prime REX
rate 1% or
HIBOR +1%
ROIBELEESR
F %1%
Y EERT
RZFE+%
Bank loans — unsecured RITEH — BER HIBOR 2020 4,080 HIBOR 2019 7,490
+1.75% t0 25% Z—E-FE +175% 10 25% Z—E—NEF
EBRTAERE EAROTAXFE
+1.75% 22.5% +1.75% £2.5%
Other loans — unsecured HtEH — BER 10%-12% 2020 53,900 10%-12% 2019 51,500
g o 3:3 ZE-NE
57,980 64,255
Non-current ERE
Other loans — unsecured HEH — &R = = — 5% 2020 6,000
ZE-%F
57,980 70,255
Notes: B 3T -
(@)  During the reporting period, there is no overdraft facilities of (@ RIFEHA AEEEBELEE -

(©

the Group. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s overdraft
facilities amounting to HK$6,000,000 of which HK$5,265,000

had been utilised.

The Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are
repayable within one year (2018: one to two years).

A corporate guarantee was given by the Company for the
outstanding balance of bank loans of HK$12,715,000 (2018:
HK$12,755,000) as at 31 December 2019.

All borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars.

(@

(d)

Annual Report 2019 —Z — L EE#f
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 26. AR ES
The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated E/\Zﬁ’\ﬁﬂ‘“ﬂﬁ/ﬁi%ﬁ%u/uﬁ’]—ﬁﬁﬂxt
statement of financial position are bifurcated into two FoigstAgma AMEES - 55l
components for accounting purposes, namely the liability REBEHXDRERHSS M Z%‘E‘B
component and the equity component, and the movements in RmEBMANOEENT -

these components during the reporting period are as follows:

Liability Equity
component component Total
EfEHs Bz gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET

At 1 January 2018 RZZFE—-—NF—H—H 387,665 390,716 778,381
Interest expense (note 7) B (P 3E7) 30,363 — 30,363
Gain on extinguishment of HERATBRKRESZ
convertible bonds (note 6) W 2= (Pt 5%6) (65,617) (15,140) (80,757)
At 31 December 2018 and R-E—)\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—8k
—E-NF—HA—H 352,411 375,576 727,987
Interest expense (note 7) A EFZ (M 5E7) 33,922 — 33,922
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
—A=+—H 386,333 375,576 761,909
The details of the outstanding principal amount of the EBMREETRREFASEF
convertible bonds is as follows: BT
HK$'000
FHE T
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, RZZE-—NF—H—8"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —E-N\FE+A=+—H"
—E-nF—A—Bk
T—-NF+-_A=+—8H 390,000
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

A reconciliation of the principal amount of the convertible

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

26. AIARRME F (4E)

HEHEUW B KIE - ATRBRESA

bonds to their fair value upon completion of the Engines SHEEEAABECHENT:
Acquisition is as follows:
HK$'000
FAET
Principal amount ok 390,000
Fair value adjustment NRABEFAE 336,698
Fair value NABEE 726,698

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$390,000,000 to Power Expert as part of the consideration
for the Engines Acquisition. The maturity date of the
convertible bonds is on the second anniversary of the date
of issuance (i.e. 4 February 2018). The convertible bonds bear
no interest on the principal amount. No security or guarantee
is granted in respect of the convertible bonds. The convertible
bonds can be converted into 195,000,000 ordinary shares
in the Company at the initial conversion price of HK$2.00
per conversion share (subject to adjustment pursuant to the
terms of the convertible bonds). The Company may at any
time before the maturity date by written notice redeem the
convertible bonds at 100% of the principal amount. Any
amount of the convertible bonds which is redeemed by the
Company will forthwith be cancelled.

On 13 March 2018, the Company has executed the
extension of the maturity date of the convertible bonds
for 2 years from 4 February 2018 to 4 February 2020 (the
“CB Extension”). As a result of CB Extension, the liability
and equity component were extinguished by approximately
HK$65,617,000 and HK$15,140,000 respectively, based on
revaluation upon the date of execution on 12 March 2019. As
at 31 December 2019, the convertible bonds had a carrying
amount of HK$761,909,000 (2018: HKS727,987,000), in
which HK$375,576,000 was recognised as equity and
HK$386,333,000 was recognised as current liabilities. No
convertible bonds were converted during the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 and the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible bonds was HK$390,000,000.

RZZTE—A"F-_AWMA  AAA MG
BEIR PR B 1T € 4258 /5390,000,000
BILTHTEARBRES  UEAE
BN ENLIRE AT BRRES
MEIHAARITEENE —EBFAR
(BIZ=—NF-_AWMA)- - JRKRE
ERALREI TS - BER AT
EHERDERKER AT BRRKRES
AR A R R E & IR R A% A% 192.00
78 7T (B AR 15 A] 2 AR (& 5 A IR 5K 7
) W A KR E#9195,000,000 0% &
AR o AR AR BB HATEE T E 1B
ZH R MR A S 5EH100% & [ 7] i
W E S - AR R FTIEE &I [ Al
BWESH B LAHEH -

RZE-NFZA+=H  xRAH
AMKRESCIHER-_ZE—NF
“ANBEEMEE_ZT_ZTF A
mAE(TRRESER]) - AR R
KRELEEE BE-_Z—LFE=ZA
TZR(RLBE)CEHNHE AE
M= I 1D o B 5 8 465,617,000/%8
7t }%15,140,0008 70 - R =T — N &F
+ZA=+—H8 AIBRREFNET
8 4761,909,000/8 T (Z&F — N\ F :
727,987,000/ 7t) © H 375,576,000
B TT A T R /3 3 £2386,333,00048
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 26. AR ES (&)
On 8 November 2019, the Company and the then holder of NZE—-NF+—ANR  KARH
the convertible bonds, Power Expert Global Limited, entered ERTBRRESFFHBEATDEIRIRE
into an amendment agreement, pursuant to which the PRABIRIS BRI ek @ UL - AR
maturity date of the convertible bonds shall be extended for EHFENIPARERAFE_S =
5 years to 4 February 2025. Further details are set out in the FZAMA - F#IBHRERFEHAR
Company’s announcement dated 8 November 2019 and the —E-NEFET-ANBZRAERAR
Company’s circular dated 19 December 2019. This proposed AR -_ZE-NF+ATHhBZ
amendment took effect on 14 January 2020. Following the B o ZBRETN_ZT_ZTF—A
amendment, majority of the convertible bonds is expected to TOEAERR - B2 - KRZEFH]RR
be re-categorised as non-current liabilities. EFEEENHBERIERDAEG -
In February 2020, the Company received a duly-executed RZZEZTFZR  NAGIHRITEER
transfer notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that IEZRBEINEERAM  NGAR
Power Expert has agreed to transfer the convertible bonds to ANEERESTBRRESFEET
LE Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“LEGH"), an independent third ¥ = LE Group Holdings Pte.
party. The Company has given its consent on the transfer and Ltd. ([LEGH)) - R ARIE R E#EHZESE
issued new certificates of the convertible bonds to LEGH. B WEBETABRRESHESET
LEGH -°
PROMISSORY NOTES 27. R EE
2019 2018
—2-nE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FH& T
First Note E-FER 235,372 216,908
Second Note F_EE 318,613 295,479
553,985 512,387

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued two promissory
notes with face values of HK$174,250,000 (the “First Note")
and HK$235,750,000 (the “Second Note”) in favour of
Power Expert as part of the consideration for the Engines
Acquisition. Both the First Note and Second Note carry
interest at a rate of 10% per annum. The outstanding
principal amounts plus any accrued interest will be repayable
on the maturity date falling on the second anniversary of
the date of the First Note and Second Note, i.e. 4 February
2018.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A
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PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

On 31 December 2017, the Company has extended the
maturity date of the First Note and Second Note for 2 years
from 4 February 2018 to 4 February 2020 and the interest
rate was adjusted downwards from 10% to 8% per annum,
all accrued and outstanding interest shall be repaid on the
extended maturity date of 4 February 2020.

On 8 November 2019, the Company and Power Expert
entered into an amendment agreement, pursuant to which
the term of the promissory notes will be changed to perpetual
and the interest rate will be fixed at 5% per annum with
effect from 5 February 2020, payable annually and the
interest accrued on or before 4 February 2020 shall be
payable on 4 February 2025. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 November 2019 and the
Company'’s circular dated 19 December 2019. This proposed
amendment took effect on 14 January 2020.

On 3 February 2020, the Company received an assignment
notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that Power
Expert has agreed to assign the promissory notes to LE
Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“"LEGH"). The Company has given
its consent on the transfer and issued new certificates of the
promissory notes to LEGH.

As at 31 December 2019, the promissory notes with carrying
amount of HK$553,985,000 (2018: HK$512,387,000) was
reclassified as current liabilities.

The carrying amounts of the First Note and Second Note at
year end were computed by discounting the face values of
the notes by the effective interest rate and the outstanding
interest payable.

27.
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—T-h#E+-A=+-8
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FRNRLEFHIERENEHBFERAT
as follows:
Depreciation Fair value
allowance  adjustments
in excess  arising from
Withholding of related acquisition of
tax  depreciation  subsidiaries Total
BEHEE KWENELR
TEH EENAAR
ENB  HEEHE BEERE nEg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
At 1 January 2018 R-_E-N\F—H—H 13,349 " 81,333 94,693
Deferred tax credited to profit or  ERNEBHEIMBR,/(GtA)
loss during the year (note 11) HOIE R IR (P &) - (10) (68,595) (68,605)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 R-T-N\F
January 2019 +ZA=+—-Hk
“Z-N%—-HA-H 13,349 1 12,738 26,088
Deferred tax credited to profit or  FAEB BT AMBELEH
loss during the year (note 11) T8 (P 5E11) — — (12,738) (12,738)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-h%F
+-A=+-H 13,349 1 = 13,350
At 31 December 2019, the Group has tax losses arising RZE-—NAF+ZA=+—8"
in Hong Kong of HK$23,447,000 (2018: HK$23,752,000). AEBEEEBEMEEANNEBEER
Subject to the final assessment of the Hong Kong Inland 723,447,000 (= T — )\ F:
Revenue Department, these tax losses are available 23,752,000 JT) e MR RN B B
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the BRERERT G EERIBEEER]
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax NEREANKEEBARIRRK
losses arising in PRC of HK$1,707,000 (2018: HK$1,734,000) JE R A E M) o AN 5 B 1 A B Y A 18
that will expire in five years for offsetting against future /&5 18 731,707,0008 ;T (ZF — )\ & -
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. 1,734,000 7T) - BERFAEH -
HH B 18 R R R R EER T8 A1 o
212  Bisu Technology Group International Limited b 3 %} & B B F5 A R 2 A
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding tax on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

Deferred tax has not been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on certain unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding tax of one of the Group's
subsidiaries established in PRC. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such unremitted earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised amounting to
HK$279,613,000 (2018: HK$323,632,000) as at 31 December
2019.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

28.
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30.
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NE+=ZA=+—H

SHARE CAPITAL 29. 7
Shares % 2
2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Authorised: R
500,000,000 ordinary shares of 500,000,000 %
HK$0.01 each FREE.OVE T
EOR-R i 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRBRE:
200,000,000 ordinary shares of 200,000,000/
HK$0.01 each FREEC.0NE T
7 & i AR 2,000 2,000
Share options iR

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included
in note 30 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 24 March 2016,
the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”). Unless otherwise
terminated or amended, the Scheme will remain in force for
10 years from the date of adoption.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
including any executive directors of the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or
licensors, customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group or any person who, in the sole discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 29 March 2016 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at the date when the
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting, which is a total of 20,000,000 shares
available for issue under the Scheme. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of the offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but should not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of share options; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company as stated on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no share option has
been granted by the Company. There was no outstanding
share option of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and

216

2019.

The following share options under the Share Option Scheme

during the year:

Number of share options

0. RS (&)

HE_ZT-)\F+_A=+—HILF
B ARG ERDBRE R
E-N\EFERZFE-NF+A=1—
B RNAE) I ARTT B ARE -

RER REBREERLZE
PRt T

BREXE
Name or As at As at Exercise
category of 1 January 31 December price
participant 2019 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled 2019 Date of grant HK$  Exercise period
R R
$8% “E-hE “E-hE TEE
HERER -A-H R BfTE BA¥ tZA=t-B REAH Br TES
Director
gz
Mr. Lam Wah - 500,000 - (500,000) — 26 Apr 2019 7128 26 Apr 2019-
mERE “E-hE 25 Apr 2024
MAZ+<H “Z-NEWAZtA
ECToRE
MAZ-tEA
Others — 11,500,000 — (11,500,000) — 26 Apr 2019 7128 26 Apr 2019-
Bt AL “E-hE 25 Apr 2024
MAZ+<H “Z-NEWAZtA
ECToRE
mAZ-tEA

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$28,721,000, of which the Group recognised a
share option expense 28,721,000 during the year ended 31

December 2019.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30.
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

BRESEGR)

RER EREOUKREAGEENE
BEAREERETAEA -ZEA
18 1Y (3B IR T 8 M #O R SR S Ak )
ETEE - TRIIETAAER N
ABIE

2019

—F-hF

Dividend yield (%) A% B 2 (%) —
Expected volatility (%) 8 B K B (%) 74.9
Historical volatility (%) E 5K & (%) 74.9
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 8 % F| 3K (%) 1.71
Expected life of options (year) BiREEHSS (F) 5
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) AN B (& (& % T) 5.6

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.
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32.
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RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the reporting period are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a) Statutory surplus reserve
Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

For the entities concerned, the statutory surplus reserve
can be used to cover previous years' losses, if any, and
may be converted into capital in proportion to equity
holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
their registered capital.

(b) Share option reserve

It represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy of share-based payments in note
3.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the
related share options are exercised, or transferred to
retained profits should the related share options lapse
or be forfeited.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 15 April 2019, Global Harvset Inc (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an agreement with
Mr. Jiang Jianhui (a controlling shareholder of the Company),
for the purchase of 100% of the total issued shares of
Links Wonder Investment Holdings Limited (“Links Wonder").
Details of which are set out in the Company announcements
dated 14 and 22 April 2019.

On 6 May 2019, Xingyu Keji (Shenzhen) Company Limited (£]
BHE CFIID BR2AE], a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into an agreement with Mr. Jiang
Jianhui (the controlling shareholder of the Company), for the
purchase of 60% of the total issued shares of Qiubei Woma
Agricultural Development Co., Ltd. (“Qiubei Woma"). Details of
which are set out in the Company announcement dated 6 May
2019.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited tb i Fl & £ B B R A R A A
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 32. ¥ EPH(E)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Links AU B~ Hlinks Wonder & £ 4k 3K
Wonder and Qiubei Woma as at the date of acquisition were iMAZREERBEZAAEE
as follows: m
Qiubei
Links Woma Total
Wonder B3R ko]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERHEE 215 1,466 1,681
Deferred assets ELEE 547 970 1,517
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR FE « & L Ef
J& I 3K 6,617 3,107 9,724
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREeSEEY 1,077 216 1,293
Other payables and accruals HEmENZMTERER (332) (5,230) (5,562)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value UAREBETENTHR

FEERS 8,124 529 8,653

Non-controlling interest FERES (8,164) (211) (8,375)

(40) 318 278

Goodwill on acquisition W B B ) P 41 378 419

Satisfied by cash WHREER 1 696 697
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of RKEBEBHRBAA ZHEESRESDTN

a subsidiary is as follows: i
Qiubei

Links Woma Total

Wonder B3R A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT FHAT

Cash consideration ReNE (1 (696) (697)

Cash and bank balance acquired EBBReNRTER 1,077 216 1,293

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ~ HREEFHELHNBRETE
included in cash flows from investing FREENRE R
activities REEBMWFERA 1,076 (480) 596
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31 December 2019
—T-hF+=ZA=+—8H

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
Since the acquisition, Links Wonder and Qiubei Woma did
not contribute any revenue to the Group’s revenue and
contributed HK$1,229,000 and HK$1,109,000 to the Group's
consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2019

respectively.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue of the Group and the loss of the
Group for the year would have been HK$459,109,000 and

HK$906,895,000, respectively.

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

33. HEKBAH

32. ¥¥% 50 (&)
BB EIELAZK
Jb K i I 4% 3 AN = B '/ B AR
—hF+=-—A=+—HLt
5 Bl £1,229,00078

ﬁﬁék:l:— =
FENGEABRED
7t %1,109,0007% 7T °

fid & OF 1 F AT
ARAEBERAFENEBERDBIA
459,109,000/ 7T %2906,895,000/8 7T, ©

Links Wonder & o

» RIS £R B B HR

HK$'000
FH& T

Net assets disposal of: HEFEE:
Goodwill GRS 419
Property, plant and equipment I O 17,270
Inventories FE 984
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T84 1B « 32 & K H {th & U 5% 3,060
Cash and cash equivalents iﬁi&ﬁ/\%{mﬁ% 1,056
Other payables and accruals EmwENRATERER (12,372)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 2= (12,098)
(1,681)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWMB AR Z W #H 1,682
Satisfied by Cash NP e ER 1

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalent

REEHELAR 2R RESITWN

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: Lk
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReERE 1
Cash and bank balance disposal of Be MIRITHEE (1,056)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KRERDEEANBRSREFEEN
included in cash flows from investing RekBeZFEYFREY
activities (1,055)
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31 December 2019
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. RE R & RERM
OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transactions @ FEHFREXRSH
(i)  During the year, the Group has not endorsed bills ) RAFE AEBTE
receivable to settle the accounts payable (2018: ERWERE S ENE
RMB666,703,000 (equivalent (HK$791,069,000)). HF(ZE-—NF-ARE
66&7010007z($ =S
(791,069,000 L)) ©
(i) During the vyear, the Group had non-cash (i) RFERN - RHPRSFAHE
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities B AKEEERAE
of HK$2,546,000 and HK$2,546,000, respectively, EERMEEBEIREAR
in respect of lease arrangements for office & 7 5l /22,546,000 7T
premises (2018: Nil). 52,546,000 T (=& —
NF BB -
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REMEXEBHNEREH
activities
2019
“E-hE
Interest-
bearing bank
and other  Convertible Promissory Lease
borrowings bonds notes Liabilities
AFERTR .
HitfeE a8RES RARE HEEE
HKS000  HK§000  HKS000  HK$'000
FERT TET TERT FERT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F
\_H —H 46,433 387,665 473,918 —
Changes from financing cash ~ BEHR S REEE
flows ‘ 23,822 — — —
Accrued interest expense JE 5T B 2 — 30,363 38,469 —
Gain on extinguishment of HER TR & 5
convertible bonds W a — (65,617) - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZH=t-A 70,255 352,411 512,387 —
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 R4 E BB KR &
ERE16K T E — — — 3,882
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZZ-NF
—A—B#&S5) 70,255 352,411 512,387 3,882
Changes from financing cash ~ BEH & REEE
flows . (7,010 = = (3,025)
New leases Mg — — — 2,546
Foreign exchange movement HME & i = = — (31)
Changes from operating cash ~ K4BRETEEH
flows (5,265) = = =
Interest expense MEFX — — - 404
Interest paid classified as ERNAENERKE
operating cash flows REME — — — (404)
Accrued interest expense JE A B — 33,922 41,598 —
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF
“A=1+-H 57,980 386,333 553,985 3,372
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

35.

(c)

4. ZERTRERKWFE(E)

Total cash outflow for leases c HEBRESRBAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FAGERERETHHEER
consolidated of cash flows is as follows: EmHAREmT
2019
—E-REF
HK$'000
F# T
Within operating expenses TEERZHERN 404
Within financing activities EREESHEN 3,025
3,429

JOINT OPERATION
Particulars of the Group's joint operation as at 31 December
2018 and 2019 are as follows:

HEKE
BRAEER_Z-N\FR_T—N
Ft-A=+T—BHNHREEHBEN

222

T
Form of Place of Percentage of attributable Principal
Name of joint operation business structure  operation interest of the Group activities
HEREER EBRRBREA gegm FRERSZREAIE  FEXRE
2019 2018
—2-0%F —B-NE
% %
(note (a) (note (b))
(M & () (Bt £ (b))
EXCEL - LANON Joint Venture Body unincorporated Hong Kong 51 51 Construction
- ZREELE FEIENEER  FR BETR

(a

Under the joint venture agreement, the joint operators
have contractually agreed sharing of control over the
relevant activities of this body unincorporated, hence this
body unincorporated is jointly controlled by the Group and
the other joint operator. Furthermore, the joint venture
agreement specifies that the Group and other party to the
joint arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations to
the liabilities relating to the joint arrangement in accordance
with the attributable interest of the Group as disclosed above
and the interest attributable to the other joint operator
respectively, therefore the body unincorporated is classified
as a joint operation.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # &l 5 & B E X £ R A A
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Notes to Financial Statements

35. JOINT OPERATION (Continued)

(b)

The joint operation is principally engaged in construction work
to carry out the provision of barrier-free access facilities for
highway structures in Hong Kong.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2019, the guarantees given by the
Group to certain banks in respect of performance bonds
in favour of certain contract customers amounted to
HK$8,635,000 (2018: HK$15,044,000).

In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction
business, the Group has been subject to a number of
claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees
of the Group or the Group’s subcontractors in accidents
arising out of and in the course of their employment.
The directors are of the opinion that such claims are
well covered by insurance and would not result in any
material adverse impact on the financial position or
results and operations of the Group.

37. COMMITMENTS

(a)

The Group leased certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three
years. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which are payable as follows:

[
(b)

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-h%F+=A=+—A

R (E)
EECEFTENRERETIE  RE
BREEMRHEREREBERE -

36. HREE

(a)

37. &L

(a)

RZE—-—N\F+ZA=+—8"
AEERGTETEHNRERPZ
BHREMMR S FTIRITRMED
¥& 1R 58,635,0008 T( =T —
J\4F : 15,044,000/ 7T) °

EAREEREXBNEERRE
o AKEHAEES BEDH
BRERAREXEHMEHLEEI
ERAHBEMRANEEIE D
ETRE -EERL AER
FERNRBROAREE T8
BAREENMBRR  FER
REBREMERINEE -

AEEBBEERERHRE
EFHAME - WEBE M
HHBRA—FEE=F - R=F
—N\F+=A=+—0  K%&H
184 T 0 A T R R
o B3 15 T T AR R IA T
RS

HK$'000

FAT

Within one year —FR 2,564
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEEZERNF(BEEEME) 1,762
4,326
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37. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) The Group had the following capital commitments at

the end of the reporting period:

37. EA¥E(E)

(b)

AEBTEREHRBEUTER
FRHE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Contracted, but not provided for B%%) - B RIEMH T &
plant and machinery 1 23 — 52

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with related parties during

the reporting period:

38. BBEAXR S

(a)

PR AR B R H A #f o sF at
MR 5 R AEERIN AR E R R
EHIANE R T ET TR
5

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHETT
Transactions with related companies AR A —HESH
controlled by a director of the 122 1 9 78 B
Company: EITRS:
Corporate service fee paid ENTEREE 227 737

The transactions were conducted on terms and
conditions mutually agreed between the relevant

R ERE T HEWHER
fiR TR B AR A HEAT o

parties.
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries from a shareholder b) MBRRKBHELT
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER TAT
Mr. Jiang Jianhui ZEBEE 697 —

Details of which are set out in notes 32 to the financial

statements.
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38.

39.

40.

Notes to Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties
Balances with related parties are included in notes 24
to the financial statements.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

of the Group

Further details of the compensation of key management
personnel of the Group are included in notes 9 and 10
to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities were at amortised cost.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, accounts and bills receivables, contract
assets, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, accounts payable, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals and lease liabilities
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the director
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The finance department reports directly to the director and
the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

38.

39.

40.

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

EEBAERS (E)

(c0 EHEBEBLIHKRBELGER
HEBA B 5 B AE R S Y A B S R
FBTEE24 -

d) ZEBEXEEEASNHRM

BRAAEEFEZEE A 8RN
B — DB H R B R KK
Fok10 o

tRMIAEDHE
RZE-—NERZFT-—N\FT+A=
+—H - AEEfEEREERARE
VIR AT E -

TRMIAZAARBERAIAE
ER=E

HRRENMREFEY  BUENR
REREE AHNEE B2ERE
MHRIE - Re REMERER &
NEFRZERMEE BSHEEME
NRhkERERAIHEEGGEZ2E®
BE FAERTREMEERZR
RENEE HEEBR/ZRFT
HzAnBEEAREERS

AEEREZTRENYHHEEE
TEMTARARBEFTERRME
A -HMEHEENEETNEREZE
EHRE - -REHREEH MHHD
remTAEEESHYEFTHER
HRANIE2H - HEHEEFEN
R#tE - HEBEMERBERR
EegFImmAAETHHRF
B S

TRMEERABENAAEBENRZ
TEAHERETERER S (R
HBEHERIN) R A R & B
AO
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—AFE+ZA=t—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the liability portion of convertible bonds
and promissory notes have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for convertible bonds and promissory notes as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 was assessed to be
insignificant.

rates currently

The Group did not have any financial assets or liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include accounts
and Dbills receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, accounts and
other payables, cash and cash equivalents, lease liabilities,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, promissory notes
and convertible bonds. Details of these financial instruments

contract assets, financial assets,

are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial

statements.

The Group’s ordinary activities expose it to various financial
risks, including foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The risks associated with financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are described
below. Management monitors closely the Group’s exposures
to financial risks to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt # 7} 5 £ [ B BE A R A A
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41.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of
fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments which
arose from changes in exchange rates.

The Group’s civil engineering and construction business is
located in Hong Kong and is transacted and settled in HK$
while the Group’s Automotive Engines CGU is located in
PRC and is transacted and settled in RMB. Accordingly, the
directors considered that the Group's foreign currency risk is
insignificant.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
balances, accounts and bills receivables and contract assets.
The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure at the end of
the reporting period in the event of other parties failing
to perform their obligations is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the maximum exposure as at 31 December 2019,
management monitored the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis.
It was the Group’s policy that all customers of automotive
engines who wished to trade on credit terms and subject
to credit verification procedures. The Group’s accounts
receivable from contract work represent interim payments
or retentions certified by the customers under terms as
stipulated in the contracts and the Group did not hold any
collateral over these receivables. As the Group’s customers
in respect of contract work primarily consist of government
departments and developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the risk
of irrecoverable receivables from contract work was not
significant.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had concentrations of
credit risk as 65% (2018: 46%) of the total accounts and
bills receivables were due from the Group's largest external
customer and 94% (2018: 85%) of the total accounts and
bills receivables were due from the Group’s five largest
external customers.

41.

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

BHEREEBRERBXE)

S R B
SMEEREEERSESMELN S

BMTENAARBEIRKRRERE
KENR R

AREBzEARIREMEZERBLR
FE WABTRGNEE A%
Bz AERSRREELEM I
REAE - TAAREZZNEE - B
bt EERR/AKEE H D INEE
BRI E -

EERR
AEENEERBREIERSRITHE
7% RRERALREREEARAL
BE -WEHEMHBEBS T RERT
HER ASERBEHERKE
HMEREERAREERESRE
EEFAMBERRKRPAINKRE
=

RBEE-_T-NAEF+-_A=1t—HH
RAER EEEEREMTIE
REEBANGEERLEFREN - K
SENBRRRFTEREREEDRE
ENAEEPREFPETEE I
BETEERERF -AKENE
MITRERERIEREALNNRH
FERXNOPRNRIERTPZE
MRERIE > MAKEIL A% F
U R AEAERD HRAE
ENanIRBEFRFTERBMTEM
AEHMNEENREBRXEE &
BER A TREKEE K T2 R
B L B K e

R-E-NE+-_B=+—H0 K&
EFEETEERRETNBR -
JEWER A & B AR R65% (=8
—\F : 46%) KRB A EBH &K
HEF MEKRERREBEALEF
B194% (—ZF — )\ F : 85%) B ZR B &
EEHNRAKINBES -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

The amount presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2019

4. BBEMREEEERBE(E)

=& =R (HE)

&K R B KSR B9 B B
TRINBERAEBEEBRRNE
BEERkmAGEERR(ZEUABHE
BHMERSKE BREELERS
RARTENBERTAIREGEEME
B ER+TZA=+—HBHORES
B

e EReREERTAE -

R=—-Z—-hAF+=-A=+-—H

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
12 AEH
BEER 2HEBCERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E-E& -l EZRB Btk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TEn TEn TiEx TEn
Contract assets* ANEBE* — — — 60,724 60,724
Accounts and bills receivables* ERETREREZ — — — 698,306 698,306
Financial assets included in deposits st A TR & & E b JE Ut 08
and other receivables MeBEE
— Normal** — EE* 43,462 — — — 43,462
— Doubtful** — RER* = = = = =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHAEEED
— Not yet past due — HAREEH 64,777 — — — 64,777
108,239 = = 759,030 867,269
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41.

Notes to Financial Statements

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

ot 75 SRR Y =

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A

BHEREEBRERBXE)

FERR (&)
B K B & R A9 B BR (AR

R-—Z—-N\FE+=-H=+-—H

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
A AES
FEER HRSEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F-BE FEE F-RE BilE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TEL TET FET
Contract assets* BREE* - — — 197,934 197,934
Accounts and bills receivables* FEUEZR R EREE — — — 661,706 661,706
Financial assets induded in deposits st AR & f E b JE UL 208
and other receivables MeREE
— Normal** — E&* 33,561 — — — 33,561
— Doubtful** — R — — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents BeRALEED
— Not yet past due — WAk 26,971 — — — 26,971
60,532 - — 859,640 920,172

**

For accounts and bills receivables and contract assets to which
the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note
19 and 20 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to the “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts and bills receivables are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

* %

AEBEFERBEEAFTERENE
WERREREERANEE T
HEARB SRR E19M 204 58 2
BEEEOHER -

MABHALYEENRTERE
= B VIR EEREEE R R AR
= AFABRNRE S R E MR R
FNEMEENEREERRIEILE
BB 2RMEENRFEER
BAEIRER] -

B BN & E MR N B R R A
EEMEERBRNE - TELEE
T B 7 3R 3R M 522090 B BE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. B RKEEBZE R BUR (#&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk REE SRR
The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and AEENBRATHERRAKKE
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HRBEeT R UBREERFE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of HReHEBELKRETZESREED
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity RHRMEREE WM EEREBHR
requirements in the short and long term. In addition, banking REORBEST R I K&
facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes. HeTBRITEERE UNBETREZ
=
The following tables details the remaining contractual TRANAEEN 2RABEN RS
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the HERKEOFBEOE  ERE
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual EHRBINBERE(BEZEDOAF
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments EH(MBEFBME)BBERHRER
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on RE R R R E oA BAS R0 BAR
rates as at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest SENREEENRERHREN:
date that the Group could be required to repay:
Within
1 year or Between Between
on demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Tota
L EY
EZRESR —-Z-F —EEf @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
31 December 2019 “E-NE
+=A=+-8
Accounts payable R 313,300 — — 313,300
Lease liabilities HERRE 2,814 672 — 3,486
Financial liabilities included in other T A £ s & 1 78
payables ZERBER 43,546 6,000 23,752 73,298
Interest-bearing bank and other &t BRI R E b
borrowings 64,072 = = 64,072
Convertible bonds AR R ES 390,000 — — 390,000
Promissory notes ESES 557,600 — — 557,600
1,371,332 6,672 23,752 1,401,756
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. BB RAKREEBRZRBXK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBE SRR (E)
Within
1 year or Between Between
on demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Total
—FRNHA
[EEXRER —ZZF “ZhRF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
31 December 2018 —E-N\E
+ZA=+-H
Accounts payable FERER K 329,490 5,522 5,748 340,760
Financial liabilities included in other &t A £ {tt & 718
payables ZERAE 71,612 445 7,500 79,557
Interest-bearing bank and other & B R1T R EAb{E
borrowings 65,253 6,013 — 71,266
Convertible bonds i (& 5 — 390,000 — 390,000
Promissory notes AR EE — 557,600 — 557,600
466,355 959,580 13,248 1,439,183

As explained in note 2 to the financial statement, the
directors have adopted or plan to adopt certain measures in
order to improve the Group's financial and cash flow positions
and to maintain the Group’s as a going concern.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The directors review the capital structure on a periodical
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital
and will balance the Group’s overall capital structure through
new share issues as well as raising new debts or repayment
of existing debts.

WP B mAME2EM - EFE
RES AT BIREUE THE - Uk E
AEBRPHERRETERR - A
R@FAEEFELE -

EeEE
AEFESEERENTIZAER
BRASEERELE  AKEB
BB 75 8 A S B AR R A 25 48
E | HE A -

EFEETHRITEARE - EALL
BRI TEN—8D  EFEEE
ERAREZBRESHBEORR
55 B R A B AT R R IR E TS S E
BRBEEHBRIEAKENELRE
RRME
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. iR EKREEEERKE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

ESEE (R

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net cash and bank balances divided by the total capital. Net
debts are calculated as the total of interest-bearing bank

and other borrowings, liability component of the convertible

bonds and promissory notes less cash and cash equivalents.

Total capital refers to equity attributable to owners of the

parent. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 and 31

December 2018 was as follows:

AEEERERLEEEZEER M
BREEDRBES RIBITEBKRFE
BRIABARBEAE - BB FREAIK
FERITREMMER  TRKRES
WBERBIRELEZEBRNBERE
ERREFEMHE BEAREREIRE
HARHEANELEZ - RZF—N
F+ZA=+t—HEZZE—N\F+=
A=+—AMERLENT:

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FHEIT
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERIT R HME K
borrowings 57,980 64,255
Liability component of the TMREFHAEGERD
convertible bonds 386,333 352,411
Promissory notes o R 553,985 512,387
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB RIREEEY (64,777) (26,971)
Net debts FRE 933,521 902,082
Equity attributable to owners of BRAIHEEB A
the parent JE1G = (975,545) (92,959)
Gearing ratio (%) B2 & (%) NA* NA*
T E A i A

* The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are
not available because the Group reported a negative equity
attributable to owners of the parent as at 31 December 2019

and 2018.
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p S e

31 December 2019
—E-AF+=A=+—A
42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. XA T Z BB R KR

COMPANY
BERAARBIRNBERR M HMRR

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RZERWMT :

2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FHEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 1 7
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 1 7
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JiE W B B8 2 R) 5K 18 48,536 582,626
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - EHE2 Kk
other receivables H b ' K 1,423 1,845
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEYD 492 427
Total current assets MENEERE 50,451 584,898
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE
Other payables and accruals EMEMAETARER 15,733 17,976
Interest-bearing other borrowings FTE H & 5K 53,900 51,500
Convertible bonds Al 2 % 18 386,333 —
Promissory notes ZEGTIESE: 553,985 —
Total current liabilities R EEETE 1,009,951 69,476
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS #iE(&E) EEFE (959,500) 515,422
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHE
LIABILITIES AWAEBEE (959,499) 515,429
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. XA B Z B iR R &R (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F# T FHE T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EkRBERE
Other payables H b e {5t FE 29,771 7,944
Interest-bearing other borrowings TR HME K — 6,000
Convertible bonds A i I (& 5 — 352,411
Promissory notes ZEGTIES: — 512,387
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIEAE 2 2
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERTE 29,773 878,744
Net liabilities BEFE (989,272) (363,315)
EQUITY EE
Share capital fi% 7% 2,000 2,000
Equity component of convertible bonds 7] # i% & %5 2 # 25 8 5
(note) (B 5%) 375,576 375,576
Reserves (note) {18 (BT 3E) (1,366,848) (740,891)
Deficiency in assets & E E Al (989,272) (363,315)
Liu Wengang Xing Bin
Eped] 8 &
Director Director
EF EF
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. XAT Z BB AR R & (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Bt 3T -

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARGz EBEHRENT

Equity
component
of Share
Share convertible option Accumulated

premium bonds reserve losses Total

CF:3¢

EHZ
RpaE #EHS BRERS RABAR R
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 January 2018 R-—ZE-\F—A—H 45,486 390,716 — (165,795) 270,407
Total comprehensive loss for the year & 2 &8 45 — — — (620,582)  (620,582)
Extinguishment of convertible bonds & & AT ik & % — (15,140) — — (15,140)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+-RA=1—8H 45,486 375,576 — (786,377)  (365,315)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\F+-_A=+—H

1 January 2019 k=T-NF—F—H 45,486 375,576 — (786,377) (365,315)
Total comprehensive loss for the year & A2 HEEE B — - — (654,678)  (654,678)
Equity-settled share option REEEERER

arrangements — — 28,721 — 28,721
Transfer of share option reserve upon 7 i F% 12 2k ik 14 8 3% B3 AR 4

the cancellation of share options & — — (28,721) 28,721 —
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=RA=1—8H 45,486 375,576 — (1,412,334 (991,272)

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  43. #t /& B 8%
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBBRER_ZT_EFAAN\BEE
issue by the board of directors on 8 May 2020. EEROE R EETIE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary
IFHBHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ANEBEBEREYKEE HM 2 %48 -
Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from the EENBEME(HiraAEE D T8

Group's published financial statements, is set out below. BEmKR)EHINWAT -
RESULTS E 3
Year Year Year Nine months Year
ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March
2019 2018 2017 2016 2016
ZE-hEF —E-N\F —T—tF —T-RE —E-RF
+=A=t+-B +=ZA=+—-8H +zZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+-H =A=+—H
LFEE FFE FFE ENER FFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRL FHT FHT FAT FAE
Revenue [ ON 459,109 743,414 2,026,599 2,145,926 609,335
(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (B51R) /& A (922,494) (769,826) 69,892 124,783 (32,349)
Income tax credit/(expense) FERER, /(X)) 16,249 66,059 (32,179) (34,631) (774)
(Loss)/profit and total F/ B8R (EE) R
comprehensive (loss)/income RE2E(ER),/ A
for the year/period mE (906,245) (703,767) 37,713 90,152 (33,123)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY EE BERARESR
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March
2019 2018 2017 2016 2016
R-E-h& RZZ-N\F RZZE—+F RZZ—RE RIZ-—RF
+=ZA=+t-8B +=ZA=+-H +zZA=+-B +ZA=+—-H =A=t+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FTET FTET FTHET
Total assets BEE 439,095 1,307,390 2,509,552 2,594,815 1,702,936
Total liabilities FEN=Lr (1,413,850) (1,400,349) (1,806,938) (2,043,443) (1,169,985)
(Deficiency in assets)/total equity (& E &5 4h),/ @ & (974,755) (92,959) 702,614 551,372 532,951
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